
 

 
♦ = An attachment has been included for this agenda item. 
g:\transportation\committees\transplan\tplan_year\2020-21\meetings\committee\march2021\transplan-cmtee-march2021.doc 

 

Aaron Meadows, Chair 
Oakley 
City Council 
 
Diane Burgis, Vice-Chair 
Contra Costa County 
Board of Supervisors  
 
Joel Bryant 
Brentwood 
City Council 
 
Holland White 
Pittsburg 
City Council 
 
Lamar Thorpe 

Antioch 
City Council 
 
Kerry Motts 
Antioch  
Planning Commission 
 
Anita Roberts 
Brentwood  
Planning Commission 
 
Anissa Williams 
Oakley City Council  
 
Sarah Foster 
Pittsburg 
Planning Commission 
 

Bob Mankin 
Contra Costa 
Planning Commission 
 
 
 
 

Staff Contact: 
John Cunningham 
TRANSPLAN 
30 Muir Road 
Martinez CA 94553 
 

Phone  
(925) 674-7755 
Email 
john.cunningham@ 
dcd.cccounty.us  
Website 
www.transplan.us 
    
 

We will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities to participate in TRANSPLAN meetings if they contact 
staff at least 48 hours before the meeting. Please contact John Cunningham at john.cunningham@dcd.cccounty.us  

TRANSPLAN Committee Meeting 
Thursday, March 11, 2021 – 6:30 PM 

 

To slow the spread of COVID-19, the Contra Costa County Health Officer’s most recent order of March 31, 
2020, continues to prevent public gatherings. In lieu of a public gathering, the TRANSPLAN meeting will be 
accessible via Zoom Meeting to all members of the public, as permitted by the Governor’s Executive Order 
29-20. Members of the public may participate in the meeting online, or by telephone. To participate in the 

meeting please use the information. 
 

To participate by phone, dial (669) 900-9128, and meeting ID is 940 8351 3586 
(Passcode: 630673) 

To participate online using Zoom, hold down CTRL + click the following: 
Join Zoom Meeting 

https://zoom.us/j/94083513586?pwd=MDgzKzZZSUx6djhGc3R0MW5ZdW52Zz09 
 Meeting ID: 940 8351 3586 (Passcode: 630673). 

 
In lieu of making public comments at the meeting, members of the public also may submit public comments 
before or during the meeting by emailing comments to John Cunningham at 
john.cunningham@dcd.cccounty.us or at (925) 674-7833. 
  

All comments submitted by email to the above email address before the conclusion of the meeting will be 
included in the record of the meeting. When feasible, the Board Chair, or designated staff, also will read the 
comments into the record at the meeting, subject to a two-minute time limit per comment.  
 

The TRANSPLAN Chair may reduce the amount of time allotted to read comments at the beginning of each 
item or public comment period depending on the number of comments and the business of the day. Your 
patience is appreciated. A break may be called at the discretion of the Board Chair. 
 

 

AGENDA 
Items may be taken out of order based on the business of the day and preferences of the Committee. 

1. OPEN the meeting. 

2. ACCEPT public comment on items not listed on agenda. 

Consent Items (see attachments where noted [♦]) 
3. ADOPT Minutes from 2/11/21 TRANSPLAN Meeting ♦ Page 3 

Action/Discussion Items (see attachments where noted [♦]) 

4. REVIW, REVISE as appropriate and APPROVE a Letter to the Lamorinda 
Program Management Committee on a proposed amendment to the Lamorinda 
Action Plan. TRANSPLAN received a letter (attached) from the Lamorinda Program 
Management Committee (LPMC) with the subject, “Consideration of Amending the 
Lamorinda Action Plan to Allow for the Addition of a Short-Link Southbound Lane on 
Pleasant Hill Road (Trap Lane) as Part of the Proposed Terraces of Lafayette Project.”. 
LPMC also provided supporting material (attached) including: 1) an Action Plan Update 
Flowchart, 2) a 2/3/21 LPMC meeting packet with information relevant to the proposed 
amendment, and 3) material from the 1/11/21 LPMC related to the amendment. Page 10 
 
5. REVIEW and COMMENT on the Accessible Transportation Strategic (ATS) Plan. 
The Contra Costa Transportation Authority’s (CCTA’s) 2017 Countywide Transportation 
Plan included direction to conduct the ATS Plan. In 2018, CCTA, with support from the 
County, initiated the ATS Planning process using a Caltrans planning grant. The study 



♦ = An attachment has been included for this agenda item. 
 
g:\transportation\committees\transplan\tplan_year\2020-21\meetings\committee\march2021\transplan-cmtee-march2021.doc 

examines ways to improve paratransit coordination and delivery for seniors, persons with disabilities 
and veterans.  Attached is the staff report to the CCTA Planning Committee and the Executive 
Summary. The full report is available at this link. ♦ Page 307 
 
7. ADJOURN to next meeting on Thursday, April 8, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. or other day/time as deemed 
appropriate by the Committee. 



ITEM 3 
2/11/21 MEETING MINUTES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 3



TRANSPLAN COMMITTEE 
Antioch - Brentwood - Oakley - Pittsburg and Contra Costa County 

 
MINUTES 

 
February 11, 2021 

 
 
The regular meeting of the TRANSPLAN Committee was convened via a web-based 
platform in locations not open to the public to provide the safest environment for staff and 
the public consistent with Contra Costa County Health Officer’s most recent order of 
March 31, 2020, continuing to prevent public gatherings.  In lieu of a public gathering, the 
Board of Directors was accessible via Zoom Meeting to all members of the public as 
permitted by the Governor’s Executive Order 29-20.  Members of the public were allowed 
to participate in the meeting online, or by telephone. 
 
Chair Meadows opened the meeting at 6:30 P.M. 
   
ROLL CALL / CALL TO ORDER 
 
PRESENT:  Joel Bryant (Brentwood), Diane Burgis (Contra Costa County), Bob Mankin 

(Contra Costa Planning Commission), Aaron Meadows (Oakley), Kerry Motts 
(Antioch), Anita Roberts (Brentwood), Lamar Thorpe (Antioch), Holland White 
(Pittsburg), and Anissa Williams (Oakley) 

   
ABSENT:  Sarah Foster (Pittsburg)  
  
STAFF: John Cunningham, TRANSPLAN Staff, Contra Costa County Department of 

Conservation and Development 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
No written comments were submitted, or oral comments made, by any member of the public. 
 
CONSENT ITEMS 
 
On motion by Lamar Thorpe, seconded by Anissa Williams, TRANSPLAN Committee 
members adopted the Consent Calendar, as follows, which carried by the following Roll Call 
vote: 
 

• Adopted Minutes from December 10, 2020 TRANSPLAN Meeting. 
 
Ayes:  Bryant, Burgis, Roberts, Thorpe, White, Williams, Meadows 
Noes:  None 
Abstain:   Mankin, Motts 
Absent:   Foster 
 
 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 4



APPOINT KIRSTEN RIKER AS TRANSPLAN’S REPRESENTATIVE ON THE 
COUNTYWIDE BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 
John Cunningham, TRANSPLAN staff, advised that with the retirement of Paul Reinders, 
there was a need to fill a vacancy on the Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee.  He reported that the TRANSPLAN Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) had 
recommended Kirsten Riker from 511 Contra Costa to represent TRANSPLAN on the 
Committee. 
 
On motion by Diane Burgis to appoint Kirsten Riker as TRANSPLAN’s representative on 
the Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee.  The motion was seconded by        
Holland White and carried by the following Roll Call vote: 
 
Ayes:   Bryant, Burgis, Mankin, Motts, Roberts, Thorpe, White, Williams, Meadows 
Noes:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Foster 
 
REVIEW AND COMMENT ON PROPOSED REVISIONS TO THE CONTRA COSTA 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY’S GROWTH MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (GMP) 
IMPLEMENTATION GUIDE 
 
Matt Kelly, Senior Transportation Planner, Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA), 
stated that the Growth Management Program (GMP) was part of Measure J that the CCTA 
administered, intended to manage growth within Contra Costa County and plan and fund 
growth around existing transportation and other infrastructure utilities.  The Action Plans of 
Routes of Regional Significance were part of the GMP, which was also the mechanism for 
jurisdictions to receive 18 percent return to source Measure J revenues.  He explained that 
the GMP Implementation Guide laid out all the policies for jurisdictions to follow.  One of the 
main components of the update was a result of the passage of SB 743 and the removal of 
Level of Service (LOS) as a transportation metric from the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) to Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT), which required an update to the guides the 
various jurisdictions used. 
 
David Early, Placeworks, the on-call planning consultant for the CCTA, provided an 
overview of the draft of the Implementation Guide revisions and stated the work was a result 
of the planning seminars held in 2018, and the GMP Task Force of 2019 and 2020.  
Changes to the Implementation Guide related to the Action Plans to develop planning 
policies regarding transportation facilities and practices in the county.  He explained that 
some Regional Transportation Planning Committees (RTPCs) had broadened regulations 
to look at a regional network of bicycle and pedestrian facilities and a regional transportation 
network including bus services as well as non-modal issues related to transportation safety, 
equity and climate change from transportation sources, all to be covered in the Action Plans.  
Each jurisdiction had discretion as to those topics. 
 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 5



On the topic of Multi-Modal Transportation Service Objectives (MTSOs), Mr. Early explained 
that the regional roadway network, the bicycle and pedestrian network, and the transit 
network would be done as had been done previously, to identify and map, consult, establish 
an area-wide goal, regional transportation method and action for each facility.  The non-
modal items were also identified, and while not related to facilities he asked that overall 
subregional goals and actions be established for those issues, such as the number of 
collisions, number of people with lower incomes that had access to equitable transportation 
programs and access passes, and the number of electric vehicle charging stations that 
would be subregion wide.  
 
Mr. Early highlighted the changes in Chapter 3 of the Implementation Guide for Action Plans, 
with additional changes to Chapter 4 to clarify the process for major projects and General 
Plan Amendments (GPAs), explain how GPAs were to be evaluated, and offer guidance as 
the transportation impact analyses with respect to VMT in addition to LOS.  Under SB 743, 
the jurisdiction was no longer required to look at LOS in an environmental document when 
looking at traffic for evaluations for consistency with the GMP and would now look at both 
congestion analysis and VMT.  He noted certain limitations for the work for CEQA 
evaluations and continuing to look at congestion and delay as part of the GMP because the 
Routes of Regional Significance would continue to have levels of standards, and there would 
need to be a continuation of compliance with the GMP in the Action Plans to continue to 
receive the 18 percent return to source. 
 
Mr. Kelly stated that the TRANSPLAN Committee was the last RTPC to receive this update 
and any comments from TRANSPLAN would be incorporated into the submittal to the CCTA 
Planning Committee.  The Implementation Guide would be adopted by the CCTA in March, 
the technical procedures would then be updated, and later this year the development of a 
GMP Mitigation Program would be started to create a Countywide GMP Mitigation Program 
wherein communities that had land use developments or transportation improvements that 
may be a GMP improvement would be mitigated.  That process would occur over the next 
couple of years.  The CCTA would provide consultant work to put that together and would 
be working directly with the TACs to develop the Action Plans in 2021.   
 
Joel Bryant asked about Habitat Conservancy and during the process wanted to make sure 
those funds remained in Contra Costa County.  He also asked about the metrics regarding 
climate change and asked if there would be a list to target or an idea to measure in the steps 
to be taken toward climate change improvement through the new process. 
 
Mr. Kelly stated that conversation would be started with TRANSPLAN and the first thing 
would be to measure that issue, establish a baseline, and monitor the Regional 
Transportation Objectives (RTOs) to access the Action Plan as to how the RTOs were doing 
over time. 
 
Mr. Bryant noted two basic categories: the outcomes which were an estimate of greenhouse 
gas emissions and the tools that helped people to lessen their greenhouse gas emissions, 
and RTOs might need to be considered in both outcome and implementation. 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 6



Mr. Kelly stated that the program being developed was a mitigation program for Contra 
Costa County and there were no plans to do otherwise.  Caltrans would fund the grant 
because they were the first to do it and were a test case for the state but the scope would 
be Contra Costa County. 
 
Diane Burgis wanted to make sure that the metrics coincided with the other RTPCs to be 
able to create a larger story of the progress being made, and while it should be customized 
to East County, she wanted to have some parallels to what was going on with the rest of the 
county to show some progress and maybe the challenges of meeting some of those metrics 
in different parts of the county.   
 
Mr. Cunningham referred to a letter submitted to TRANSPLAN from Bruce (Ole) Ohlson, an 
East County resident speaking for Bike East Bay and the Delta Pedalers Bicycle Club on 
the GMP.  Mr. Ohlson offered six points to be added to or to be emphasized in the 
Implementation Guide, which would be forwarded to Mr. Early. 
 
1. The inclusion of secure bicycle parking in every multi-family housing development 

with space for two bicycles per bedroom throughout the complex; one that had to be 
large enough for a cargo bike with electric charging availability making it easier to 
operate a non-car transportation option. 
 

2. The installation of crosswalks in all four quadrants in every new intersection and 
existing intersections retrofitted when coming due for maintenance to make it more 
efficient and safe for pedestrians. 
 

3. Encourage Caltrans to move forward with their bicycle highway project that would 
add bike paths and bike lanes parallel to existing freeways making it easier to go 
longer distances by bicycle and reduce the need to enlarge the freeway system. 
 

4. Install bike facilities along all Routes of Regional Significance especially through 
business districts of business jurisdictions. 
 

5. Any new construction along Routes of Regional Significance must include bicycle 
facilities especially important for Standard Oil Avenue in Pittsburg yet to be built. 
 

6. Secure bicycle charging for charging for electrical bikes in VMT reduction strategies 
particularly shopping areas and single-family homes. 
 

Mr. Cunningham explained that the TRANSPLAN TAC had reviewed the Implementation 
Guide and there were no further comments. 
 
Mr. Early noted that all the ideas mentioned could be considered for inclusion in the Action 
Plan itself and might be included as examples in the Action Plan to be included in the GMP.  
An identified network of regional bike and pedestrian facilities would be sought for the Action 
Plans. 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 7



REVIEW AND COMMENT ON THE DRAFT CONTRA COSTA COUNTYWIDE VISION 
ZERO & SYSTEMIC TRANSPORTATION SAFETY POLICY AND IMPLEMENTATION 
GUIDE 
 
Colin Clarke, Associate Transportation Planner, CCTA, provided some background and 
reported that in 2006 there had been a resolution from the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) for Complete Street policies and a checklist required for each 
construction project, to be updated as part the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) to 
include vision zero and safety considerations.  The countywide Vision Zero effort originated 
from the CCTA Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan.  In June 2020, the CCTA adopted 
an Implementation Policy and by definition nationally there was a public health crises in the 
number of fatalities and injuries due to transportation travel.  Equity, one of the top ten 
principles, was a concern given that people of low income and color were disproportionately 
affected, as was the case in Contra Costa County.   
 
Mr. Clarke stated traditionally the method had been to prevent collisions and the proposed 
approach in terms of systemic safety was to prevent fatal injuries and shift focus to design 
and facilities and keep impacts on the body to less than severe.  Fehr & Peers had been 
working with the CCTA since 2019 on the Policy and Implementation Guide.  The 
countywide role was to collect and analyze the data and help with the technical assistance 
with local agencies in terms of implementation.  Best practices review had been done as 
had mapping and safety locations.  The draft had been presented to jurisdictions and to the 
Vision Zero Working Group, which had been meeting the last couple of years along with 
advisory boards and RTPC boards.   
 
The focus and direction was from the CCTA Board.  In terms of needs assessment, now 
that the Vision Zero and How to Guide was using artificial intelligence data countywide to 
be able to analyze existing collision data from 2008 to 2017, the common collision patterns 
in Contra Costa County had been identified and included driving under the influence and 
Transportation Priority Areas (TPAs).  BART was also involved given that it was a Transit 
Priority Area.  Given the vulnerable populations of seniors and youth, the Countywide Bike 
and Pedestrian Advisory Committee would now include one senior and one youth 
representative.  There was also a partnership with the East Bay Regional Park District 
(EBRPD) to work on trails and the Policy Implementation Guide was intended to shift toward 
a responsive, proactive approach related to fatalities and severe injuries.   
 
Mr. Clarke explained that only three percent of the overall county roadway miles represented 
86 percent of collisions involving fatalities and severe injuries, and bicycle data showed the 
same statistics.   
 
Pilot projects to help local agencies could be potential next steps countywide, and potential 
mechanisms to address the issues could be raised crosswalks, curb extensions and other 
methods to reduce fatalities and other injuries, as could a change in speed limits that would 
increase the chance of survival by potentially twice as much.  Other opportunities included 
working with local agencies to incorporate potential mechanisms into existing plans.   

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 8



With respect to funding, Mr. Clarke stated the Highway Safety Improvement Program offered 
federal funding through Caltrans and MTC, and the next cycle in April 2022 would require 
each local agency to have an adoptable Road Safety Plan to be eligible for that funding. 
Unincorporated Contra Costa County had already been working on its Vision Zero Plan, 
intended for consistency countywide. 
 
In response to questions, Mr. Clarke stated the CCTA could serve the role as technical 
assistant, as needed, work on a training program, and had support from the different local 
agencies and staff in terms of when to take the next steps.   
 
Lamar Thorpe asked about some of the data presented with respect to fatalities, and equity 
and the concern that people of color and people of low income were disproportionately likely 
to be affected by fatalities and severe injuries related to transportation.  He wanted to know 
where those statistics had been taken, from specific areas or countywide.   
 
Mr. Kelly stated the data had been collected accident by accident and each accident had all 
the demographic data related to the victims.  That data was available and the location of the 
statistics in the database could be provided. 
 
Mr. Thorpe was interested in knowing more about the East County region. 
 
It was noted that underserved neighborhoods were car dependent, and in some areas there 
were not a lot of sidewalks and not a lot of crosswalks, which had added to the fatalities.   
 
Anita Roberts clarified that the process would include using sidewalks, stop signs, speed 
bumps and other improvements not available in some neighborhoods to reduce fatalities.   
 
No written comments were submitted, or oral comments made, by any member of the public. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Chair Meadows adjourned the meeting of the TRANSPLAN Committee at 7:22 P.M. to the 
next meeting on March 11, 2021 at 6:30 P.M. or other day/time as deemed appropriate by 
the Committee. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Anita L. Tucci-Smith 
Minutes Clerk 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 9



ITEM 4 
APPROVE LETTER TO THE LAMORINDA PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 

COMMITTEE ON A PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE LAMORINDA 
ACTION PLAN 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 10



 

G:\Transportation\Committees\TRANSPLAN\TPLAN_Year\2020-21\meetings\Committee\March2021\LPMC_ActionPlan.doc 
 

www.transplan.us     Staff Contact: John Cunningham john.cunningham@dcd.cccounty.us  Phone: 925.674.7833 

TRANSPLAN COMMITTEE  
EAST COUNTY TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 
Antioch • Brentwood • Oakley • Pittsburg • Contra Costa County 
30 Muir Road, Martinez, CA 94553  
 
TO: TRANSPLAN Committee Members 
 TRANSPLAN Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 
FROM:  John Cunningham, TRANSPLAN staff  
DATE: March 1, 2021 
SUBJECT: Proposed Amendment to the Lamorinda Action Plan 
 

 
Background 
Each Regional Transportation Planning Committee (RTPC) in the County maintains an “Action Plan” 
which establish policies for each subregion’s Routes of Regional Significance. The policies in the Action 
Plans address projects and programs addressing needs unique to each sub-region. These Action Plans are 
included in the Contra Costa Transportation Authority’s (CCTA’s) Countywide Transportation Plan 
(CTP). 
 

The City of Lafayette is requesting an amendment to the Lamorinda Action Plan, specifically the 
Gateway Constraint Policy. CCTA has the authority to grant these amendments. As shown in the attached 
flowchart, the process to implement such an amendment includes circulating the request to all RTPCs for 
their consideration which is why this item is before the TRANSPLAN Committee. 
 

Update 

TRANSPLAN received a letter (attached) from the Lamorinda Program Management Committee 
(LPMC) with the subject, “Consideration of Amending the Lamorinda Action Plan to Allow for the 
Addition of a Short-Link Southbound Lane on Pleasant Hill Road (Trap Lane) as Part of the Proposed 
Terraces of Lafayette Project.”. LPMC provided supporting material (attached) including: 1) an Action 
Plan Update Flowchart, 2) a 2/3/21 LPMC meeting packet with information relevant to the proposed 
amendment, and 3) material from the 1/11/21 LPMC related to the amendment. 
 

The TRANSPLAN Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) considered the issue at their February 16th 
meeting. The TAC expressed support for the roadway improvements described in LPMC’s February 1st 
letter. The TAC was silent on the subject of amending the Gateway Constraint Policy.  
 

The Lamorinda Action Plan includes a statement1 establishing that gateway constraint policies shall only 
be determined by the locally elected board with jurisdiction over the gateway. In this case it is the City of 
Lafayette.  
 

Recommendation 

APPROVE the letter to the Lamorinda Program Management Committee supporting roadway changes 
described in the attached material. 

Attachments 
1) an Action Plan Update Flowchart 
2) a 2/3/21 LPMC meeting packet with information relevant to the proposed amendment 
3) material from the 1/11/21 LPMC related to the amendment. 

 

1 2017 Lamorinda Action Plan: 5.5 Traffic Management Strategies: Gateway constraints and traffic management strategies 
considered for specific routes within Lamorinda shall be determined only by a policy decision made by the locally elected board 
having control over the gateway in question, after having undertaken a thorough public review process. 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 11



 

 
Phone: 925.674.7833     :::     john.cunningham@dcd.cccounty.us     :::     www.transplan.us  

TRANSPLAN COMMITTEE  
EAST COUNTY TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 
Antioch • Brentwood • Oakley • Pittsburg • Contra Costa County 
30 Muir Road, Martinez, CA 94553  
 
 
March 11, 2021 
 
Bret Swain 
LPMC Administrator 
Senior Engineer 
335 Rheem Blvd 
Moraga, CA 94556 
 
RE: February 1, 2021 Letter to TRANSPLAN: Consideration of Amending the Lamorinda 

Action Plan to Allow for the Addition of a Short-Link Southbound Lane on Pleasant Hill 
Road (Trap Lane) as Part of the Proposed Terraces of Lafayette Project 
 

Dear Mr. Swain: 
 
Thank you for circulating the proposed amendment to the Lamorinda Action Plan to 
TRANSPLAN. The Committee respects the autonomy of Lamorinda jurisdictions on gateway 
constraint matters and respectfully declines to comment. 
 
The TRANSPLAN Technical Advisory Committee reviewed the issue and expressed support for 
the roadway changes being proposed by the City of Lafayette.  
 
Thank you for the opportunity to review and comment on this matter. If you have any questions, 
please contact John Cunningham, TRANSPLAN staff at john.cunningham@dcd.cccounty.us or 
(925) 674-7833.  
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Aaron Meadows 
Chair, TRANSPLAN  
Councilmember, City of Oakley 
 
cc: TRANSPLAN TAC 
 Mike Moran, City of Lafayette 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 12



Lamorinda Program 
Management Committee 

John Nemeth 
WCCTAC 
6333 Potrero Avenue, Suite 100 
El Cerritos, CA 94530 
Via email: jnemeth@wcctac.org 

Mathew Todd, P.E. 
TRANSPAC 
1211 Newell Avenue, Suite 200 
Walnut Creek, CA 94596 

February 1, 2021 

Via email : Matt@GrwayBowenScott.com 

John Cunningham 
TRANS PLAN 
30 Muir Road 
Martinez, CA 94553 
Via email: john.cunningham@dcd.cccounty.us 

Subject: Consideration of Amending the Lamorinda Action Plan to Allow for the 
Addition of a Short-Link Southbound Lane on Pleasant Hill Road (Trap Lane) as Part of 
the Proposed Terraces of Lafayette Project 

Dear RTPC Administrators, 

At its January 11 , 2021 meeting, the Lamorinda Program Management Committee 
(LPMC), considered and discussed a proposed amendment to one of the gateway 
constraints in the Lamorinda Action Plan (LAP) that pertains to Pleasant Hill Road, a 
Route of Regional Significance. Currently, the LAP states: "The Gateway Constraint 
Policy would prohibit the addition of any through lanes, including short-link segments, 
on any portion of Pleasant Hill Road between SR-24 and the Lafayette city limits line 
north of the intersection with Taylor Boulevard." The proposed amendment would 
remove the prohibition against short-link segments and would allow for the construction 
of a southbound short-link travel lane on Pleasant Hill Road starting just north of Deer 
Hill Road and terminating at the State Route 24 westbound on-ramp (trap lane). The 
request for this amendment arises from the City of Lafayette' s recent approval of the 
Terraces project -- a 315-unit multi-family housing project to be built at the southwest 
comer of Pleasant Hill Road and Deer Hill Road. The trap lane on Pleasant Hill Road 

Lafayette • Moraga • Orinda 
TRANSPLAN Packet Page 13



Lamorinda Program 
Management Committee 

was submitted as part ot a developer application to mitigate a.m. peak traffic generated 
from the Terraces project. 

During its consideration of the proposed amendment, the LPMC noted the following: 
The LPMC is an advisory committee to SWAT, which is in tum an advisory 
committee to CCTA. The decision whether to amend the LAP to allow for the 
construction of the proposed trap lane rests exclusively and solely with 
CCT A. Neither LPMC nor SW AT has any decision-making authority. 
The Terraces development will proceed regardless of whether an amendment 
to the LAP that allows for the trap lane is or is not approved. 
There are pros and cons to the construction of the trap lane. Specifically, the 
LPMC reviewed a slide in the staff presentation that listed the following pros 
and cons: 

Reasons against the trap lane: 
• Added capacity will attract more traffic 
• Roadway will be even larger 
• Pedestrain crossing times will increase across a longer distance 

Reasons for the trap lane: 
• Delay for local traffic can be reduced while still metering regional 

traffic with signal coordination 
• Evacuation times will be decreased during an emergency 
• Provides an extra lane width under the City's control to utilize for 

future use 
The proposed amendment to the LAP raises an important policy question -
namely, whether it is appropriate to amend an action plan such as the LAP 
specifically in response to a particular development project or whether any 
amendment should be done as part of a larger amendment or update to the 
action plan. 

After receiving public comment, asking questions of staff, and deliberating, the LPMC 
instructed staff as follows: 

That the LPMC takes no position and expresses no view on whether or not the 
amendment to the LAP should or should not be made. 
That proposed amendment to the LAP be shared with SW AT and the other 
regional transportation planning committees (RTPC) that serve as advisory 
bodies to CCT A for their review and comment, if any. 
That the pros and cons of the proposed trap lane that were presented to LPMC 
also be shared with SWAT and the other RTPCs. 

Enclosed for further background are the materials that were provided to the LPMC and 
made available to the public in advance of the January 11, 2021 meeting. 

Lafayette • Moraga • Orinda 
TRANSPLAN Packet Page 14

jcunningham
Highlight

jcunningham
Highlight

jcunningham
Highlight



Lamorinda Program 
Management Committee 

The LPMC Administrator duties are rotated among the three Lamorinda agencies 
annually and we are in the process of transitioning from the City of Orinda to the Town 
of Moraga. Please provide your RTPC comments to Bret Swain, Senior Engineer of the 
Town of Moraga, at bswain@moraga.ca.us Thank you. 

Sincerely, 

Jason Chen, LPMC Administrator 

Enclosures: LPMC January 11, 2021 Agenda Package 
Public Communication Received as ofOl-11-2021 8 a.m. 

cc: Bret Swain, Moraga via email bswain@moraga.ca.us 
Shawn Knapp, Moraga via email sknapp@moraga.ca.us 
Mike Moran, Lafayette via email MMoran@ci.lafayette.ca.us 
Lisa Bobadilla, SWAT via email lbobadilla@sanramon.ca.gov 
John Hoang, CCT A via email jhoang@ccta.net 
Matt Kelly, CCTA via email mkelly@ccta.net 

Lafayette • Moraga • Orinda 
TRANSPLAN Packet Page 15



Gateway Constraint 
Policy

Lamorinda Action 
Plan

City of Lafayette Request 
Amendment to Gateway Constraint 
Policy and Lamorinda Action Plan

Lamorinda Program Management 
Committee (LPMC) TAC & 

Committee review and make 
recommendation to either support 
or oppose the request to Amend 

the Action Plan

CCTA Board Action to 
Approve Amended Action 

Plan

RTPCs provide 
comments and 
identify policies 

in opposition 
and seek 
changes

CCTA Board review SWAT 
Committee Recommendation

Amended Gateway 
Constraint Policy 
and Lamorinda 

Action Plan

Updated Action Plan compliant 
with Growth Management Plan 

(GMP)

GMP Implementation Guide: 
“Updated Action Plan to be 

developed by RTPC in cooperation 
with local jurisdictions”

Comments 
provided to 

originating RTPC 
to revise and 

respond 

Action Plan Updates:
- 1995 (1st), 1998, 2000, 2008, 2017

Updated 11/25/20

Circulate to 
RTPC (Regional 
Transportation 

Planning 
Committee) for 

Review

Southwest Area Transportation 
Committee Technical Advisory 
Committee (SWAT TAC) review 

Request for Amended Action Plan

SWAT Committee review LPMC 
recommendation and make 

recommendation to either support 
or oppose the request to Amend 

the Action Plan

 Gateway Constraint 
Policy and 

Lamorinda Action 
Plan unchanged 

NO

YES

NOTE:
Regional Transportation Planning 
Committee (RTPC): SWAT 
(Southwest County) Committee 
covers the Lamorinda Project 
Management Committee (LPMC).  
Also referred to as “Regional 
Committees.”

RTPCS act in an advisory capacity 
and provide recommendations to  
the CCTA Board.  The final 
decisions are made by the CCTA 
Board.

CCTA Growth Management Program (GMP) 
Action Plan Update Process

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 16



 

 
 

LAMORINDA PROGRAM MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
(LPMC) MEETING AGENDA 

 
 

Monday, January 11, 2021, 1:30 PM 
 

City of Orinda 
 

 

How to follow or participate in the meeting: 
 
1. Members of the public may observe and participate in the meeting at the teleconference location 

highlighted above. (Please note that due to the remote nature of the meeting, the City of Orinda cannot 
guarantee that the network or its site will not experience technical interruptions. To ensure that the 
LPMC receives your comments, we strongly encourage you to submit your comments in writing 
in advance of the meeting by following instructions in below.) 
 

2. Send your e-mail to JChen@cityoforinda.org by 8 am on the day of the meeting. Those e-mails will be 
forwarded to the LPMC. They will also be made a part of the public record and be available to view by 
10 am on the day of the meeting by following this link: https://ccta-swat.net/upcoming-meeting-LPMC/   
 

3. Comments may also be submitted by e-mail during the meeting up until the closure of public comment 
period on the relevant agenda item. These will be read into the record by staff at their normal cadence 
and will be limited to a maximum of 3 minutes. To be read into the record, e-mail must contain in the 
subject line “Public Comment – Not on the Agenda” or “Public Comment – Agenda Item #” with the 
relevant agenda item indicated. 

 
4. During the meeting, the Chair will call for public comment. If you wish to address the LPMC, please so 

indicate by using the “raise your hand” function at that time and the Chair will add you to the speaker 
list and call your name when it is your turn. 

 

 
BY          

TELECONFERENCE  
VIA 

ZOOM WEBINAR 

Attending by PC:  

MEETING URL: https://tinyurl.com/y55szfo9   
MEETING ID: 980 7543 8589 

 

Attending by Telephone: 

 +1 669-900-9128 
MEETING ID: 980 7543 8589 

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THIS MEETING: To protect our residents,  officials, and staff, 
and in alignment with the Governor’s recent Executive Order N 29-20 in which certain teleconference 
requirements of the Brown Act have been suspended, including the requirement to provide a physical 
location for members of the public to participate in the meeting, this meeting will be held by 
Teleconference. 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 17

mailto:JChen@cityoforinda.org
https://ccta-swat.net/upcoming-meeting-LPMC/
https://tinyurl.com/y55szfo9


a) App/Browser Attendees: Those who are joining us using the Zoom app or via internet browser, 
can click on the “raise your hand” icon found in the control panel. Generally, the control panel 
is located at the bottom of your screen; however, this may vary depending on the type of 
device and/or the method by which you’re joining the meeting.  

b) Telephone Attendees: Those who are joining us by telephone—only, please press “ *9 ” This 
lets the moderator know that you wish to make a comment. 

 
 
1. Call to Order the Lamorinda Program Management Committee 

 
2. Roll Call 
 
3. Adoption of the LPMC Agenda 
 
4. Public Comment 

 
5. Consent Calendar: 

a. February 3, 2020 Minutes 
Recommendation:  Approve 

 
6. New Business: 

a. Addition of a Short-Link Southbound Lane on Pleasant Hill Road as part of the 
Proposed Terraces of Lafayette Project 
Recommendation:  

i. LPMC review, provide comments, and distribute the recommended language 
for amending the Lamorinda Action Plan to all of the regional transportation 
planning committees (RTPCs) within Contra Costa County for comment. The 
recommended amendment language is specifically written in Recommended 
Action ii below. 
 

ii. LPMC review, provide comments, and forward the proposed amendment to 
the Southwest Area Transportation Committee (SWAT) for their review of the 
request to amend the Lamorinda Action Plan Gateway Constraint Policy for 
Pleasant Hill Road (page 57, 3rd paragraph, of the Lamorinda Action Plan, 
2017) to read: 

 
“The two southbound through lanes on Pleasant Hill Road-Taylor Boulevard are proposed 
as a gateway constraint. The Gateway Constraint Policy would prohibit the addition of any 
through lanes, except short-link segments providing access to SR-24.” 
 

The other details of the gateway constraint policy shall remain unchanged. 
 

iii. LPMC review, provide comments, and forward the proposed request that 
SWAT review the request to allow construction of the proposed southbound 
trap lane. 

 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 18



 
7. Adjourn LPMC Meeting to Monday, February 1, 2021 1:30 p.m. 
 
I, Jason Chen, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that this regular 
meeting agenda has been posted at least 72 hours in advance at the Orinda City Hall, 22 Orinda Way and 
the Orinda Library, 26 Orinda Way.  

 
_______________________________________________ 
Jason Chen, City Engineer 
 

Location of Agendas and Agenda Packets:  Agendas and packets are available for review by the public by following 
this link: https://ccta-swat.net/upcoming-meeting-LPMC/ and  during regular business hours at the Orinda City 
Hall, 22 Orinda Way, Orinda, CA  94563. Agendas and packets shall be made available at least 72 hours in advance 
of regular meetings and 24 hours in advance of special meetings.  
 
Any writings or documents pertaining to an open session item provided to a majority of the Lamorinda Program 
Management Committee less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, shall be made available for public inspection at this 
link: https://ccta-swat.net/upcoming-meeting-LPMC/ and at the Orinda City Hall, 22 Orinda Cay, Orinda, CA  
94563. 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 19



LAMORINDA PROGRAM MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, February 3, 2020 
 

Supervisor Andersen’s Office 
3338 Mt. Diablo Blvd. 
Lafayette, CA  94549 

 

LPMC SUMMARY MINUTES 
 

1. Call to Order the Lamorinda Program Management Commitee 
Chair Gerringer called the meeting to order at 1:40 p.m. 

2. Roll Call 
LPMC Members Present:  Chair Teresa Gerringer, Lafayette; Vice Chair Amy Worth, Orinda; and 
Mike McCluer for Renata Sos, Moraga. 
 
Staff Present:  Mike Moran, Justin Horng, and Greg Wolff, Lafayette; Jason Chen, Orinda; Shawn 
Knapp, Moraga; and Matt Kelly, CCTA  
 

3. Adoption of the LPMC Agenda 
Worth moved, Gerringer seconded, and the LPMC unanimously adopted the LPMC agenda. 

4. Public Comment - None 

5. Old Business - None 
6. New Business: 

a. Election of New Chair and Vice Chair for 2020 
Gerringer moved, McCluer seconded, to elect Worth as Chair and Sos as Vice-Chair; 

the motion passes unanimous voice vote. 

b. Briefing on the Proposed Terraces of Lafayette Development Project 
Recommendation:  For information only – No Action Required 
Wolff gave a briefing based on the staff report.  Dave Baker, representing the applicant was 
also present at the meeting. Kristen Altbaum, a resident, provided her public comment based 
on the notes she provided to staff (attached).   
 

The meeting was adjourned at 2:13 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted by 
 
____________________________________________________________ 
Jason Chen, City Engineer, Orinda  

 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 20



TRANSPLAN Packet Page 21



TRANSPLAN Packet Page 22



TRANSPLAN Packet Page 23



TRANSPLAN Packet Page 24



 
 
 
 

 
City of Lafayette 

Staff Report 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
Date:    January 11, 2021 

To:    Lamorinda Program Management Committee 

From: Mike Moran, Lafayette Director of Engineering and Public Works, and Greg Wolff, 
Lafayette Planning Director 

Subject:  Addition of a Short-Link Southbound Lane on Pleasant Hill Road (Trap Lane) as 
Part of the Proposed Terraces of Lafayette Project 

 

 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
If a project generates more than 50 net peak hour vehicle trips, the Lead Agency shall notify the 
other Lamorinda jurisdictions and the designated staff liaisons for the Lamorinda Program 
Management Committee (LPMC), so that affected jurisdictions may comment on proposed 
projects and subsequent environmental documentation. In 2013, Lafayette City staff notified and 
presented the Terraces of Lafayette project to LPMC. Since it had been several years since that 
presentation, Lafayette staff orally presented the findings of the updated traffic data and 
addendum to the original Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) at LPMC’s February 3, 2020, 
meeting.  At that meeting, staff explained that part of the developer’s proposed project design was 
to install a short-link southbound lane on Pleasant Hill Road starting north of Deer Hill Road and 
terminating at the Highway 24 westbound on-ramp (trap lane), in order to reduce traffic impacts.  
Staff also explained that adding the lane potentially violates the Gateway Constraint Policy of the 
Lamorinda Action Plan.  Since adding the lane fully reduces the new development traffic in the 
a.m. peak hour to a less than significant level under the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA), per a transportation model, and building the development without the lane would violate 
one of the Multimodal Transportation Service Objectives (MTSOs), staff is asking for an 
amendment to the Lamorinda Action Plan’s Gateway Constraint Policy to allow installation of the 
trap lane. 
 
It should be noted that amendment of the Lamorinda Action Plan and allowance of the trap 
lane is not required in order for development of the approved Terraces of Lafayette 
Development Project to move forward.  The project has been approved either with or 
without the added lane.  If the additional section of roadway is not allowed, then the 
development would still be built without the traffic mitigation benefit that the lane would 
provide (Project Variant). 
 
LPMC has conferred with the Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) regarding the 
requested amendment to the Lamorinda Action Plan and has been advised to follow the process 
in the Growth Management Plan, the same procedures that have been followed for previous plan 

 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 25



updates.  A flowchart outlining those procedures has been provided by CCTA and is attached to 
this report.  Per that flowchart, it should be noted the proposed amendment will be escalated to 
the Southwest Area Transportation Committee (SWAT) regardless of the input from LPMC or the 
input from the other regional transportation planning committees (RTPCs).  The CCTA Board will 
be making the final decision on whether to amend the Action Plan.  LPMC and SWAT are advisory 
committees making a recommendation to the CCTA Board.   
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 

1) LPMC review, provide comments, and distribute the recommended language for 
amending the Lamorinda Action Plan to all of the regional transportation planning 
committees (RTPCs) within Contra Costa County for comment.  The recommended 
amendment language is specifically written in Recommended Action 2 below. 
 

2) LPMC review, provide comments, and forward the proposed amendment to the Southwest 
Area Transportation Committee (SWAT) for their review of the request to amend the 
Lamorinda Action Plan Gateway Constraint Policy for Pleasant Hill Road (page 57, 3rd 
paragraph, of the Lamorinda Action Plan, 2017) to read: 

 
“The two southbound through lanes on Pleasant Hill Road-Taylor Boulevard are proposed as a 
gateway constraint.  The Gateway Constraint Policy would prohibit the addition of any through 
lanes, except short-link segments providing access to SR-24.” 
 

The other details of the gateway constraint policy shall remain unchanged. 
 

3) LPMC review, provide comments, and forward the proposed request that SWAT review 
the request to allow construction of the proposed southbound trap lane. 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In March 2011, O’Brien Land Company, LLC (Applicant) submitted an application to the City of 
Lafayette (City) for a multi-family residential project known as the Terraces of Lafayette (the 
Project). As proposed, the Project consisted of 315 moderate-income apartments in 14 separate 
buildings (7 three-story; 7 two-story) on a 22.27-acre parcel at the southwest corner of Pleasant 
Hill Road and Deer Hill Road. The Lafayette City Council certified a Final EIR for the Project in 
2013.  Later in 2013, the Applicant entered into a Project Alternative Process Agreement with the 
City which suspended the processing of the 315-unit Terraces Project, pending the review of the 
lower-density, single-family residential proposal known as the Homes at Deer Hill. This Project 
Alternative proposed 44 single-family detached residences on the 22.27-acre site, resulting in an 
average density of two dwellings per acre, and was considered by staff to be more in keeping with 
Lafayette’s semi-rural character.  
 
Following a rezoning that approved the Project Alternative, a citizens group named “Save 
Lafayette” subsequently filed a referendum seeking to invalidate the Homes at Deer Hill approval 
and sued the City in 2016. Following the lawsuit and its appeal, the City Council placed Measure 
L on the June 5, 2018, ballot. Measure L asked residents to vote either “yes” (approve) or “no” 
(deny) on the Project Alternative. Measure L failed and the approval of the Project Alternative was 
invalidated. On June 15, 2018, ten days after the June 5 ballot, the Applicant submitted a letter 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 26



requesting that the City resume processing the original 315-unit Terraces of Lafayette Project. An 
addendum to the Final EIR was prepared, and its conclusions relevant to the requested action by 
the LPMC are outlined in the discussion section below. 
 
Lafayette’s City Council determined that the Addendum was adequate under CEQA, made CEQA 
findings, adopted a statement of overriding considerations, adopted a mitigation monitoring and 
reporting program (MMRP) for the Project and approved the Project at an appeal hearing that 
began on August 24, 2020, and concluded on August 25, 2020.  In doing so, the City Council 
upheld the Planning Commission’s earlier decision to approve the Project on June 30, 2020. 
 
The LPMC Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), in preparation for this public meeting, reviewed 
and recommended forwarding this Lamorinda Action Plan amendment item for LPMC to discuss 
and evaluate. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The following is a brief summary of the main transportation impacts/issues of the Addendum and 
supporting 2020 TJKM Traffic Study that pertain to LPMC: 
 

Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard: The Addendum determined that 
the Proposed Project would not have a significant impact at this intersection under Existing 
Plus Project conditions, in part because it would include an additional southbound through 
lane on Pleasant Hill Road that would start just north of Deer Hill Rd and become a trap 
lane for vehicles entering the on-ramp for WB SR-24. However, the additional lane would 
conflict with the Lamorinda Action Plan's Gateway Constraint Policy, as discussed further 
below, and this would be considered a significant impact. The Addendum concluded that 
the Project Variant (without the additional lane) would result in a significant and 
unavoidable level of service (LOS) impact at this intersection in the a.m. peak hour under 
Cumulative (2040) Plus Project conditions. 
 

A key policy of the Lamorinda Action Plan is the Gateway Constraint Policy that controls peak-
hour and peak-direction vehicle flows on major roadways leading into the Lamorinda area.  The 
Gateway Constraint Policy is part of the Lamorinda Action Plan’s recommended package of goals, 
goals, policies, objectives, and actions for addressing regional transportation issues within the 
Lamorinda area, and is not a mitigation measure for environmental impacts under CEQA. The 
Action Plan includes three gateway constraints: 1) Pleasant Hill Road, 2) Camino Pablo-San 
Pablo Dam Road, and 3) SR 24. Pleasant Hill Road is designated as a “Secondary Route of 
Regional Significance” that consists of two lanes in each direction from its merge with Taylor 
Boulevard south to SR 24, with additional turn lanes at most intersections. It is important to note 
that, to date, Lafayette has allowed the existing physical capacity of Pleasant Hill Road and traffic 
signal timing to act as the gateway constraints. The Lamorinda Action Plan was most recently 
updated in September 2017, and the current Lamorinda Action Plan Gateway Constraint Policy 
specifies: 
 

The two southbound through lanes on Pleasant Hill Road-Taylor Boulevard are proposed 
as a gateway constraint. The Gateway Constraint Policy would prohibit the addition of any 
through lanes, including short-link segments, on any portion of Pleasant Hill Road between 
SR-24 and the Lafayette city limit line north of the intersection with Taylor Boulevard. - 
Lamorinda Action Plan (2017) on page 57 (emphasis added). 
 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 27



The 2013 Final EIR for the Terraces Project identified the addition of a new short-link southbound 
lane to Pleasant Hill Road along the Project frontage, which had been proposed by the Applicant, 
as a potential mitigation measure that would reduce an LOS impact identified in the a.m. peak 
hour without the additional lane to a less than significant level. However, the 2013 Final EIR 
concluded that the additional southbound lane would conflict with the Gateway Constraint Policy, 
as specified in the 2009 Lamorinda Action Plan, which called for the investigation of "appropriate 
mechanisms, including maintaining existing roadway lanes and widths and restrictive signal 
timing, to discourage use of Pleasant Hill Road as a substitute for freeway travel." The 2013 Final 
EIR determined that this conflict with the Gateway Constraint Policy would result in the potential 
mitigation measure having a significant secondary impact. 
  
As described above, and similar to the potential mitigation measure considered in the 2013 Final 
EIR, when processing of the Project resumed in 2018, the applicant proposed the addition of a 
new southbound lane on Pleasant Hill Road beginning just north of the Project site’s frontage and 
proceeding southward to become a “trap” lane for the westbound SR 24 freeway on-ramp. The 
Addendum concluded that the addition of the trap lane would improve traffic conditions on 
southbound Pleasant Hill Road, and would result in a less-than-significant impact related to LOS 
at the Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard intersection, unlike the Project Variant, under which this 
impact would be significant and unavoidable in the a.m. peak hour under Cumulative (2040) Plus 
Project Variant conditions.  
 
The Addendum also concluded that under Cumulative (2040) Plus Project conditions, the delay 
index impact in the northbound direction on Pleasant Hill Road in the p.m. peak hour would be 
significant and unavoidable either with or without the additional southbound “trap” lane. The 
Addendum concluded that the delay index impact southbound on Pleasant Hill in the a.m. peak 
hour would be less than significant under the Project with the additional lane, but would be 
significant and unavoidable under the Project Variant without the additional lane under Cumulative 
(2040) Plus Project Variant conditions. 
 
The LPMC cannot make a final decision with respect to the Gateway Constraint Policy, but rather 
will be making a recommendation to CCTA, which will be acting as a responsible agency under 
CEQA.  As a responsible agency, the CCTA can rely upon the Final EIR and Addendum certified 
by and adopted by the City of Lafayette, as lead agency, for purposes of compliance with the 
environmental review requirements of CEQA if it approves the proposed amendment to the 
Gateway Constraint Policy.  As explained above, the Final EIR and Addendum analyzed the 
transportation and circulation impacts, and other environmental impacts, including growth-
inducing impacts, that potentially could occur under the proposed Project with the additional lane, 
as well as the Project Variant without the additional lane, and therefore analyzed the potential 
impacts of a decision by CCTA to approve the proposed Gateway Constraint Policy amendment.  
Further, notwithstanding the pendency of litigation by a party other than CCTA challenging the 
Project’s Final EIR and Addendum, those documents must be assumed by the CCTA, as a 
responsible agency, to comply with CEQA.  (Public Resources Code Section 21167.3; 14 Cal 
Code Regs. Section 15233). 
 
 
NEXT STEPS 
 
The LPMC and SWAT have already provided comments before the EIR was finalized in 2013, 
and both were updated in February of 2020 that the Project was working its way through 
Lafayette’s approval process and could return for action to amend the Lamorinda Action Plan if 
the Project was approved.   

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 28



 
Now that the Project has been approved by Lafayette’s City Council, the City recognizes one of 
the vehicle traffic impacts violates the CCTA’s MTSOs.  This will be true under Cumulative (2040) 
Plus Project conditions for the northbound Pleasant Hill Road traffic in the p.m. peak travel times 
(either with or without the southbound trap lane), and for southbound Pleasant Hill Road traffic in 
the a.m. peak travel times (only if the southbound trap lane is not built).  However, the Lamorinda 
Action Plan states: 
  

Under adopted CCTA policy, exceedance of an MTSO does not constitute a 
compliance issue with the Growth Management Program. There is no 
consequence to local jurisdictions if an MTSO is exceeded over time and not the 
result of a single project. - Lamorinda Action Plan (Sept. 2017) on page 69 

 
Since the exceedance of an MTSO is a combination of the impacts of regional growth and the 
Project, the language in the above excerpt suggests there will not be consequences associated 
with the action from CCTA. However, peak time delay will likely increase at this already congested 
location that connects two schools and a freeway on-ramp/off-ramp.  

 
Building the additional lane would conflict with the Gateway Constraint Policy by increasing 
vehicle capacity along the Pleasant Hill Road corridor, albeit for a brief portion of the roadway. 
The Addendum identified Mitigation Measure TRAF-22, which must be implemented pursuant to 
the MMRP, and which requires that the applicant either (a) obtain approval of amendments to the 
Lamorinda Action Plan such that there is no longer a conflict, obtain approval of an exception to 
the Gateway Constraint Policy for the Project's proposed additional southbound through lane, or 
obtain a determination that the proposed additional through lane does not conflict with the 
Gateway Constraint Policy, by LPMC, SWAT, and the CCTA Board, or (b) proceed with the 
Project Variant, which would not include the additional southbound through lane. Unlike a General 
Plan policy conflict, the City does not solely control the ability to amend the Gateway Constraint 
Policy. Amendment of the Policy, or obtaining an exception or a determination as described 
above, requires the City and the applicant to work with the other jurisdictions that comprise the 
LPMC, RTPCs, and CCTA.  
 
The main goal of the Gateway Constraint Policy is to dis-incentivize vehicles from using local 
roads and to keep them on the freeway system. If the trap lane is built, it will slightly improve flow 
for southbound Pleasant Hill Road during peak travel times. As a possible strategy to control 
traffic flow, the City can adjust the signal timing on Pleasant Hill Road at Rancho View Dr. and 
the subsequent four signals before WB SR-24 to keep it at current travel times. This scenario 
allows traffic to be constrained at the entrance and throughout the Pleasant Hill Road corridor 
even though a short-segment trap lane would be added at the exit of the corridor. 
 
Staff recommends LPMC forward to SWAT the proposed amendment to the Lamorinda Action 
Plan, which would allow the trap lane to be built, because the installation of the trap lane: 
 

1. Will mitigate the impacts of traffic from the approved Terraces Project for southbound 
Pleasant Hill Road during a.m. peak travel times. 

2. May help reduce oversaturated traffic conditions at the intersection of Pleasant Hill Road 
at Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard while still constraining or metering traffic entering the 
City from the north with signal timing. 

3. Will provide additional capacity to evacuate residents throughout the Pleasant Hill Road 
corridor in the event of an emergency. 

 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 29



While the developer proposed adding the southbound trap lane to mitigate additional traffic from 
the Project, staff believes that the additional capacity for evacuating the corridor via southbound 
Pleasant Hill Road toward SR 24 may be the most compelling reason to allow the trap lane to be 
built.  During public hearings, both the Planning Commissioners and City Council members heard 
numerous public commenters express concern with evacuation procedures and limited road 
capacity should the Pleasant Hill Road corridor area need to be evacuated during a fire or any 
other emergency.  Although many commenters were expressing this concern as a reason to deny 
the Terraces Project, a supplemental analysis prepared by TJKM at the request of some of the 
Planning Commissioners demonstrated that the new through lane would reduce evacuation times 
to SR 24. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. CCTA Growth Management Program (GMP) Action Plan Update Process Flowchart 
2. Terraces of Lafayette Site Plan – Annotated  
3. Lamorinda Action Plan 
4. Traffic Impact Study Report – Terraces of Lafayette 
5. Addendum to the Terraces of Lafayette Environmental Impact Report (May 2020) 

Including: 
Appendix A – On-site Structures Survey & Demolition Permit 
Appendix B – Biological Resources 
Appendix C – Air Quality & Greenhouse Gas Technical Assessment 
Appendix D – Traffic Impact Study (see Item 4, above) 
Appendix E – Geotechnical Study 
Appendix F – Noise Collection Data & Analysis 

 
6. Revisions to the Addendum to the Terraces of Lafayette Environmental Impact Report 

(June 22, 2020) 
7. Terraces of Lafayette Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
8. TJKM Memorandum on TIS Data Sets and Evacuation Modeling (June 22, 2020) 

 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 30

https://www.dropbox.com/home/LPMC%20-%20The%20Terraces?preview=2.+Lamorinda+Action+Plan.pdf
https://www.dropbox.com/home/LPMC%20-%20The%20Terraces?preview=3.+Terraces_Traffic_Impact_Study_Report_2020-01-07.pdf
https://www.dropbox.com/home/LPMC%20-%20The%20Terraces?preview=4.+Addendum+to+the+Terraces+of+Lafayette+EIR+May+2020.pdf
https://www.dropbox.com/home/LPMC%20-%20The%20Terraces?preview=4A.+Appendix+A+On-Site+Structures+Survey+and+Demolition+Permit.pdf
https://www.dropbox.com/home/LPMC%20-%20The%20Terraces?preview=4B.+Appendix+B+Biological+Resources.pdf
https://www.dropbox.com/home/LPMC%20-%20The%20Terraces?preview=4C.+Appendix+C+Air+Quality+and+Greenhouse+Gas+Technical+Assessment+%5B051120%5D.pdf
https://www.dropbox.com/home/LPMC%20-%20The%20Terraces?preview=4E.+Appendix+E+Geotechnical+Study.pdf
https://www.dropbox.com/home/LPMC%20-%20The%20Terraces?preview=4E.+Appendix+E+Geotechnical+Study.pdf
https://www.dropbox.com/home/LPMC%20-%20The%20Terraces?preview=5.+Revisions+to+the+Addendum_Terraces+of+Lafayette+EIR%2C+Impact+Sciences%2C+6-22-20.pdf
https://www.dropbox.com/home/LPMC%20-%20The%20Terraces?preview=5.+Revisions+to+the+Addendum_Terraces+of+Lafayette+EIR%2C+Impact+Sciences%2C+6-22-20.pdf
https://www.dropbox.com/home/LPMC%20-%20The%20Terraces?preview=6.+Terraces+of+Lafayette+Mitigation+Monitoring+and+Reporting+Program+-rev-2020-06-30.pdf
https://www.dropbox.com/home/LPMC%20-%20The%20Terraces?preview=7.+TJKM+Memo+on+TIS+Data+Sets+and+Evacuation+Modeling+%E2%80%93+2020-06-22.pdf


Gateway Constraint 
Policy

Lamorinda Action 
Plan

City of Lafayette Request 
Amendment to Gateway Constraint 
Policy and Lamorinda Action Plan

Lamorinda Program Management 
Committee (LPMC) TAC & 

Committee review and make 
recommendation to either support 
or oppose the request to Amend 

the Action Plan

CCTA Board Action to 
Approve Amended Action 

Plan

RTPCs provide 
comments and 
identify policies 

in opposition 
and seek 
changes

CCTA Board review SWAT 
Committee Recommendation

Amended Gateway 
Constraint Policy 
and Lamorinda 

Action Plan

Updated Action Plan compliant 
with Growth Management Plan 

(GMP)

GMP Implementation Guide: 
“Updated Action Plan to be 

developed by RTPC in cooperation 
with local jurisdictions”

Comments 
provided to 

originating RTPC 
to revise and 

respond 

Action Plan Updates:
- 1995 (1st), 1998, 2000, 2008, 2017

Updated 11/25/20

Circulate to 
RTPC (Regional 
Transportation 

Planning 
Committee) for 

Review

Southwest Area Transportation 
Committee Technical Advisory 
Committee (SWAT TAC) review 

Request for Amended Action Plan

SWAT Committee review LPMC 
recommendation and make 

recommendation to either support 
or oppose the request to Amend 

the Action Plan

 Gateway Constraint 
Policy and 

Lamorinda Action 
Plan unchanged 

NO

YES

NOTE:
Regional Transportation Planning 
Committee (RTPC): SWAT 
(Southwest County) Committee 
covers the Lamorinda Project 
Management Committee (LPMC).  
Also referred to as “Regional 
Committees.”

RTPCS act in an advisory capacity 
and provide recommendations to  
the CCTA Board.  The final 
decisions are made by the CCTA 
Board.

CCTA Growth Management Program (GMP) 
Action Plan Update Process

Attachment 1TRANSPLAN Packet Page 31



BIKE L
ANE

BIKE LANE

HIGHWAY 24

DEER HILL RD

PL
EA

SA
NT 

HILL
 R

D

H

CLUB
HO

USE

I

E
B

C

D

G
L

K

F M

N

A

J ACALANES  AVE

PO
O

L

DEER HILL RD

NEW
 10

' W
ID

E 
MULT

I-U
SE

 T
RAI

L

NE
W

 1
0' 

W
ID

E 
M

UL
TI

-U
SE

 T
RA

IL

EX
PA

ND
ED

 L
OAD

IN
G &

 B
US

 T
UR

N-
OUT

NE
W

 S
B 

TH
RU

 L
AN

E

NE
W

 S
B 

TH
RU

 L
AN

E

NE
W

 R
T 

LA
NE

NEW
 F

REE
W

AY
 T

RAP
 LA

NE

BI
KE
 L
AN
E

BIKE LANE

HIGHWAY 24

DEER HILL RD

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
H

IL
L 

R
D

H

CLUB

HOUSE

I

E

B

C

D

G

L

K

F

M

N

A

J

ACALANES  AVE

POOL

DEER HILL RD

N
EW

 1
0'

 W
ID

E 
M

U
LT

I-U
SE

 T
R

AI
L

N
EW

 1
0'

 W
ID

E 
M

U
LT

I-U
SE

 T
R

AI
L

EX
PA

N
D

ED
 L

O
AD

IN
G

 &
 B

U
S 

TU
R

N
-O

U
T

N
EW

 S
B 

TH
R

U
 L

AN
E

N
EW

 S
B 

TH
R

U
 L

AN
E

N
EW

 R
T 

LA
N

E

N
EW

 F
R

EE
W

AY
TR

AP
 L

AN
E

Incorporation of 2.1 
acres of Native Blue 

Wildrye Grassland 
(former S/U impact 

BIO-5)

Driveway moved  
±100’ west

Original 2011 
Proposal driveway

Original 2011 
Proposal driveway

Pedestrian improvements
Grassland mitigation
Left-turn improvements
Right-turn improvements
Freeway “trap lane”
Bicycle lane
Bus/turn-out traffi

Left turn-in 
prohibited; 

outbound refuge 
lane added

Internal walkway 
added

New right turn lane 
(former S/U TRAF-1)

Refined site plan to minimize
impact to natural drainage:  

fill at creek eliminated; bridge
crossing of creek added; and 

parking area reconfigure

New left turn 
pocket

Driveway moved ±80’ 
west for stacking 
of left turns onto 
Pleasant Hill Rd.

Expanded loading and 
bus turn-out area

Right-in/right-out access; 
Removal of median break
(former S/U TRAF-11)

Extended left-turn pocket
(former S/U TRAF-1)

New freeway trap lane
(former S/U TRAF-11  
and TRAF-13)

Bike lane extended 
from Deer Hill to 
on-ramp

New 10-foot wide 
multi-use trail

Annotated Site Plan, June 2019

Attachment 2

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 32



Lamorinda Program Management Committee (LPMC) Meeting 

– January 11, 2021 

 

Communication Received from the Public as of December 7, 

2020 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 33



1

Jason Chen

From: Kristen Altbaum <altbaum@icloud.com>
Sent: Friday, December 4, 2020 1:35 PM
To: Robbins, Joanne; Matt Kelly; riwasaki@ccta.net; Jason Chen; Bobadilla, Lisa; Amaral, 

Darlene; supervisorandersen@bos.cccounty.us; supervisormitchoff@bos.cccounty.us
Subject: Massive Constituent mistrust of the CCTA/LPMC/SWAT will occur over faulty Gateway 

Policy changes - Focus and Meaningful policy changes needed NOW

CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Be careful when clicking links or opening attachments! 
CCTA, Joanne, LPMC,   
 
Joanne, Please send to transportation, staff, and Council, 
 
REGARDING: proposed faulty Gateway Policy change for Pleasant Hill Rd, Lafayette will lead to major 
constituent mistrust of our County’s highest transportation staff  
 
This letter urges LPMC to DENY the faulty gateway policy change intended to promote construction of a solo 
commuter turn lane that TJMK said "will not translate to higher throughput for the southbound through 
movement at this point” per the Pleasant Hill Rd corridor study in 
2017 https://link.edgepilot.com/s/1515bf87/cEi8Yx3q70GdvxH1t_IS4A?u=https://www.lovelafayette.org/home
/showdocument?id=3995%26fbclid=IwAR3SS39GJmflhc2xfcpdykIB9dAEcgW9G4BQZvOs3NJPtJ9AbozzU4
GS340 and was only promoted by TJKM once they were hired by the developer to prove his project had 
insignificant effects at the intersection. TJKM is deemed biased and untrustworthy by constituents for multiple 
reasons.  
 
 
Gaining LPMC’s approval is the developer's tactic to further his case in court against the citizen action 
group Save Lafayette. LPMC's approval, PRIOR to the courts deciding the legality of this project 1) makes 
LMPC appear to be representatives of the developer, versus constituents, and 2) is reckless in promoting 
infrastructure that will be useless for efficiency and dangerous for the safety of commuters and pedestrians.  
 
 
LPMC is urged to consider the following recommendations: 
 
 
STEP ONE: 
 
 
Decide NOTHING until the courts have made its decision and appeals have been exhausted.  
 
 
STEP TWO: 
 
 
After the courts approve OR deny this project, change the Gateway Policy to reflect meaningful infrastructure 
improvements that will actually aid peak commuter efficiency, including for students who already have much 
difficulty getting to local schools (sometimes 45 minutes over 3 miles - Lafayette has ample evidence of this) 
and promote safety.  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 34



2

 
 
Per https://link.edgepilot.com/s/3d47911b/qq3L7yLGoUe2r8vQqcXnLw?u=https://nacto.org/, this is achieved 
by:  
 
 
1) promoting a carpool/bus only lane for the 30 minutes to 1 hour before school. Most students get to school by 
bus/carpool; and jurisdictions should provide lane incentives to get commuters to carpool and take buses - this 
achieves efficiency without inviting more solo traffic from 680 
 
 
2) promoting SAFE/PROTECTED bike and pedestrian lanes - O’Brien’s proposed bike lanes are deadly - and 
completely need to be re-concptualized BEFORE precious resources are spent.  
 
 
3) understanding WAZE effects on this corridor: Building more SOLO short segment or turn lanes - OPENING 
CAPACITY - will encourage MORE solo commuters - via traffic app algorithms - to bypass the freeway and 
use PH Rd., which actually negates intended efficiency and causes significant delays for both local N.E. 
Lafayette residents and Pleasant Hill residents who buffer this corridor. It also creates hazardous/boxed in 
conditions during emergencies. 
 
 
4) promote pedestrian bridges (if the project is approved by the courts). Currently, few pedestrians need to cross 
at this intersection:  
315 units will potentially add a minimum of a few hundred kids to crosswalks that are currently unused (across 
Deer Hill to Springhill elementary); or barely used (across PH Rd to the Shell Station). The effects of these 
added Terraces student pedestrians were admittedly NOT studied by TJKM and will cause additional, 
significant delays to an already grade F intersection. Do you want all of these new students walking next to 
more lanes of solo traffic that YOU approve? Do you want more lanes of solo traffic across from a high school? 
44,000 cars per day use this corridor. Do you want to encourage MORE cars to bypass 680 in favor of our local 
corridor and home to two schools?  
 
 
Approval of this lane via a change to the Gateway Policy is reckless and is only being promoted to 
appease the developer.  
 
 
Please do your due diligence and support meaningful gateway policies and meaningful infrastructure to 
keep our county moving and our students safe. We count on you to achieve this outcome and will only 
support CCTA objectives if the bureaucracy underneath it supports us. There are 20,000 of us who use 
this corridor and one developer outside your county jurisdiction - you decide who’s support is more 
important to YOUR objectives. I will be educating voters to your decision. If you want to pass additional 
taxes on to residents of your county, we won’t support you if we don’t trust you. Aiding developers at the 
expense of voters does not help your cause.  
 
 
Sincerely, 
Kristen Altbaum 
NE Lafayette resident who has studied and advocated for meaningful efficiency and safety for students since 
2016.  
925-285-8309 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 35



3

https://link.edgepilot.com/s/a046b63a/2HUKx6KaYE6jjx4S9TYGsQ?u=https://www.facebook.com/groups/175
3415531541790 Lafayette for School and Evacuation Routes 

Public group 
 ꞏ 
397 members 

 
 
Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the link will be 
analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to proceed to the destination. If 
suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 36



1

Jason Chen

From: Kristen Altbaum <altbaum@icloud.com>
Sent: Friday, December 4, 2020 12:05 PM
To: Jason Chen
Subject: Re: LPMC 3rd lane mitigation - please deny

CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Be careful when clicking links or opening attachments! 
REGARDING: Gateway Policy change for Pleasant Hill Rd, Lafayette   
 
LPMC,  
 
Happy holidays.  
 
This letter urges you to DENY the construction of a solo commuter turn lane that TJMK said "will not translate 
to higher throughput for the southbound through movement at this point” per the Pleasant Hill Rd corridor study 
in 
2017 https://link.edgepilot.com/s/a5f85d11/CeRAzI4ydUiuLx64U2KCAQ?u=https://www.lovelafayette.org/ho
me/showdocument?id=3995%26fbclid=IwAR3SS39GJmflhc2xfcpdykIB9dAEcgW9G4BQZvOs3NJPtJ9Abozz
U4GS340 and was only promoted by TJKM once they were hired by the developer.  
 
 
Gaining your approval is the developer's tactic to further his case in court against the citizen action group 
Save Lafayette. Your approval, PRIOR to the courts deciding the legality of this project, makes you a 
representative of the developer versus constituents and is reckless in promoting infrastructure that will be 
useless for efficiency and dangerous for the safety of commuters and pedestrians.  
 
 
Please consider the following recommendations: 
 
 
STEP ONE: 
 
 
Decide NOTHING until the courts have made its decision and appeals have been exhausted.  
 
 
STEP TWO: 
 
 
After the courts approve OR deny this project, change the Gateway Policy to reflect meaningful infrastructure 
improvements that will actually aid peak commuter efficiency, including for students who already have much 
difficulty getting to local schools (sometimes 45 minutes over 3 miles - Lafayette has ample evidence of this) 
and promote safety.  
 
 
Per https://link.edgepilot.com/s/8e55002d/AgLE4g-Wck_jYHTR6VnNtA?u=https://nacto.org/, this is achieved 
by:  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 37



2

 
 
1) promoting a carpool/bus only lane for the 30 minutes to 1 hour before school. Most students get to school by 
bus/carpool; and jurisdictions should provide lane incentives to get commuters to carpool and take buses - this 
achieves efficiency without inviting more solo traffic from 680 
 
 
2) promoting SAFE/PROTECTED bike and pedestrian lanes - O’Brien’s proposed bike lanes are deadly - and 
completely need to be re-evaluated BEFORE precious resources are spent.  
 
 
3) understanding WAZE effects on this corridor: Building more SOLO short segment or turn lanes - OPENING 
CAPACITY - will encourage MORE solo commuters - via traffic app algorithms - to bypass the freeway and 
use PH Rd., which actually negates intended efficiency and causes significant delays for local residents. It 
also creates hazardous/boxed in conditions during emergencies. 
 
 
4) promote pedestrian bridges (if the project is approved by the courts). Currently, few pedestrians need to cross 
at this intersection:  
315 units will potentially add a few hundred kids to crosswalks that are currently unused (across Deer Hill to 
Springhill elementary); or barely used (across PH Rd to the Shell Station). The effects of these added Terraces 
student pedestrians were admittedly NOT studied by TJKM. Do you want all of these new students walking 
next to more lanes of solo traffic that YOU approve? Do you want more lanes of solo traffic across from a high 
school? 44,000 cars per day use this corridor. Do you want to encourage MORE cars to bypass 680 in favor of 
our local corridor and home to two schools?  
 
 
Approval of this lane is reckless and is only being promoting to appease a developer.  
 
 
Please do your due diligence and support meaningful gateway policies and meaningful infrastructure to keep 
our County moving and our students safe. We count on you to achieve this outcome.  
 
 
Thanks, 
Kristen Altbaum 
NE Lafayette resident who has studied and advocated for meaningful efficiency and safety for students since 
2016.  
925-285-8309 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the link will be 
analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to proceed to the destination. If 
suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 38



1

Jason Chen

From: Roger Chili <rchili@hotmail.com>
Sent: Saturday, December 5, 2020 12:55 PM
To: mkelly@ccta.net; Jason Chen; supervisorandersen@bos.cccounty.us; 

supervisormitchoff@ccccounty.us; lbobadilla@sanramon.ca.gov; 
damaral@sanramon.ca.gov; riwasaki@ccta.net

Cc: district5@bos.cccounty.us
Subject: LPMC Meeting 12/7

CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Be careful when clicking links or opening attachments! 
LPMC and CCTA, 
 
I strongly urge you to DENY the gateway policy change intended to add a right turn lane on Pleasant Hill Road, 
turning right onto Deerhill Rd, the subject of Monday's meeting. 
 
As a resident of NE Lafayette, I have advocated for traffic improvements along the Pleasant Hill Corridor for a 
few years, and I am certain that this right turn lane will: 
 
1) Not improve traffic flows in this corridor...in fact, it will lead to more traffic as I will explain below, and 
 
2) Most importantly, this turn lane will LIKELY result in car vs. pedestrian collisions, injuries and possibly 
deaths, I will also explain below. 
 
Residents of NE Lafayette have advocated, for years, for traffic improvements along the Pleasant Hill 
Corridor.  We learned, in today's world of WAZE, GoogleMaps, etc., improvements to this particular 
intersection will not any meaningful benefit (just as TJKM argued before they we paid by the Terraces 
developer to have a different view).  Any improvements will simply draw more cars to the intersection, not 
fewer, result=no improvement.    For those not familiar with this intersection, the majority of commuters from 
further north and east of this intersection take Hwy 680 to Hwy 24 to travel to Oakland/SF, etc.  Of course, 
they check their apps, and detour onto Taylor Blvd/Pleasant Hill Road through Pleasant Hill and Lafayette if 
they can save a few minutes.  In the past several years, there are literally thousands of additional cars taking 
this route and it has become very challenging to use in the mornings, taking Lafayette residents 30‐45 minutes 
to get their children to school in the morning, when it used to take 10‐15 minutes, and also landlocking and 
delaying hundreds of residents of Pleasant Hill who have no feasible traffic alternative.  This turn lane will not 
improve traffic. 
 
What we have also noticed over the past several years is that drivers, local and out‐of‐town, get very 
frustrated with the traffic on this corridor and resort to numerous poor behaviors...crossing double yellow 
lines to pass traffic, sometimes around stopped school busses, high‐rates of speeding when the opportunity 
presents itself, and outright dangerous behaviors at the intersection of Pleasant Hill and Deerhill.  Today, 
without a Terraces project, there is no pedestrian traffic going across Deerhill toward the elementary 
school.  When the Terraces project is approved, there will be 100‐200 students moving from the project to the 
local elementary school, crossing this intersection, in the peak of the morning commute.  Frustrated drivers, 
looking to turn right onto Deerhill to get the BART station, or beyond, would be turning right directly into the 
student crossing area after spending 30 minutes in bumper‐to‐bumper traffic.  At that intersection there is 
already a lot to navigate, including the new bike lanes which none of us even understand.  There WILL be an 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 39



2

accident if we encourage a speedier right turn lane at this intersection, please do not greenlight a disaster 
waiting to happen. 
 
We have also learned that any improvements at/near this intersection must be studied in the scheme of the 
entire route from Highway 680 onto Pleasant Hill Rd and Hwy 4 through Gregory Lane and Reliez Valley Road 
through this intersection to be meaningful.  One‐offs, like this lane suggestion, will not be helpful, it is honestly 
surprising that a traffic consultant would make such a suggestion, and that the city would support it...when we 
initially engaged with the City of Lafayette on our traffic challenges we too thought that a turn lane would be 
helpful, but the city's traffic engineers and staff were firmly opposed, tauting a TJKM study as supporting their 
position.  Nothing has changed here except for money and politics, I encourage you not to take the bait, and I 
would absolutely delighted to take any of you on a drive through the area and neighborhoods to explain how 
this really looks and plays out once we are post‐covid and why this lane is such a bad idea. 
 
I appreciate your leadership. 
 
Thank you, 
Roger C 
 
 
 

 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 40



1

Jason Chen

From: Richard Drury <richard@lozeaudrury.com>
Sent: Sunday, December 6, 2020 5:41 PM
To: Jason Chen; lbobadilla@sanramon.ca.gov; damaral@sanramon.ca.gov
Cc: Laurel Stanley; Mike Griffiths; Scott Sommer
Subject: Opposition to Amendment to Gateway Constraint Policy
Attachments: 2020.12.07.LPMC Letter-Gateway Constraint Amendment.pdf

CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Be careful when clicking links or opening attachments! 
Lamorinda Program Management Committee (LPMC): 
  

Attached please find the comments of Save Lafayette opposing the proposed amendment to 
the Gateway Constraint Policy.  The attached comments concern the proposed Amendment 
(“Amendment”) to the Southwest Area Transportation Committee (SWAT) for Request to Amend the 
Lamorinda Action Plan Gateway Constraint Policy (GCP) for Pleasant Hill Road (page 57, 3rd 
paragraph of Lamorinda Action Plan, 2017).  This matter will be considered on December 7, 2020 as 
Agenda Item 6.  We urge the LPMC to decline to consider this proposed Amendment until after it has 
been reviewed under the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), Pub. Res. Code section 
21000.  The Amendment is a discretionary action that may have significant adverse environmental 
impacts.  Therefore CEQA review is required before any decision can be made on the Amendment. 

Richard Drury 
Counsel for Save Lafayette  

 
--  
Richard Drury  
Lozeau Drury LLP 
1939 Harrison Street, Suite 150 
Oakland, CA 94612 
(510) 836-4200 
richard@lozeaudrury.com 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 41



 
 
BY E-MAIL ONLY 
 
December 7, 2020 
 
Lamorinda Program Management Committee 
c/o Jason Chen 
Orinda City Hall 
22 Orinda Way 
Orinda, CA 94563 
e-mail: JChen@cityoforinda.org 
 
Re: Opposition to Proposed Amendment to Southwest Area Transportation 

Committee (SWAT) for Request to Amend the Lamorinda Action Plan 
Gateway Constraint Policy for Pleasant Hill Road (page 57, 3rd paragraph of 
Lamorinda Action Plan, 2017).  Request for CEQA Review.  

  
Lamorinda Program Management Committee (LPMC): 
 

I am writing on behalf of Save Lafayette, a non-profit organization composed of 
residents living in and around the City of Lafayette (“City”) concerning the proposed 
Amendment (“Amendment”) to the Southwest Area Transportation Committee (SWAT) for 
Request to Amend the Lamorinda Action Plan Gateway Constraint Policy (GCP) for 
Pleasant Hill Road (page 57, 3rd paragraph of Lamorinda Action Plan, 2017).  This matter 
will be considered on December 7, 2020 as Agenda Item 6.  We urge the LPMC to 
decline to consider this proposed Amendment until after it has been reviewed under the 
California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), Pub. Res. Code section 21000.  The 
Amendment is a discretionary action that may have significant adverse environmental 
impacts.  Therefore CEQA review is required before any decision can be made on the 
Amendment.  

 
A. Proposed Amendment.  

 
The proposal is to amend the GCP to state: 
 
The two southbound through lanes on Pleasant Hill Road – Taylor Boulevard are 
proposed as a gateway constraint.  The Gateway Constraint Policy would prohibit 
the addition of any through lanes, except short-link segments providing access to 
SR-24. 
  
The stated purpose of this amendment is to “allow construction of the proposed 

southbound trap lane” on Pleasant Hill Road.  This trap lane would violate the Gateway 
Constraint Policy as currently written and adopted.   

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 42



Opposition to Amendment to Gateway Constraints Policy 
December 7, 2020 
Page 2 of 7 

 
B. Gateway Constraint Policy.  

 
The Lamorinda Action Plan Update explains that the Gateway Constraint Policy 
was adopted to limit growth and growth-inducing impacts in the Lamorinda area. 
(Dec. 12, 2008).  The Action plan explains at page 27: 

 
5.3 Proposed Gateway Constraint Policy. A key new strategy proposed in this 
Action Plan for Lamorinda, is to adopt a “gateway constraint” policy that controls 
peak-hour, peak-direction vehicle flows on major roadways leading into Lamorinda. 
Such a policy, if adopted, would set maximum lane widths for SR 24 inbound 
gateways, and similarly, would identify limits on number of lanes for arterials, such 
as Pleasant Hill Road and Camino Pablo. Initial evaluation indicates that adoption 
of a Gateway Constraint policy could be beneficial to Lamorinda residents, 
because such a policy would reserve some room on the regional system, so that 
access to the system will be maintained for traffic that has an origin and/or 
destination in Lamorinda. Furthermore, the modeling analysis indicates that 
adoption of a Gateway Constraint policy may be the key to achieving the MTSOs 
for Lamorinda. The south county jurisdictions of SWAT (Danville, San Ramon, and 
Contra Costa County) have a Gateway Constraint policy that has been in place 
since 1995, when the first Tri-Valley Transportation Plan/Action Plan was adopted. 
The policy has been successfully implemented through the TVTC, whose Contra 
Costa jurisdictions fall under the purview of SWAT as the designated RTPC under 
Measure C/J. The gateway constraint policies of the Tri-Valley Action Plan are 
available for review in the Draft Tri-Valley Action Plan, issued February 26 by 
TVTC.  

 
Pleasant Hill Road: The two southbound through lanes on Pleasant Hill Road–
Taylor Boulevard are proposed as a Gateway Constraint (Location to be 
Determined). Pleasant Hill Road is two lanes in each direction from its merge with 
Taylor Boulevard south to SR 24 with additional turn lanes at most intersections. 
The first signalized intersection south of the Pleasant Hill Road-Taylor Boulevard 
merge is at the “T” intersection with Rancho View Drive. Other major intersections 
are at Green Valley Road, Reliez Valley Road, Spring Hill Road and Stanley 
Road/Deer Hill Road. Each of these signalized intersections has left- and right-turn 
lanes on Pleasant Hill Road. The capacity constraints on arterials providing access 
to the Lamorinda area are determined by the number of lanes and the timing of 
signals at intersections near the entry point. On Pleasant Hill Road southbound 
during the AM peak period, capacity is determined primarily by the timing of signals 
at the four major intersections and how much green time is given to Pleasant Hill 
Road. While the gateway policy addresses physical characteristics at key 
intersections, the timing of signals can also act as a metering point, as discussed 
below in the Traffic Management strategy section. (p.28). 

 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 43



Opposition to Amendment to Gateway Constraints Policy 
December 7, 2020 
Page 3 of 7 

 
C. The Proposed Amendment is Subject to CEQA. 

 
CEQA review is required for all discretionary “projects” that may have significant 

environmental impacts. The California Environmental Quality Act, Pub. Res. Code § 
21000 et seq., applies to agency projects that may have an adverse environmental 
impact.  (Friends of Mammoth v. Board of Supervisors, 8 Cal.3d 247, 259 (1972); Friends
of B Street v. City of Hayward, 106 Cal.App.3d 988, 1003 (1980) (project that included 
removal of trees caused significant effect on environment).)   

 
1. The GCP Amendment is Discretionary. 
 

 There is no question that the Amendment is discretionary since the LPMC is not 
required to Amend the GCP. CEQA applies to discretionary projects and approvals. (§ 
21080, subds. (a), (b)(1); Guideline § 15268, subd. (a); Health First v. March Joint Powers 
Authority (2009) 174 Cal.App.4th 1135, 1142-1143 [96 Cal. Rptr. 3d 290].)  "The statutory 
distinction between discretionary and purely ministerial projects implicitly recognizes that 
unless a public agency can shape the project in a way that would respond to concerns 
raised in an EIR, or its functional equivalent, environmental review would be a 
meaningless exercise." (Mountain Lion Foundation v. Fish & Game Com. (1997) 16 
Cal.4th 105.) 
 
 The CEQA Guidelines describe "discretionary" projects as those requiring "the 
exercise of judgment or deliberation when the public agency or body decides to approve 
or disapprove a particular activity, as distinguished from situations where the public 
agency or body merely has to determine whether there has been conformity with 
applicable statutes, ordinances, or regulations." (Guidelines, § 15357.)  Like the 
Guidelines, case law describes a decision as discretionary when it involves relatively 
personal decisions addressed to the sound judgment and enlightened choice of the 
administrator. (People v. Department of Housing & Community Dev. (1975) 45 
Cal.App.3d 185, 193; see also, e.g., Citizens for Non-Toxic Pest Control v. Department of 
Food & Agriculture (1986) 187 Cal.App.3d 1575, 1583 [decision discretionary where 
agency determined whether pest could be eradicated "and what method would be most 
effective in doing so"].) 
 
 Since the LPMC is not required to adopt the Amendment, it is a discretionary 
action.  

 
2. The GCP Amendment is a “Project.” 

 
Under CEQA, the term “project” includes the “issuance of rules, regulations, plans, 

or other general criteria.”  (14 CCR §15168(a)(3); Bozung v. Local Agency Formation 
Comm’n (1975) 13 Cal.3d 263, 277-279; Dunn-Edwards v. BAAQMD, 9 Cal.App.4th at 
658-659.)  The courts have held that CEQA applies to the promulgation of regulations 
unless there is some basis to find the agency exempt.  (Pub. Resources Code §§ 21000 
(g), 21001(f)&(g), 21092, 21106; 14 Cal. Code Regs. §15168(a)(3); Wildlife Alive v. 
Chickering (1976) 18 Cal.3d 190, 195.).   TRANSPLAN Packet Page 44



Opposition to Amendment to Gateway Constraints Policy 
December 7, 2020 
Page 4 of 7 

 
Under CEQA, a “project” includes “an essential step leading to ultimate 

environmental impact.”  (Kaufman & Broad-South Bay, Inc. v. Morgan Hill (1992) 9 
Cal.App.4th 464, 473.)  “Agency action is not exempt from CEQA simply because it will 
not have an immediate or direct effect on the environment.  CEQA applies if it is 
reasonably foreseeable that environmental impacts will ultimately result.” (Kostka & 
Zischke, Practice Under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEB 1993), § 4.20, p. 
151, citing Bozung v. LAFCO (1975) 13 Cal.3d 263, 277.)  “If an agency’s action is a 
necessary step that starts in motion a chain of events that will foreseeably result in 
impacts to the physical environment, the activity must be treated as a project subject to 
CEQA.”  (Id.; see also Friends of Mammoth v. Board of Supervisors of Mono County 
(1972) 8 Cal.3d 247, 265 (holding that the term “project” includes not only activities 
directly involving actual physical impacts on the environment, but also activities, such as 
the approval of permits, whose environmental effects are indirect).)   

 
The stated reason for the Amendment is to “allow construction of the proposed 

southbound trap lane” on Pleasant Hill Road.  Thus, the Amendment is a “project” within 
the meaning of CEQA.  

 
3. The Amendment May Have Significant Adverse Environmental Impacts. 

 
Elite Transportation Group (ETG) has determined that the southbound trap lane 

will have significant adverse impacts on levels of service on Pleasant Hill Road and 
several area intersections.  (Exhibit A).  

 
 Also, as of July 1, 2020, CEQA requires traffic impacts to be analyzed using 
vehicle miles travelled (VMT) analysis.  CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3.  No such 
analysis has been conducted for the Amendment.  However, it is likely that the 
southbound trap lane will result in an increase in VMT by encouraging more long-range 
commuting by automobile. The burden is on the agency to conduct the required analysis 
using the legally required methodology.  Failure of the agency to conduct this analysis 
“enlarges the scope of the fair argument.”  “[U]nder CEQA, the lead agency bears a 
burden to investigate potential environmental impacts. ‘If the local agency has failed to 
study an area of possible environmental impact, a fair argument may be based on the 
limited facts in the record. Deficiencies in the record may actually enlarge the scope of fair 
argument by lending a logical plausibility to a wider range of inferences.’ (Sundstrom v. 
County of Mendocino (1988) 202 Cal. App. 3d 296, 311.) County Sanitation Dist. No. 2 v. 
County of Kern (2005) 127 Cal. App. 4th 1544).  The impact of the southbound trap lane 
has not been analyzed in any environmental impact report or negative declaration.   
 

The southbound trap lane will have growth-inducing impacts.  CEQA requires that 
a CEQA document must include a detailed statement setting forth the growth-inducing 
impacts of a proposed project.  Pub. Res. Code Section 21100(b)(5).  A proposed project 
is either directly or indirectly growth inducing if it: (1) fosters economic or population 
growth or requires additional housing; (2) removes obstacles to growth; (3) taxes 
community services or facilities to such an extent that new services or facilities would be 
necessary; or (4) encourages or facilitates other activities that cause significant TRANSPLAN Packet Page 45



Opposition to Amendment to Gateway Constraints Policy 
December 7, 2020 
Page 5 of 7 

environmental effects.  CEQA Guidelines Section 15126.2(d).  While growth inducing 
impacts of a project need not be labeled as adverse, the secondary impacts of growth 
(e.g., traffic, air pollution, etc.) may be significant and adverse.  In such cases, the 
secondary impacts of growth inducement must be disclosed as significant secondary or 
indirect impacts of the project.  The analysis required is similar in some respects to the 
analysis required to analyze impacts associated with population and housing.  The clear 
purpose of the southbound trap lane is to “foster population growth” and “remove 
obstacles to growth.”  As such, it will have growth-inducing impacts that must be analyzed 
in a CEQA document. 

 
4. The Amendment Abandons a Mitigation Measure Imposed by the GCP 

and Therefore Requires CEQA Review.  
 
The Amendment removes a mitigation measure imposed by the Gateway 

Constraints Policy intended to limit growth.  As such, it has adverse environmental 
impacts by definition that must be analyzed under CEQA.   

 
If the agency fails to implement mitigation measures required by a prior EIR, this 

requires CEQA review, even for an otherwise ministerial project.  Katzeff v. Dept. of 
Forestry (2010) 181 Cal.App.4th 601, 611, 614; Lincoln Place Tenants v. City of Los 
Angeles (2005) 130 Cal.App.4th 1491, 1507-1508.  The purpose of this requirement “is to 
ensure that feasible mitigation measures will actually be implemented as a condition of 
development, and not merely adopted and then neglected or disregarded.”  Federation of 
Hillside and Canyon Associations v. City of Los Angeles (2000) 83 Cal.App.4th 1252, 
1260-1261.  The decision to abandon an adopted mitigation measure is a discretionary 
decision. 

 
An agency fails proceed in a manner required by law when it fails to comply with 

adopted CEQA mitigation measures.  Lincoln Place, 130 Cal.App.4th at 1508, 1510 
(“[h]aving placed these conditions . . . the city cannot simply ignore them.  Mitigating 
conditions are not mere expressions of hope . . . [i]n the present case the city failed to 
proceed according to law . . .”).  “[T]his rule is applicable even if one of the smaller parts 
might require only ministerial, rather than discretionary, approval.”  Katzeff, 181 
Cal.App.4th at 611; Lincoln Place, 130 Cal.App.4th 1491, 1507 n22 (“it cannot be argued 
CEQA does not apply to the . . . demolition on the ground the demolition permits are 
ministerial acts.”)

 “[T]his rule is applicable even if one of the smaller parts might require only 
ministerial, rather than discretionary, approval.”  Katzeff, 181 Cal.App.4th at 611.  The 
Katzeff Court held at p. 614 “that where a public agency has adopted a mitigation 
measure for a project, it may not authorize destruction or cancellation of the mitigation –
whether or not the approval is ministerial . . .” This same result was reached in Lincoln
Place, 130 Cal.App.4th at 1507 n22, which holds that “it cannot be argued CEQA does not 
apply to the . . . demolition on the ground the demolition permits are ministerial acts.”  

Furthermore, in Katzeff, 118 Cal.App.4th at 606, the original mitigation conditions 
were twenty years old.  It is the granting of the new permit, ministerial or not, that triggers TRANSPLAN Packet Page 46



Opposition to Amendment to Gateway Constraints Policy 
December 7, 2020 
Page 6 of 7 

the CEQA violation.  In Katzeff, mitigation conditions from timber harvesting plans dated 
1988 and 1998 were at issue.  In 2008, real party filed an application to convert the 
timberland to an orchard.  Id. at 607.  The permit conversion was ministerial, but the Court 
held that the twenty year old measures must be enforced and stayed real party’s project.  
Id. at 615.  Otherwise, “any mitigation required by CEQA . . . could be nullified simply by 
the passage of time . . . ”  Id. at 611.  “We see no principled distinction between a 
conversion exemption sought immediately after the right to harvest under a THP has 
expired, and one sought a decade later.  Whether or not the legal right to harvest timber 
has expired, the environmental effects are presumed to remain.”  Id. at 612.  

 
In Lincoln Place, 130 Cal.App.4th at 1498, the original mitigation conditions were at 

least seven years old.  There, the mitigation conditions for a renovation project were in a 
1995 EIR.  Id.  In 2002, in connection with “ministerial” building permits, a dispute arose 
as to whether the mitigation conditions were to be followed.  The City said no.  Id.  The 
Court of Appeal disagreed, and held that the City “failed to proceed according to law” 
under CEQA by granting the permits absent compliance with the (by then) ten year old 
mitigation conditions “without stating a legitimate reason for ignoring those measures and 
without preparing and circulating a supplemental EIR.”  Id. at 1510.  The Court issued a 
permanent injunction against real party’s project until the City did so.  Id.   

 
Thus, if the agency is taking a subsequent action – even if ministerial – it must 

evaluate previously imposed mitigations which have not been met.  In Katzeff, 118 
Cal.App.4th at 614-615, the Court stayed real party’s project and ordered that the City 
revisit the issue to justify its decision on the mitigation.  In Lincoln Place, 130 Cal.App.4th 
at 1510, the court issued a writ against the City for failing “to proceed according to law” 
and a permanent injunction against real party’s project until the City made new CEQA 
findings.      

 
Since LPMC is proposing to eliminate a measures that was intended to mitigate 

growth-inducing impacts, it must first analyze the proposal and its impacts under CEQA.  
 
D. LPMC Already Determined that the Trap Lane Violates the Gateway 

Constraints Policy.  
 

In 2013, the LPMC considered an almost identical proposal to “add a third through-
lane to the existing two southbound lanes on Pleasant Hill Road in the southbound 
direction, from north of Deer Hill Road to the State Route 24 westbound onramp.”  LPMC 
determined: 

 
It appears from the information presented today that one of the proposed 
mitigations for the Terraces Project – to widen southbound Pleasant Hill Road from 
two to three lanes from Deer Hill Road to the westbound SR 24 onramp – is 
inconsistent with the Gateway Constraints Policy of the adopted Lamorinda Action 
Plan.  
 
(Exhibit B).   
 TRANSPLAN Packet Page 47



Opposition to Amendment to Gateway Constraints Policy 
December 7, 2020 
Page 7 of 7 

For the same reasons, the LPMC should reject the current proposal which conflicts 
with the Gateway Constraint Policy for the same reasons.  

 
E. LPMC Should Not Consider the Proposed Amendment Until the Newly 

Elected City Council Members are Seated. 
 

 In the November 2020 election, two new members were elected to the Lafayette 
City Council.  It is currently unknown what opinion these newly elected councilmembers 
will have on the proposed Amendment.  However, it seems ill-advised to adopt a hastily 
proposed Amendment supported by a lame-duck Lafayette City Council when a new City 
Council has already been elected and will be sworn in in a matter of weeks.  
 
 There is certainly no rush to adopt the Amendment.  The southbound land that is 
proposed is designed primarily for the proposed Terraces Project.  This Project is 
currently embroiled in litigation that is only in its initial phases.  The Project cannot 
proceed until that litigation is resolved – if ever.  In any case, the decision can certainly 
wait for the new City Council to be seated.  

 
     Sincerely, 
 
 
 
     Richard Drury 

LOZEAU DRURY LLP 
 
Cc: "Bobadilla, Lisa" <lbobadilla@sanramon.ca.gov> 
 "Amaral, Darlene" <damaral@sanramon.ca.gov> 
  
 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 48



EXHIBIT A

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 49



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ∞ Quality ∞ Reliability  
 

Modeling  Planning  Engineering  ITS       Page | 1 

Memorandum 
Date: 3/5/2020 

To: Michael Griffiths 

From: Lin Zhang, PhD, PE, TE, PTOE 
Elite Transportation Group, Inc. (ETG) 
 

Subject: Peer Review of Updated Traffic Study for the Proposed Terraces of Lafayette Project 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This memorandum provides a summary of a peer review of the updated traffic impact study prepared by 
TJKM (hereinafter referred to as updated traffic study) for the proposed Terraces of Lafayette Project 
(hereinafter referred to as proposed project). The following areas are identified by Elite Transportation 
Group, Inc. (ETG) either unmitigable or inadequate: 

 It was not clear whether the traffic analysis models used for the queueing and weaving analyses 
were calibrated to the local traffic condition.  The conclusions drawn upon the model results 
would be questionable if the models were not properly calibrated. 

 The proposed project would result in a significant and unavoidable impacts on the level of 
service at Pleasant Hill Road/Deer Hill Road intersection, as well as delay on Pleasant Hill Road. 

 The projected delay indices used in the updated traffic study significantly underestimated the 
congestion level on Pleasant Hill Road and SR 24.  

 Crossing three lanes for vehicles existing westbound SR 24 off-ramp to access the extended 
northbound left-turn lane at the intersection of Pleasant Hill Road/Deer Hill Road in this heavily 
congested short segment (approximately 600 feet only) will not only cause additional delay, but 
also pose safety risks. However, these impacts were not fully studied or mitigated. 

 For a congested and gridlocked arterial such as Pleasant Hill Road during peak hours, installing 
Emergency vehicle preemption (EVP) would not fully mitigate the impact of the proposed 
project on emergency response time.  

 The net loss of 15 parking spaces on Pleasant Hill Road would result in a significant impact on 
passenger loading. 

 The proposed bicycle lane between Deer Hill Road and SR 24 on-ramp would create major 
conflict zones between bicycles and passenger-loading vehicles, between bicycles and vehicles 
in the trap lane, and between bicycles and vehicles entering & existing the property driveway. 

 Analysis of impacts to traffic, noise, and pollution was not performed for the massive amount of 
heavy trucks in the grading stage of construction (approximately 45 heavy truck trips per hour).  

 The updated traffic study lacks an analysis to quantify the traffic impact of the proposed project 
during wildfires and PG&E’s power shut-offs. Also, an evacuation plan for the residents inside 
the Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones (VHFHSZ) needs to be developed or updated. 

 The updated traffic study omitted the analysis of the significant impact of the proposed project 
on westbound queues at the intersection of Laurel Drive/Deer Hill Road in the AM peak period 
under the Plus Project scenarios.  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 50



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ∞ Quality ∞ Reliability  
 

Modeling  Planning  Engineering  ITS       Page | 2 

 

FIELD VISIT 

To gain local knowledge of the study area, ETG conducted a field visit along Pleasant Hill Road between 
Withers Avenue and Old Tunnel Road, and Deer Hill Road between First Street and Pleasant Hill Road on 
October 22, 2019 (Tuesday), during AM peak, School peak, and PM peak periods.   

On Pleasant Hill Road, our observations indicated that it experienced the most congestion in the 
southbound direction during the AM peak period.  The southbound queue in the AM peak period 
extended as far as 1,500 feet north of Rancho View Drive.  In the PM peak period, the northbound 
Pleasant Hill Road experienced congestion near the intersection at Pleasant Hill Road and Stanley 
Blvd/Deer Hill Rd, with the longest queue extending about 2,000 feet south of this intersection. 

On Deer Hill Road, it was observed that there was an excessive left-turn queue on the westbound 
approach at the intersection of Deer Hill Road and Laurel Drive in the AM peak period.  During the PM 
peak period, the eastbound Deer Hill Road experienced severe congestion with the longest queue 
extending more than one mile from the intersection of Pleasant Hill Road/Deer Hill Road/Stanley 
Boulevard.   

ETG also conducted several travel time runs during the field visit.  Table 1 lists the average travel times 
and the delay indices in each peak direction of Pleasant Hill Road between Withers Avenue and Old 
Tunnel Road (approximately 2.8 miles).  Note that the delay indices were calculated using the estimated 
free-flow travel time from Google Maps.  Each average travel time was based on several travel time 
runs. Table 1 also lists the Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) 2017 Multimodal Traffic Service 
Objectives (MTSO) delay indices, as well as the 2019 projected delay indices calculated by TJKM. The 
delay indices will be discussed in more detail in the next section.  

Table 1.  Travel Time and Delay Index - Pleasant Hill Road 

 

PEER REVIEW FINDINGS 

Latest Traffic Data 

The updated traffic study collected the turning movement counts at all 17 study intersections on April 
30, 2019, and one intersection only at Pleasant Hill Road/Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard on May 2, 
2019.  The counts at all study intersections were later scaled up based on the day-to-day traffic variation 
at the Pleasant Hill Road/Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard intersection between April 30 and May 2, 
2019, for the analysis.  

Direction Period Average Travel 
Time (min) 

Free-Flow Travel 
Time (min) 

Delay 
Index 

2017 MTSO 
Delay Index 

2019 
Projected 

(TJKM) 
SB AM Peak 16.4 5.5 2.98 2.4 1.34 
NB School Peak 7.4 5.5 1.35 - - 
NB PM Peak 11.4 5.5 2.07 2.0 1.74 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 51



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ∞ Quality ∞ Reliability  
 

Modeling  Planning  Engineering  ITS       Page | 3 

The typical practice of collecting turning movement counts at an intersection is to collect counts on two 
midweek days and use the average for analysis.  It is not certain that it was a budget constraint that did 
not allow the new data collection to cover two days at all study intersections.  However, scaling up 
counts to a higher level would result in a more conservative analysis. 

For the signal timing data, the updated study used the latest timings at intersections on Pleasant Hill 
Road provided by the City of Lafayette.  However, for other signalized study intersections not on 
Pleasant Hill Road, default parameters were assumed, instead of using the actual signal timings, for 
unstated reasons. 

Study Area Coverage 

The study area in the updated study remains the same as the 2012 study.  Based on our field visit 
observations, this study area is sufficient for the traffic impact analysis of the proposed Terraces of 
Lafayette project. 

Analysis Methodologies 

ETG evaluated the methodologies used in the updated traffic study, including the following: 

 Traffic Forecast – The updated study used the latest CCTA Traffic Forecasting Model base year 
(2018) and future year (2040) outputs to calculate the annual average growth rate.  This growth 
rate was later applied to the adjusted 2019 counts to estimate 2040 traffic.  This is a reasonable 
and common practice. 

 Level of Service (LOS) Analysis – The updated study used the Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) 
2010 methodologies to determine LOS for the study intersections.  This is different from the 
2012 study that used the HCM 2000 methodologies, but is compliant with CCTA’s preference as 
listed in the CCTA Technical Procedures. 

 Signal Warrant – The updated study conducted peak hour signal warrant analyses for 
unsignalized intersections using the 2014 California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
(MUTCD), which is the latest version of the manual.  This is a reasonable and common practice. 

 Queuing Analysis – Similar to the 2012 study, the updated study used the simulation approach 
to conduct queuing analysis.  The simulated 95th percentile queue lengths were used to 
determine whether the existing turn-lanes provide sufficient storage.  However, it was not 
mentioned in the report whether the simulation model was calibrated to the local traffic 
condition.  Model calibration is the process of adjusting model parameters (which initially are 
defaults) to obtain a model that replicates the existing traffic conditions.  Model calibration is 
critical in that it ensures that a traffic simulation model is able to reproduce the local traffic 
condition and is proper to use for analyzing alternatives or scenarios.  For a corridor study, 
travel time is the most common performance measure that is used in model calibration.  It was 
not clear from the updated study report if the traffic analysis models were calibrated.  If the 
traffic analysis models were not calibrated, then the models would be unreliable and the 
conclusions drawn from the analysis would be questionable.  TJKM should explain the 
calibration methods used. 

 Weaving Analysis – It was concerned that the proposed project would worsen the weaving 
condition on Pleasant Hill Road between freeway ramps and nearby intersections.  The updated 
study employed a similar simulation approach as used in the 2012 study to evaluate the impact 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 52



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ∞ Quality ∞ Reliability  
 

Modeling  Planning  Engineering  ITS       Page | 4 

of the proposed project on weaving activities.  However, it was not mentioned in the report 
whether the simulation model was calibrated to the local traffic condition. 

 Delay Index – The Delay Index (DI) is an expression of the amount of time required to travel 
between two points during the peak hour as compared to the free-flow travel time baseline. The 
delay index is defined as:  =       . The updated traffic 
study estimated the 2019 delay indices for Pleasant Hill Road and SR 24 by using the 2013 MTSO 
monitoring results and growth rates between 2013 and 2019.  It was stated in the report that 
the 2017 MTSO monitoring results for Pleasant Hill Road and SR 24 overestimated the existing 
delay index, therefore, the 2013 results were used to estimate the 2019 delay index.  However, 
the 2017 MTSO monitoring results were based on INRIX data.  INRIX gathers and aggregates 
data collected from a wide range of anonymous GPS-equipped devices (e.g., smartphones), and 
thus provides much better coverage of travel time data compared to traditional travel time tach 
runs (i.e., floating car survey).  INRIX data has been validated and recognized as a reliable data 
source, and has been used by many agencies and organizations nationwide and locally in the 
Bay Area for congestion monitoring and other traffic-related projects. In addition, our travel 
time runs on Pleasant Hill Road conducted on October 22, 2019, show that the existing delay 
indices are higher but close to the 2017 monitoring results (Table 1). Therefore, our assessment 
is that the projected delay indices used in the updated traffic study significantly underestimated 
the congestion level on Pleasant Hill Road.  See below under the heading Impacts on SR 24 for 
our similar comments on the impacts on Highway 24. 

Trip Generation Calculations 

The 2012 study calculated trip generations using the ITE Trip Generation Manual, 8th Edition.  Since the 
10th edition of the Manual was published in 2017, the updated traffic study calculated trip generation 
based on the latest Manual (i.e., 10th edition).  However, because the new trip generation resulted in 
fewer trips than the original one in the 2012 study, the updated traffic study used the original trip 
generation for the analysis.  As stated in the report, the proposed project was classified as “Multifamily 
Housing (Mid-Rise)” according to the latest Manual but was classified as “Apartments” based on the 
older version of the Manual.  The change of land use classification would result in over a 25% reduction 
in trip generation, although it is unclear how such a change is warranted since we understand that half 
the buildings are 2-story and half are 3-story. The updated study report included the 10th Edition-based 
trip generation for comparison purposes only, but applied the higher trip generation used in the 2012 
study.  

We verified and confirmed that the trip generation calculations using both the 8th and 10th Edition of the 
Traffic Generation Manual in the updated traffic study report are valid.  

Trip Distribution Assumptions 

The updated study retained the trip distribution that was manually estimated in the 2012 study, because 
“it was determined that the ‘plus project’ model results could not be relied upon”.  It was not certain if it 
was caused by the model not being sensitive to the proposed project. 

We reviewed the assumed trip distribution and they are reasonable given the traffic conditions in the 
study area. 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 53



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ∞ Quality ∞ Reliability  
 

Modeling  Planning  Engineering  ITS       Page | 5 

Assumptions for Future Year Cumulative Scenarios 

The future year was set as 2040 in the updated traffic study, which is reasonable and consistent with the 
future year of the latest CCTA Traffic Forecasting Model.  The growth rate used to estimate 2040 traffic 
was derived based on the CCTA model outputs of the base year and future year.  This is a common 
practice. 

Impacts on Emergency Vehicles  

Emergency vehicle preemption (EVP) system was recommended in the original study as the mitigation 
measure for the impact of the proposed project on emergency response time.  Opticom, as one of the 
widely used EVP equipment in the US, was mentioned in the original study.  EVP was retained in the 
updated traffic study to mitigate the impact on emergency response time. 

While EVP enables faster emergency response, congestion and gridlock can prevent emergency vehicles 
from reaching the preemptive detection range at equipped signalized intersections.  The priority logic 
used in the current EVP equipment (e.g., Opticom) does not consider congested queuing conditions such 
as the one on Pleasant Hill Road as shown in Figure 1.  The technique that uses queue-based offset to 
adjust preemption time is still at the research and development stage, and thus not available to use yet. 

Figure 1.  Emergency Vehicle Stuck in Traffic Congestion on Pleasant Hill Road 

 

 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 54



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ∞ Quality ∞ Reliability  
 

Modeling  Planning  Engineering  ITS       Page | 6 

Our assessment is that EVP equipment (e.g., Opticom) can help reduce emergency response time under 
non-congested or slightly-congested traffic conditions.  However, for a congested and gridlocked arterial 
such as Pleasant Hill Road during the peak hours, the impact on emergency response time due to 
additional congestion caused by the proposed project is unlikely to be fully mitigated by installing EVP 
equipment. No analysis in the updated traffic report has shown emergency response time reduction by 
using EVP equipment on Pleasant Hill Road. Therefore, this impact is deemed significant and 
unavoidable. 

Impacts during Construction 

According to the traffic study report, grading on the proposed project site during construction would 
result in approximately 25,000 to 30,000 haul trips over a nine-month period. The traffic study assumed 
five-day work weeks, this would result in an average of approximately 150 haul trips per day, for a total 
of 300 truck trips (150 arriving empty, 150 leaving full) per day. The traffic study report suggested that 
large trucks should be prohibited during the hours of 7:00 to 9:00 a.m. and 3:00 to 7:00 p.m. on any 
school day, and 7:00 to 9:00 a.m. and 4:00-7:00 p.m. on any non-school weekday. This would result in 
six (6) to seven (7) hours per workday for active hauling operations. However, the traffic study report 
assumed eight (8) hours per workday instead, which resulted in an average of approximately 40 truck 
trips per hour. Our estimate is an average of approximately 45 truck trips per hour. This large amount of 
heavy truck traffic during construction will result in not only excessive intersection delay at the 
intersection of Pleasant Hill Road and Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard, but also new traffic hazards 
when changing lanes or making wide turns when maneuvering on Pleasant Hill Road and Deer Hill Road. 
The updated traffic study report recommended to limit truck traffic to off-peak times, but did not 
analyze the potential impacts. Analysis should have been performed considering the massive amount of 
heavy trucks in the grading stage of construction (approximately 45 heavy truck trips per hour).  The 
noise and pollution impacts of this amount of truck activity should be analyzed elsewhere in the CEQA 
analysis. 

Weaving Activities 

It was concerned that the proposed project would worsen the weaving condition on Pleasant Hill Road 
between freeway ramps and nearby intersections, especially when the original design allows full access 
at the proposed driveway on Pleasant Hill Road.  The revised design has prohibited left-turn in/out at 
this driveway.  In addition, the simulation experiments carried out in the updated traffic study show that 
the additional traffic due to the proposed project has little impact on traffic speeds along this weaving 
section.  However, it was not clear in the updated traffic study report if the simulation models were 
calibrated to represent the real congestion level on Pleasant Hill Road. If the traffic analysis models were 
not calibrated, then the models would be unreliable and the conclusions drawn from the analysis would 
be questionable.  

Furthermore, the updated traffic study states that the northbound to westbound left-turn lane at the 
intersection of Pleasant Hill Road/Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard will be extended further south. This 
will result in approximately 600 feet only between the westbound SR 24 to northbound Pleasant Hill 
Road off-ramp and the extended northbound left-turn lane. Based on the estimated project trip 
generation, during the PM peak hour, there will be about 30 project-generated vehicles which will have 
to cross three lanes in order to access the left-turn lane from the off-ramp. Crossing three lanes in this 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 55



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ∞ Quality ∞ Reliability  
 

Modeling  Planning  Engineering  ITS       Page | 7 

heavily congested short segment (approximately 600 feet) will not only cause additional delay, but also 
pose safety risks. However, these impacts were not fully studied or mitigated in the updated traffic 
study. 

Impacts on SR 24 

The updated traffic study used delay index to evaluate the impacts of the proposed project on SR 24 
between the Caldecott Tunnel and I-680.  it was stated in the report that the 2017 MTSO monitoring 
results for SR 24 overestimated the existing delay index, and therefore the 2013 results were used to 
estimate the 2019 delay index.  As stated earlier, the 2017 MTSO monitoring results were based on 
INRIX data which has been validated and recognized as a reliable data source. We also performed a 
quick check using the Google Map peak-period travel times to calculate the delay index, as shown in 
Table 2. It can be seen that the Google Map-based delay indices are similar to the 2017 MTSO delay 
indices. Our assessment is that the projected delay indices used in the updated traffic study significantly 
underestimated the congestion level on SR 24. 

Table 2.  Travel Time and Delay Index – SR 24 

 

Site Access 

As stated in the updated study report, several changes were made in the updated site plan: 

 Driveway on Pleasant Hill Road permits only right-turn in/out 
 Relocated east driveway on Deer Hill Road permits full access with an exclusive left-turn lane 
 Relocated west driveway on Deer Hill Road permits only right-turn in/out and left-turn out with 

a median refuge lane 
Our assessment is that compared to the original design used in the 2012 study, these changes would 
reduce interruptions to the existing traffic on Pleasant Hill Road and Deer Hill Road.  The relocated east 
driveway on Deer Hill Road is further away from the intersection at Pleasant Hill Road/Deer Hill Road, 
which would provide more left-turn lane storage and some safety benefits, although allowing left turns 
out of this driveway could still be problematic given limited visibility, the steepness of Deer Hill Road at 
this point and the speed and momentum of traffic coming down the hill in off-peak times. 

Parking Supply inside Development 

The updated study used the same parking requirements by unit size as in the 2012 study.  The calculated 
parking demand is 511 spaces and the updated parking supply is 557 spaces, which is slightly different 
from the original parking supply of 567 spaces.  The conclusion that the project would have a less-than-
significant impact on surrounding roadways since parking supply inside the development is sufficient. 

Passenger Loading and On-Street Parking 

Direction Period Average Travel 
Time (min) 

Free-Flow 
Travel 

Time (min) 
Delay Index 2017 MTSO 

Delay Index 

2019 
Projected 

(TJKM) 

WB AM Peak 20.3 10 2.03 2.0 1.7 

EB PM Peak 22.9 10 2.29 2.3 1.4 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 56



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ∞ Quality ∞ Reliability  
 

Modeling  Planning  Engineering  ITS       Page | 8 

As stated in the updated traffic study report, the proposed project would remove 19 on-street parking 
spaces along Pleasant Hill Road south of Deer Hill Road.  These parking spaces are heavily used 
especially for student pick-ups in the afternoon for the nearby Acalanes High School, as illustrated in 
Figure 2.  It was stated in the report that the new loading area could accommodate approximately eight 
(8) waiting vehicles. However, there is already an existing passenger loading zone between the 
intersection of Pleasant Hill Road/Deer Hill Road and the existing parking spaces that accommodate 
about four (4) vehicles.  The net loss of 15 parking spaces (i.e., 19+4-8=15) would result in a significant 
impact on passenger loading in the study area, which contradicts the conclusion in the updated traffic 
study report.  

Figure 2.  Utilization of Existing Passenger Loading Zone & Parking Spaces (West Side of 
Pleasant Hill Road, South of Deer Hill Road) 

 

Bike Lane 

The proposed bicycle lane between Deer Hill Road and SR 24 on-ramp would be located between the 
right-turn trap lane and through lanes, as illustrated in Figure 3.  This will create two major neighboring 
conflict zones for bicycles, as listed below. 

 Conflict zone between bicycles and passenger-loading vehicles, as illustrated in the area circled 
in orange.  

 Conflict zone between bicycles and vehicles in the right-turn trap lane where bicycles need to 
cross the trap lane, and between bicycles and vehicles entering & existing the property 
driveway, as illustrated in the area circled in red.  

The updated traffic study did not address these significant conflicts in the neighboring conflict zones 
between bicycles and vehicles.   

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 57



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ∞ Quality ∞ Reliability  
 

Modeling  Planning  Engineering  ITS       Page | 9 

Figure 3.  Bicycle Conflict Zones  

 

 

Wildfire, PG&E Power Shut-off, and Evacuation Plan 

It is worth noting that the proposed project is located in the Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones 
(VHFHSZ) according to the City Ordinance No. 620 (Figure 4).  Given the facts that: 1) semi-rural/urban 
interface wildfires have become a new reality; 2) all three fire stations within the study area use 
Pleasant Hill Road, and 3) all three fire stations fail to meet the target response time of five minutes, the 
extra delay on Pleasant Hill Road caused by the proposed project would worsen emergency response 
time as well as resident evacuation. 

In addition, PG&E’s power shut-offs, as a proactive measure to help avoid wildfires, have been affecting 
the study area and surrounding areas.  As a consequence, affected signalized intersections become all-
way-stop-controlled intersections due to traffic signal blackout (which would also affect any proposed 
EVP system also).  It is recommended that the study should include an analysis to quantify the traffic 
impact of the proposed project under such conditions. 

In addition, an evacuation plan for the residents in the area should be considered and how the proposed 
project would impact evacuation routes and emergency vehicles access if the proposed 315 units are 
being evacuated at the same time. 

Conflict zone between bicycles 
and passenger-loading vehicles  

Conflict zone between bicycles and 
vehicles in right-turn trap lane & vehicles 
entering & existing property driveway 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 58



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ∞ Quality ∞ Reliability  
 

Modeling  Planning  Engineering  ITS       Page | 10 

Figure 4.  Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones, City of Lafayette1 

 

Other Issues 

Significant and Unavoidable Impacts – According to the updated traffic study report, the proposed 
project would result in significant and unavoidable impacts on the level of service at the intersection of 
Pleasant Hill Road/Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard and the delay index on Pleasant Hill Road, unless a 
third southbound through lane were added to Pleasant Hill Road between north of Deer Hill Road and 
SR-24. However, as discussed earlier, the projected delay indices used in the updated traffic study 
significantly underestimated the congestion level on Pleasant Hill Road.  Therefore, it cannot be claimed 
for sure that a third southbound through lane will be able to mitigate the proposed project. In addition, 
the Gateway Constraints Policy outlined in the Lamorinda Action Plan precludes adding more through 
lanes. Pleasant Hill Road is used as an alternative route by traffic heading south on I-680 in the AM Peak 
period.  One of the rationales for the Gateway Constraints Policy is the recognition that any 
improvement in through traffic flow on Pleasant Hill Road is likely to attract more traffic from I-680. 
Therefore, this impact is considered significant and unmitigable.  

Excessive Queue at Laurel Drive/Deer Hill Road – During our field visit, excessive left-turn queues were 
observed on the westbound approach of Laurel Drive/Deer Hill Road intersection in the AM peak period.  
According to the 95th percentile queue lengths included in the queuing and blocking reports (Appendix 

 

1 https://www.lovelafayette.org/Home/ShowDocument?id=1950 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 59



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ∞ Quality ∞ Reliability  
 

Modeling  Planning  Engineering  ITS       Page | 11 

C, D, E and F in the updated traffic study report), the proposed project would cause significant impact at 
this intersection under Existing Plus Project scenario.  No discussion on this impact or corresponding 
mitigation measures were mentioned in the updated traffic study.  

SUMMARY 

Elite Transportation Group, Inc. (ETG) conducted a peer review of the updated traffic study report for 
the proposed Terraces of Lafayette project. The following areas are identified either unmitigable or 
inadequate: 

 It was not clear from the updated traffic study report whether the traffic analysis models were 
calibrated to the local traffic condition before being used for traffic analysis, including queuing 
and weaving analysis. If the traffic analysis models were not calibrated, then the models would 
be unreliable and the conclusions drawn from the analysis would be questionable. 

 The proposed project would result in significant and unavoidable impacts on the level of service 
at the intersection of Pleasant Hill Road/Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard and the delay index 
on Pleasant Hill Road, unless a third southbound through lane were added to Pleasant Hill Road 
between north of Deer Hill Road and SR 24. However, the projected delay indices used in the 
updated traffic study significantly underestimated the congestion level on Pleasant Hill Road.  
Therefore, it cannot be claimed that a third southbound through lane will certainly be able to 
mitigate the proposed project. In addition, the Gateway Constraints Policy outlined in the 
Lamorinda Action Plan precludes adding more through lanes. Pleasant Hill Road is used as an 
alternative route by traffic heading south on I-680 in the AM Peak period.  One of the rationales 
for the Gateway Constraints Policy is the recognition that any improvement in through traffic 
flow on Pleasant Hill Road is likely to attract more traffic from I-680. Therefore, this impact is 
considered significant and unmitigable.  

 The updated traffic study stated that the 2017 MTSO monitoring results for Pleasant Hill Road 
and SR 24 overestimated the existing delay index, therefore, the 2013 results were used to 
estimate the 2019 delay index.  However, the 2017 MTSO results were based on INRIX data, 
which has been validated and recognized as a reliable data source and has been used in many 
traffic-related projects.  In addition, our travel time runs on Pleasant Hill Road conducted on 
October 22, 2019, show that the existing delay indices are higher but close to the 2017 
monitoring results. The Google map-based delay indices are similar to the 2017 MTSO delay 
indices on SR 24. Therefore, our assessment is that the projected delay indices used in the 
updated traffic study significantly underestimated the congestion level on Pleasant Hill Road and 
SR 24. 

 The northbound to westbound left-turn lane at the intersection of Pleasant Hill Road/Deer Hill 
Road/Stanley Boulevard will be extended further south based on the project site plan and the 
updated traffic study, which will result in approximately 600 feet only between the westbound 
SR 24 to northbound Pleasant Hill Road off-ramp and the extended northbound left-turn lane. 
During the PM peak hour, there will be about 30 project-generated vehicles exiting westbound 
SR 24 off-ramp which will have to cross three lanes in order to access the northbound left-turn 
lane. Crossing three lanes in this heavily congested short segment (approximately 600 feet) 
would not only cause additional delay, but also pose safety risks. However, these impacts were 
not fully studied or mitigated in the updated traffic study. 

 Emergency vehicle preemption (EVP) equipment can help reduce emergency response time 
under non-congested or slightly-congested traffic conditions. For a congested and gridlocked 
arterial such as Pleasant Hill Road during peak hours, installing EVP would not fully mitigate the 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 60



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ∞ Quality ∞ Reliability  
 

Modeling  Planning  Engineering  ITS       Page | 12 

impact of the proposed project on emergency response time. No analysis in the updated traffic 
report has shown emergency response time reduction by using EVP equipment on Pleasant Hill 
Road. This impact is deemed significant and unavoidable.  

 The proposed project would remove 19 on-street parking spaces along Pleasant Hill Road south 
of Deer Hill Road.  These parking spaces are heavily used especially for student pick-ups in the 
afternoon for the nearby Acalanes High School.  It was stated in the report that the new loading 
area could accommodate approximately eight (8) waiting vehicles. The existing passenger 
loading zone can accommodate about four (4) vehicles. The net loss of 15 parking spaces would 
result in a significant impact on passenger loading in the study area and therefore deemed 
significant.  

 The proposed bicycle lane between Deer Hill Road and SR 24 on-ramp would be located 
between the right-turn trap lane and through lanes. This will create major neighboring conflict 
zones - between bicycles and passenger-loading vehicles, between bicycles and vehicles in the 
right-turn trap lane where bicycles need to cross the trap lane, and between bicycles and 
vehicles entering & existing the property driveway.  These significant conflicts in the conflict 
zones were not addressed in the updated traffic study. 

 Grading on the proposed project site during construction would result in approximately 25,000 
to 30,000 haul trips over a nine-month period. Our estimation shows 45 trucks per hour for 
seven (7) hours per weekday given that the construction trucks will avoid peak hours. This large 
amount of heavy truck traffic during construction will result in not only excessive intersection 
delay at the intersection of Pleasant Hill Road and Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard, but also 
new traffic hazards when changing lanes or making wide turns when maneuvering on Pleasant 
Hill Road and Deer Hill Road. The updated traffic study report recommended to limit truck traffic 
to off-peak times, but did not analyze the potential impacts. Analysis should have been 
performed considering the massive amount of heavy trucks in the grading stage of construction 
(approximately 45 heavy truck trips per hour). The noise and pollution impacts of this amount of 
truck activity should be analyzed elsewhere in the CEQA analysis. 

 Considering that the proposed project is located in the Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones 
(VHFHSZ), as well as PG&E’s power shut-offs as a proactive measure to help avoid wildfires, the 
study should include an analysis to quantify the traffic impact of the proposed project under 
such conditions. In addition, an evacuation plan for the residents inside the VHFHSZ needs to be 
developed or updated, given the new reality of wildfires and proximity to Acalanes High School 
buildings and student parking lot. 

 During the field visit, excessive left-turn queues were observed on the westbound approach at 
the intersection of Laurel Drive/Deer Hill Road in the AM peak period.  According to the 95th 
percentile queue lengths included in the queuing and blocking reports, the proposed project 
would cause a significant impact at this intersection under the Plus Project scenarios.  No 
discussion on this impact or corresponding mitigation measures were mentioned in the updated 
traffic study. 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 61



TRANSPLAN Packet Page 62



TRANSPLAN Packet Page 63



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity Quality Reliability  
 

Modeling  Planning  Engineering  ITS       Page | 1 

Memorandum 
Date: August 23, 2020 

To: Michael Griffiths 

From: Lin Zhang, PhD, PE, TE, PTOE 
Elite Transportation Group, Inc. (ETG) 
 

Subject: Peer Review of TJKM’s Evacuation Models and Response Memo for Terraces of 

Lafayette Traffic Impact Study 

TJKM, the traffic study consultant for the proposed Terraces of Lafayette Project, released a memorandum 

dated August 10, 2020, in response to ETG’s comments regarding TJKM’s emergency evacuation modeling 

and analysis. The purpose of this memorandum is to provide a summary of our latest findings based on a 

review of the TJKM’s response memo and evacuation models.  

TJKM’s evacuation models were developed for AM and PM peak hours using Synchro/SimTraffic, a 

commonly used software package for arterial operations. TJKM’s evacuation model files were organized 

for the following six scenarios (“Project” is referred as the Terraces of Lafayette): 

 Evac 1 – Evacuation (without project) in the AM Peak 

 Evac 1 + Project – Evacuation plus project, with trap lane1, in the AM Peak 

 Evac 1 + Project Variant – Evacuation plus project, no trap lane, in the AM Peak 

 Evac 2 – Evacuation (without project) in the PM Peak 

 Evac 2 + Project – Evacuation plus project, with trap lane, in the PM Peak 

 Evac 2 + Project Variant – Evacuation plus project, no trap lane, in the PM Peak 

In TJKM’s memo, “denied entry vehicles”, which will be explained in the next, were not reported. We re-

ran SimTraffic simulation for the AM peak scenarios using the Synchro files and the same parameters that 

TJKM provided, as listed below: 

 5 runs per synchro file 

 10-minute seeding interval 

 60-minute analysis interval 

 Random seed 1412 

The SimTraffic simulation reports are attached in Appendix. We were able to replicate majority of the 

performance measures that were included in TJKM’s memo. In addition, we also reported “denied entry 

vehicles”, for both systemwide and individual intersections (see Appendix).  

 

1 The Gateway Constraints Policy outlined in the Lamorinda Action Plan precludes adding more through lanes. 

Pleasant Hill Road is used as an alternative route by traffic heading south on I-680 in the AM Peak period.  One of 

the rationales for the Gateway Constraints Policy is the recognition that any improvement in through traffic flow 

on Pleasant Hill Road is likely to attract more traffic from I-680. 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 64



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity Quality Reliability  

Modeling  Planning  Engineering ITS       Page | 2 

DENIED ENTRY VEHICLES (WAITING TO ENTER THE TRAFFIC NETWORK) 

Denied entry vehicles (i.e., unserved vehicles) are the vehicles that are still waiting to enter the traffic 

network by the end of the traffic analysis period. We checked and found many denied entry vehicles in 

TJKM’s evaluation models. For instance, in the AM peak hour evacuation model (7:00-8:00 AM), the 

number of denied entry vehicles including the Terraces of Lafayette project is more than 3,400 vehicles 

under the trap lane scenario (Table 1), or more than 3,800 vehicles under the no trap lane scenario (Table 

2). This means that by 8:00 AM (the end of the traffic analysis period), there would still be more than 

3,400 vehicles (under the trap lane scenario), or more than 3,800 vehicles (under the no trap lane 

scenario), waiting to get onto streets for evacuation.  

Table 1. Systemwide Denied Entry Vehicles – AM Peak, with Project, with Trap Lane

 

 
Table 2. Systemwide Denied Entry Vehicles – AM Peak, with Project, No Trap Lane (Project Variant) 

 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 65



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity Quality Reliability  

Modeling  Planning  Engineering ITS       Page | 3 

We checked the project driveway connecting with Pleasant Hill Road, and saw that the project driveway 

is still packed with vehicles by the end of the traffic analysis period (see Figure 1). We then checked and 

found that there were more than 500 denied entry vehicles under the trap lane scenario (Table 3), or 

more than 700 denied entry vehicles under the no trap lane scenario (Table 4). Only 12 vehicles, or 2%, 

would be able to get out of the Terraces of Lafayette community during the 7:00-8:00 AM one-hour 

evacuation period under the no trap lane scenario. Even with the trap lane scenario, only 217 vehicles, or 

30%, would be able to get out of the Terraces of Lafayette community. The denied entry vehicles would 

not show up on the short project driveway. To better visualize the stack of the denied entry vehicles, we 

“artificially” extended the project driveway, as shown in Figure 1. Majority of vehicles could not even 

leave Terraces of Lafayette community after the one-hour evacuation period.  

Table 3. Denied Entry Vehicles at Project Driveway – AM Peak, with Project, with Trap Lane 

 

Table 4. Denied Entry Vehicles at Project Driveway – AM Peak, with Project, No Trap Lane (Project 

Variant) 

 

  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 66



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity Quality Reliability  

Modeling  Planning  Engineering ITS       Page | 4 

Figure 1. Pleasant Hill Road & Project Driveway (by end of traffic analysis period in AM peak) 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 67



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity Quality Reliability  

Modeling  Planning  Engineering ITS       Page | 5 

We noticed that TJKM assumed a peak hour factor (PHF) of 0.75 in the evacuation models. The PHF is 

usually used to convert the hourly traffic volume into the flow rate that represents the busiest 15 minutes 

of the rush hour.  

=     (       ) × 4 

Using a PHF of 0.75 means that the analysis flow rate (i.e., peak 15-minute traffic flow rate) is 33.3% more 

than the hourly traffic volume.  

Different from a typical intersection delay and level of service (LOS) analysis, the purpose of an evacuation 

model is mainly focused on how quickly the evacuation can be achieved. Therefore, using PHFs may not 

be appropriate for evacuation analyses. We then ran SimTraffic simulation for the AM peak scenarios 

using the same Synchro files and primary parameters, with the only change of PHF from 0.75 to 1.0. The 

SimTraffic simulation reports based on PHF of 1.0 are attached in Appendix.  

Even with a PHF of 1.0, we still found that there would be more than 300 denied entry vehicles under the 

trap lane scenario (Table 5), or more than 500 denied entry vehicles under the no trap lane scenario (Table 

6). Only 13 vehicles, or 2%, would be able to get out of the Terraces of Lafayette community during the 

7:00-8:00 AM one-hour evacuation period under the no trap lane scenario. Even with the trap lane 

scenario, only 210 vehicles, or 38%, would be able to get out of the Terraces of Lafayette community. 

Table 5. Denied Entry Vehicles at Project Driveway – AM Peak, with Project, with Trap Lane (PHF=1.0) 

 
  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 68



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity Quality Reliability  

Modeling  Planning  Engineering ITS       Page | 6 

Table 6. Denied Entry Vehicles at Project Driveway – AM Peak, with Project, No Trap Lane (Project 

Variant) (PHF=1.0) 

 

The denied entry vehicles exist on other streets too, including Stanley Boulevard, Spring Hill Road, Quandt 

Road, and Reliez Valley Road, as shown in Figure 2. Keep it in mind that Stanley Boulevard is mainly for 

evacuating students from Acalanes High School, and denied entry vehicles (i.e., waiting to enter the traffic 

network) would be more than 900.  

With so many denied entry vehicles systemwide (>3,400 vehicles under the trap lane scenario, or >3,800 

vehicles under the no trap lane scenario), and 98% of vehicles under the no trap lane scenario (or more 

than 60% under the trap lane scenario) could not even leave Terraces of Lafayette community after the 

one-hour evacuation period, TJKM’s evacuation models apparently lack credibility and the results coming 

out of the evacuation models are simply invalid. 

 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 69



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity Quality Reliability  

Modeling  Planning  Engineering ITS       Page | 7 

Figure 2. Streets with Significant Denied Entry Vehicles (by end of traffic analysis period in AM peak) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 70



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity Quality Reliability  

Modeling  Planning  Engineering ITS       Page | 8 

BACKGROUND TRAFFIC 

In their response memo, TJKM mentioned that they included a 10-minute “seeding” period (i.e., 6:50-7:00 

AM). We ran the 10-minute seeding period, and found that traffic was only backed up to somewhere 

between Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard and Spring Hill Road/Quant Road, as shown in Figure 3.  

Figure 3. Traffic Condition (by end of 10-minute seeding period in AM peak) 

 

  

End of the queue 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 71



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity Quality Reliability  
 

Modeling  Planning  Engineering  ITS       Page | 9 

However, it is well known that the Pleasant Hill Road backs up much further upstream at 7:00 AM during 

the morning peak. There should have been many more vehicles (i.e., “background traffic”) already in the 

roadway system when the evacuation starts during the AM peak hour.  

In their response memo, TJKM claimed that “By including both evacuation traffic and normal commute 

traffic, these vehicles would be double counted.” This would only be true if all of the traffic on Pleasant 

Hill Road would come only from Lafayette. However, Pleasant Hill Road carries traffic from many 

surrounding cities and communities. The right approach is to load the roadway network so that at the 

beginning of the evacuation (i.e., 7:00 AM during the morning peak), the modeled traffic condition 

represents what would look like during a normal day without evacuation. After that, no new non-

evacuation traffic would enter Pleasant Hill Road from the north once a roadblock has been set up after 

the evacuation order is given. However, TJKM’s evacuation models did not follow the right approach, and 

therefore significantly underestimated background traffic. Adding background traffic could make traffic 

delay exponentially worse. 

SR 24 CAPACITY CONSTRAINT 

The evacuation models assumed that all evacuating vehicles would use SR 24 to leave Lafayette – 50% 

would travel eastbound (EB) and 50% would travel westbound (WB). We raised the question that the 

evacuation models ended at the on-ramps (both EB and WB) and did not model or put capacity constraints 

on SR 24 mainline freeway, as illustrated in Figure 4. By doing this, TJKM assumed that SR 24 would have 

“unlimited” capacity to absorb the additional evacuating traffic. This assumption is unrealistic since SR 24 

is already congested (WB in AM and EB in PM) and does not have enough extra capacity to accommodate 

the significant amount increase of traffic due to evacuation.  

In their response memo, TJKM did not address this concern directly. It is only simply stated that “the 

evacuation traffic volumes are already extremely conservative.”  

Here is a simple example for the AM peak hour to illustrate the importance of SR 24 capacity constraint. 

Again, this example is for illustration purposes and it does not replace detailed and accurate modeling.  

 Same assumption of all evacuating vehicles would use SR 24 to leave Lafayette – 50% would travel 

EB and 50% would travel WB. 

 In the AM peak hour (7:00-8:00 AM), SR 24 WB has a capacity constraint – assuming 900 vehicles 

are able to get on and use SR 24 in the WB direction.  

 Traffic demand during the evacuation is 1,800 vehicles to use the SR 24 WB on-ramp. 

 With the above assumptions, vehicles cannot be fully evacuated in two hours (i.e., 1,800/900 = 2) 

In other words, one additional hour is needed after the one-hour peak period. However, with all 

the above assumptions except for the SR 24 capacity constraint, as modelled by TJKM, vehicles 

can be fully evacuated within the one-hour peak period.  

 Additional evacuating traffic coming out of the Terraces of Lafayette community is 551 vehicles 

(based on TJKM’s memo dated June 22, 2020). Now adding half of them to the SR 24 WB direction, 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 72



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity Quality Reliability  

Modeling  Planning  Engineering  ITS       Page | 10 

the additional 275 vehicles (i.e., 551/2 = 275) coming out of the Terraces of Lafayette community 

would cause additional 18 minutes (i.e., 275/900*60 = 18) to evacuate.  

Therefore, the evacuation models must have significantly underestimated the level of traffic congestion, 

and the impacts of which is that traffic is unable to get onto the SR 24 freeway and gets backed up on 

surface streets. 

Figure 4. Evacuation Models Ended at On-Ramps 

 

ON-RAMP CAPACITY CONSTRAINT 

We stated in our previous memo that the single-lane on-ramps (both EB and WB) may not be able to 

handle the significant amount of traffic getting onto SR 24 freeway during the peak hours, with a 

maximum capacity of 1,900 vehicles per hour per lane at on-ramps assuming no congestion on the 

freeway onto which the traffic merges. TJKM responded by stating that “it is not an absolute limit, and 

exceeding 1,900 vehicles per hour per lane does not immediately result in gridlock or excessive delays. In 

addition, the sections of SR-24 where the westbound and eastbound ramps enter the freeway feature 

long auxiliary lanes, such that evacuation traffic would have ample time to merge into the other travel 

lanes without slowing down ramp traffic.” 

 On-Ramp Capacity: TJKM stated that on-ramp maximum capacity of 1,900 vehicles per hour per 

lane “it is not an absolute limit”. Traffic Engineers generally use 1,900 vehicles under the close to 

“ideal” condition without traffic congestion or traffic flow breakdown. 1,900 vehicles per hour per 

lane corresponds to 1.9 seconds in headway (i.e., 3,600 seconds/1,900 = 1.9). Headway is a 

Model ends here 

Model ends here 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 73



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity Quality Reliability  
 

Modeling  Planning  Engineering  ITS       Page | 11 

measure of the temporal space between two vehicles. Specifically, the headway is the time that 

elapses between the arrival of the leading vehicle and the following vehicle at the designated test 

point. In fact, on-ramp capacity drops when traffic is congested (traffic flow breakdown), causing 

“productivity loss”. It is not uncommon to see on-ramp capacity drops to 1,200 vehicles per hour 

per lane or less when traffic follow breaks down. Under the emergency evacuation condition, 

traffic typically breaks down due to many factors such as poor visibility (due to smoke), 

rubbernecking, panicking, etc. We agree that the on-ramp capacity is not an absolute limit; 

instead, it drops significantly under the emergency evacuation condition. In this perspective, 

traffic congestion would be even much worse.  

 Auxiliary Lanes:  TJKM stated that “the sections of SR-24 where the westbound and eastbound 

ramps enter the freeway feature long auxiliary lanes, such that evacuation traffic would have 

ample time to merge into the other travel lanes without slowing down ramp traffic.” Auxiliary 

lanes on SR 24 do not help when traffic is already congested (WB in AM and EB in PM) while much 

more additional traffic is being loaded onto SR 24 due to emergency evacuation.  

CONCLUSION 

In conclusion, the evacuation models that TJKM developed has critical fatal flaws. The results generated 

from the evacuation models are invalid and should not be used for any decision-making.  

  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 74



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity Quality Reliability  
 

Modeling  Planning  Engineering  ITS       Page | 12 

APPENDIX 

SimTraffic Simulation Reports 

 PHF = 0.75 (TJKM’s assumption) 

o Evac 1 – Evacuation (without project) in the AM Peak 

o Evac 1 + Project – Evacuation plus project, with trap lane, in the AM Peak 

o Evac 1 + Project Variant – Evacuation plus project, no trap lane, in the AM Peak 

 PHF = 1.0  

o Evac 1 – Evacuation without project in the AM Peak  

o Evac 1 + Project – Evacuation plus project, with trap lane, in the AM Peak 

o Evac 1 + Project Variant – Evacuation plus project, no trap lane, in the AM Peak 

 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 75



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PHF = 0.75 (TJKM’s assumption) 

Evac 1 – Evacuation (without project) in the AM Peak  

 

 

  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 76



SimTraffic Simulation Summary
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 1

Summary of All Intervals

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Start Time 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50
End Time 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00
Total Time (min) 70 70 70 70 70 70
Time Recorded (min) 60 60 60 60 60 60
# of Intervals 2 2 2 2 2 2
# of Recorded Intervals 1 1 1 1 1 1
Vehs Entered 1839 1799 1853 1780 1801 1815
Vehs Exited 1731 1727 1714 1677 1712 1712
Starting Vehs 281 306 248 270 292 279
Ending Vehs 389 378 387 373 381 380
Denied Entry Before 111 134 82 89 97 102
Denied Entry After 3211 3348 3053 3274 3192 3215
Travel Distance (mi) 1650 1646 1657 1635 1633 1644
Travel Time (hr) 1970.3 2079.1 1891.0 2004.2 1963.6 1981.7
Total Delay (hr) 1913.1 2022.1 1833.3 1947.6 1906.9 1924.6
Total Stops 6129 6226 6137 6034 6042 6113
Fuel Used (gal) 490.2 515.2 471.8 497.7 486.6 492.3

Interval #0 Information  Seeding
Start Time 6:50
End Time 7:00
Total Time (min) 10
No data recorded this interval.

Interval #1 Information  Recording
Start Time 7:00
End Time 8:00
Total Time (min) 60
Volumes adjusted by PHF.

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Vehs Entered 1839 1799 1853 1780 1801 1815
Vehs Exited 1731 1727 1714 1677 1712 1712
Starting Vehs 281 306 248 270 292 279
Ending Vehs 389 378 387 373 381 380
Denied Entry Before 111 134 82 89 97 102
Denied Entry After 3211 3348 3053 3274 3192 3215
Travel Distance (mi) 1650 1646 1657 1635 1633 1644
Travel Time (hr) 1970.3 2079.1 1891.0 2004.2 1963.6 1981.7
Total Delay (hr) 1913.1 2022.1 1833.3 1947.6 1906.9 1924.6
Total Stops 6129 6226 6137 6034 6042 6113
Fuel Used (gal) 490.2 515.2 471.8 497.7 486.6 492.3

g
Denied Entry Before 111 134 82 89 97 102y
Denied Entry After 3211 3348 3053 3274 3192 3215

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 77



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 2

1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.2 0.1 0.2
Total Delay (hr) 0.2 0.1 0.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.6 6.3 4.1
Stop Delay (hr) 0.1 0.0 0.2
Stop Del/Veh (s) 2.8 4.5 3.1
Vehicles Entered 176 36 212
Vehicles Exited 175 36 211
Hourly Exit Rate 175 36 211
Input Volume 173 33 206
% of Volume 101 109 102
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.1 19.7 0.3 20.1
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.4 144.5 5.2 95.1
Stop Delay (hr) 0.1 18.6 0.2 18.9
Stop Del/Veh (s) 3.5 136.2 3.4 89.3
Vehicles Entered 56 479 212 747
Vehicles Exited 55 467 212 734
Hourly Exit Rate 55 467 212 734
Input Volume 56 637 207 900
% of Volume 98 73 102 82
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 78



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 3

3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 571.5 0.0 571.5
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1365.2 0.0 918.1
Total Delay (hr) 17.5 8.3 25.7
Total Del/Veh (s) 199.0 39.8 87.2
Stop Delay (hr) 17.5 6.7 24.3
Stop Del/Veh (s) 199.8 32.4 82.2
Vehicles Entered 303 734 1037
Vehicles Exited 297 727 1024
Hourly Exit Rate 297 727 1024
Input Volume 1499 900 2399
% of Volume 20 81 43
Denied Entry Before 8 0 8
Denied Entry After 1204 0 1204

4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL WBT NBL SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 354.3 42.1 6.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 402.8
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1456.1 485.6 480.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 641.6
Total Delay (hr) 9.9 7.9 1.2 0.1 32.3 2.5 53.8
Total Del/Veh (s) 201.6 123.7 126.0 96.5 123.9 93.5 131.2
Stop Delay (hr) 10.2 7.7 1.1 0.1 32.5 2.6 54.2
Stop Del/Veh (s) 207.6 120.7 121.8 94.2 124.8 94.5 132.0
Vehicles Entered 167 228 33 5 922 97 1452
Vehicles Exited 166 223 32 5 897 94 1417
Hourly Exit Rate 166 223 32 5 897 94 1417
Input Volume 857 297 45 5 2168 231 3603
% of Volume 19 75 71 100 41 41 39
Denied Entry Before 11 1 0 0 0 0 12
Denied Entry After 709 84 15 0 0 0 808

Hourly Exit Rate 297 727 1024y
Input Volume 1499 900 2399p
% of Volume 20 81 43
Denied Entry Before 8 0 8y
Denied Entry After 1204 0 1204

p ( )
Vehicles Entered 303 734 1037
Vehicles Exited 297 727 1024

Vehicles Exited 166 223 32 5 897 94 1417
Hourly Exit Rate 166 223 32 5 897 94 1417y
Input Volume 857 297 45 5 2168 231 3603p
% of Volume 19 75 71 100 41 41 39
Denied Entry Before 11 1 0 0 0 0 12y
Denied Entry After 709 84 15 0 0 0 808

p ( )
Vehicles Entered 167 228 33 5 922 97 1452

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 79



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 4

5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard Performance by movement 

Movement WBL NBT NBR SBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 573.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 573.7
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1606.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 792.8
Total Delay (hr) 23.6 0.0 0.0 13.0 140.8 177.4
Total Del/Veh (s) 320.2 17.2 2.9 373.8 389.2 369.9
Stop Delay (hr) 23.4 0.0 0.0 12.3 137.2 172.9
Stop Del/Veh (s) 317.5 15.6 2.9 353.2 379.4 360.7
Vehicles Entered 238 7 26 112 1174 1557
Vehicles Exited 241 7 26 113 1139 1526
Hourly Exit Rate 241 7 26 113 1139 1526
Input Volume 1212 6 29 291 3032 4570
% of Volume 20 117 90 39 38 33
Denied Entry Before 82 0 0 0 0 82
Denied Entry After 1048 0 0 0 0 1048

6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp Performance by movement 

Movement SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.1 4.8 4.1
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 2 11 13
Vehicles Exited 2 11 13
Hourly Exit Rate 2 11 13
Input Volume 7 28 35
% of Volume 29 39 37
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

Hourly Exit Rate 241 7 26 113 1139 1526y
Input Volume 1212 6 29 291 3032 4570p
% of Volume 20 117 90 39 38 33
Denied Entry Before 82 0 0 0 0 82y
Denied Entry After 1048 0 0 0 0 1048

p ( )
Vehicles Entered 238 7 26 112 1174 1557
Vehicles Exited 241 7 26 113 1139 1526

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 80



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 5

7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 1.8 1.8
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1
Vehicles Entered 28 28
Vehicles Exited 28 28
Hourly Exit Rate 28 28
Input Volume 29 29
% of Volume 97 97
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue Performance by movement 

Movement NBT SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 4.5 4.5
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.3 11.8 11.6
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 1.4 1.4
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 3.7 3.6
Vehicles Entered 33 1377 1410
Vehicles Exited 33 1376 1409
Hourly Exit Rate 33 1376 1409
Input Volume 35 4244 4279
% of Volume 94 32 33
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 81



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 6

15: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement WBR SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 3.7 2.9 6.5
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.7 18.8 15.1 16.6
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.8
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 2.1 2.2 2.1
Vehicles Entered 33 697 679 1409
Vehicles Exited 33 695 681 1409
Hourly Exit Rate 33 695 681 1409
Input Volume 35 2140 2104 4279
% of Volume 94 32 32 33
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

16: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 1.3 1.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 6.7 6.7
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 695 695
Vehicles Exited 695 695
Hourly Exit Rate 695 695
Input Volume 2140 2140
% of Volume 32 32
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 82



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 7

17: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1 0.1
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 1.3 1.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 7.3 6.3 6.3
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.6 0.6
Stop Del/Veh (s) 1.7 3.2 3.1
Vehicles Entered 13 716 729
Vehicles Exited 13 716 729
Hourly Exit Rate 13 716 729
Input Volume 35 2140 2175
% of Volume 37 33 34
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

Total Network Performance 

Denied Delay (hr) 1613.5
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1154.8
Total Delay (hr) 311.1
Total Del/Veh (s) 535.4
Stop Delay (hr) 289.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 497.3
Vehicles Entered 1815
Vehicles Exited 1712
Hourly Exit Rate 1712
Input Volume 37038
% of Volume 5
Denied Entry Before 102
Denied Entry After 3215

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 83



Arterial Level of Service
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 8

Arterial Level of Service: NB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Acalanes Avenue 14 0.3 20.2 0.1 11

11 0.0 4.0 0.0 34
Stanley Boulevard 5 17.2 24.2 0.1 12
Quandt Road 4 96.5 141.4 0.4 11
Total 113.9 189.8 0.6 12

Arterial Level of Service: SB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Rancho View Drive 1 6.3 21.5 0.2 26

19 1.3 16.3 0.1 33
Greenvalley Drive 2 5.2 12.0 0.1 21
Reliez Valle Road 3 39.1 63.3 0.3 14

20 24.2 27.8 0.0 4
Springhill Road 4 123.9 133.4 0.1 3
Deer Hill Road 5 359.4 398.0 0.4 4

11 19.5 28.0 0.1 10
Acalanes Avenue 14 11.8 15.8 0.0 9

15 18.8 25.0 0.1 9
16 6.7 16.1 0.1 24
17 7.3 16.4 0.1 16

Mt. Diablo Boulevard 6 4.8 12.9 0.1 19
SR 24 EB Off Ramp 7 1.8 4.6 0.1 48
Total 630.0 791.1 1.7 8

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 84



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 9

Intersection: 1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive

Movement EB SB SB
Directions Served LTR T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 91 48 11
Average Queue (ft) 42 11 1
95th Queue (ft) 73 37 8
Link Distance (ft) 306 773 773
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive

Movement EB WB B60 SB SB
Directions Served LTR LT T T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 56 611 112 55 75
Average Queue (ft) 14 562 73 12 31
95th Queue (ft) 35 664 112 37 63
Link Distance (ft) 333 494 53 288 288
Upstream Blk Time (%) 82 84
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 76
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0

Intersection: 3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road

Movement EB EB SB SB
Directions Served L R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 467 486 360 366
Average Queue (ft) 283 457 200 198
95th Queue (ft) 631 473 292 304
Link Distance (ft) 438 438 1259 1259
Upstream Blk Time (%) 33 96
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 34
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 85



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 10

Intersection: 4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road

Movement EB WB NB SB SB SB B20 B20
Directions Served LTR LTR L T T R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 370 255 20 523 520 96 217 222
Average Queue (ft) 338 231 3 470 470 76 169 181
95th Queue (ft) 355 246 15 612 625 140 262 266
Link Distance (ft) 318 213 414 414 127 127
Upstream Blk Time (%) 100 89 86 88 28 86
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0 1036 1053 331 1036
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 200 71
Storage Blk Time (%) 87 81 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 188 3

Intersection: 5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard

Movement WB WB NB NB SB SB SB
Directions Served L LT T R L T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 225 554 32 47 275 2267 2401
Average Queue (ft) 194 524 3 11 183 2238 2366
95th Queue (ft) 304 543 17 34 335 2325 2480
Link Distance (ft) 504 347 347 2220 2220
Upstream Blk Time (%) 95 40 94
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 672 1556
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 185 175
Storage Blk Time (%) 9 97 6 28 66
Queuing Penalty (veh) 52 587 88 81 0

Intersection: 6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 86



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 11

Intersection: 7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road

Movement SB
Directions Served T
Maximum Queue (ft) 3
Average Queue (ft) 0
95th Queue (ft) 2
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 8: Brown Avenue/Miller Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 9: First Street/Sierra Vista Way & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 87



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 12

Intersection: 10: SR 24 WB Ramps/Laurel Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue

Movement SB SB B11 B11
Directions Served T T T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 190 254 400 387
Average Queue (ft) 45 206 186 334
95th Queue (ft) 142 305 430 436
Link Distance (ft) 147 147 347 347
Upstream Blk Time (%) 1 20 1 7
Queuing Penalty (veh) 17 428 25 146
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 15: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB
Directions Served TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 361
Average Queue (ft) 183
95th Queue (ft) 427
Link Distance (ft) 266
Upstream Blk Time (%) 6
Queuing Penalty (veh) 117
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 88



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 13

Intersection: 16: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 17: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB
Directions Served TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 217
Average Queue (ft) 80
95th Queue (ft) 174
Link Distance (ft) 314
Upstream Blk Time (%) 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 7415

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 89



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PHF = 0.75 (TJKM’s assumption) 

Evac 1 + Project – Evacuation plus project, with trap lane, in the AM 

Peak  

 

 

  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 90



SimTraffic Simulation Summary AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 1

Summary of All Intervals

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Start Time 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50
End Time 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00
Total Time (min) 70 70 70 70 70 70
Time Recorded (min) 60 60 60 60 60 60
# of Intervals 2 2 2 2 2 2
# of Recorded Intervals 1 1 1 1 1 1
Vehs Entered 2263 2295 2244 2328 2313 2288
Vehs Exited 2102 2093 2083 2150 2194 2124
Starting Vehs 258 221 256 240 270 249
Ending Vehs 419 423 417 418 389 413
Denied Entry Before 144 118 171 165 170 154
Denied Entry After 3606 3495 3527 3411 3573 3521
Travel Distance (mi) 1958 1940 1912 1998 1993 1960
Travel Time (hr) 2184.8 2082.6 2177.1 2092.5 2164.7 2140.3
Total Delay (hr) 2116.4 2014.8 2109.6 2022.3 2095.0 2071.6
Total Stops 8764 8548 8324 9019 8972 8724
Fuel Used (gal) 547.6 524.9 544.9 528.3 545.2 538.2

Interval #0 Information  Seeding
Start Time 6:50
End Time 7:00
Total Time (min) 10
No data recorded this interval.

Interval #1 Information  Recording
Start Time 7:00
End Time 8:00
Total Time (min) 60
Volumes adjusted by PHF.

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Vehs Entered 2263 2295 2244 2328 2313 2288
Vehs Exited 2102 2093 2083 2150 2194 2124
Starting Vehs 258 221 256 240 270 249
Ending Vehs 419 423 417 418 389 413
Denied Entry Before 144 118 171 165 170 154
Denied Entry After 3606 3495 3527 3411 3573 3521
Travel Distance (mi) 1958 1940 1912 1998 1993 1960
Travel Time (hr) 2184.8 2082.6 2177.1 2092.5 2164.7 2140.3
Total Delay (hr) 2116.4 2014.8 2109.6 2022.3 2095.0 2071.6
Total Stops 8764 8548 8324 9019 8972 8724
Fuel Used (gal) 547.6 524.9 544.9 528.3 545.2 538.2

Denied Entry After 3606 3495 3527 3411 3573 3521

g
Denied Entry Beforey 144 118 171 165 170 154

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 91



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 2

1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.2 0.1 0.2
Total Delay (hr) 0.2 0.1 0.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.8 5.4 4.1
Stop Delay (hr) 0.1 0.0 0.2
Stop Del/Veh (s) 2.9 3.8 3.0
Vehicles Entered 177 34 211
Vehicles Exited 176 33 209
Hourly Exit Rate 176 33 209
Input Volume 173 33 206
% of Volume 102 100 101
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.1 20.1 0.3 20.5
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.9 148.6 5.7 97.7
Stop Delay (hr) 0.1 19.1 0.2 19.4
Stop Del/Veh (s) 4.1 140.8 3.9 92.2
Vehicles Entered 59 475 209 743
Vehicles Exited 59 464 209 732
Hourly Exit Rate 59 464 209 732
Input Volume 56 637 207 900
% of Volume 105 73 101 81
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 92



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 3

3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 400.7 0.0 400.7
Denied Del/Veh (s) 962.4 0.0 646.6
Total Delay (hr) 15.4 6.5 21.8
Total Del/Veh (s) 88.9 31.0 57.3
Stop Delay (hr) 13.7 5.1 18.8
Stop Del/Veh (s) 79.2 24.6 49.4
Vehicles Entered 609 732 1341
Vehicles Exited 606 725 1331
Hourly Exit Rate 606 725 1331
Input Volume 1499 900 2399
% of Volume 40 81 55
Denied Entry Before 7 0 7
Denied Entry After 890 0 890

4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL WBT NBL SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 381.4 20.4 3.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 405.4
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1544.3 254.1 269.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 570.4
Total Delay (hr) 9.2 7.5 1.4 0.1 21.9 2.0 42.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 224.5 108.8 117.4 81.8 65.0 53.8 84.7
Stop Delay (hr) 9.4 7.2 1.3 0.1 19.4 1.8 39.3
Stop Del/Veh (s) 229.7 104.7 112.5 81.0 57.8 50.3 79.3
Vehicles Entered 138 247 42 5 1198 129 1759
Vehicles Exited 137 244 41 5 1175 128 1730
Hourly Exit Rate 137 244 41 5 1175 128 1730
Input Volume 857 297 45 5 2168 231 3603
% of Volume 16 82 91 100 54 55 48
Denied Entry Before 40 0 0 0 0 0 40
Denied Entry After 751 42 7 0 0 0 800

p ( )
Vehicles Entered 609 732 1341
Vehicles Exited 606 725 1331
Hourly Exit Rate 606 725 1331y
Input Volume 1499 900 2399p
% of Volume 40 81 55
Denied Entry Before 7 0 7y
Denied Entry After 890 0 890

Vehicles Exited 137 244 41 5 1175 128 1730
Hourly Exit Rate 137 244 41 5 1175 128 1730y
Input Volume 857 297 45 5 2168 231 3603p
% of Volume 16 82 91 100 54 55 48
Denied Entry Before 40 0 0 0 0 0 40y
Denied Entry After 751 42 7 0 0 0 800

p ( )
Vehicles Entered 138 247 42 5 1198 129 1759

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 93



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 4

5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard Performance by movement 

Movement WBL NBT NBR SBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 564.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 564.4
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1578.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 725.7
Total Delay (hr) 21.7 0.0 0.0 3.5 24.7 50.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 326.5 12.8 3.7 97.3 64.6 100.7
Stop Delay (hr) 21.5 0.0 0.0 3.3 21.4 46.2
Stop Del/Veh (s) 323.2 11.6 3.9 91.1 55.9 93.1
Vehicles Entered 214 7 32 128 1346 1727
Vehicles Exited 215 7 32 128 1346 1728
Hourly Exit Rate 215 7 32 128 1346 1728
Input Volume 1212 6 29 291 3032 4570
% of Volume 18 117 110 44 44 38
Denied Entry Before 72 0 0 0 0 72
Denied Entry After 1073 0 0 0 0 1073

6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp Performance by movement 

Movement SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 6.2 6.2
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 8 8
Vehicles Exited 8 8
Hourly Exit Rate 8 8
Input Volume 35 35
% of Volume 23 23
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

Vehicles Exited 215 7 32 128 1346 1728
Hourly Exit Rate 215 7 32 128 1346 1728y
Input Volume 1212 6 29 291 3032 4570p
% of Volume 18 117 110 44 44 38
Denied Entry Before 72 0 0 0 0 72y
Denied Entry After 1073 0 0 0 0 1073

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 94



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 5

7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 1.9 1.9
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1
Vehicles Entered 34 34
Vehicles Exited 34 34
Hourly Exit Rate 34 34
Input Volume 35 35
% of Volume 97 97
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

11: Pleasant Hill Road & Project Dwy Performance by movement 

Movement EBR NBT SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 294.0 0.0 0.0 294.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1369.0 0.0 0.0 446.0
Total Delay (hr) 7.0 0.0 13.7 20.7
Total Del/Veh (s) 112.7 0.0 31.4 40.6
Stop Delay (hr) 7.5 0.0 11.1 18.6
Stop Del/Veh (s) 120.4 0.0 25.4 36.5
Vehicles Entered 217 39 1561 1817
Vehicles Exited 217 39 1558 1814
Hourly Exit Rate 217 39 1558 1814
Input Volume 735 35 4244 5014
% of Volume 30 111 37 36
Denied Entry Before 31 0 0 31
Denied Entry After 556 0 0 556

Hourly Exit Rate 217 39 1558 1814y
Input Volume 735 35 4244 5014p
% of Volume 30 111 37 36
Denied Entry Before 31 0 0 31y
Denied Entry After 556 0 0 556

p ( )
Vehicles Entered 217 39 1561 1817
Vehicles Exited 217 39 1558 1814

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 95



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 6

14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue Performance by movement 

Movement NBT SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 8.4 8.4
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.3 16.9 16.6
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 8.1 8.1
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 16.4 16.1
Vehicles Entered 39 1775 1814
Vehicles Exited 39 1768 1807
Hourly Exit Rate 39 1768 1807
Input Volume 35 4979 5014
% of Volume 111 36 36
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

15: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement WBR SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 10.4 1.6 12.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.7 41.4 6.8 23.9
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 11.6 0.2 11.9
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 46.5 0.9 23.6
Vehicles Entered 39 898 869 1806
Vehicles Exited 39 890 869 1798
Hourly Exit Rate 39 890 869 1798
Input Volume 35 2507 2472 5014
% of Volume 111 36 35 36
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 96



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 7

16: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 16.4 16.4
Total Del/Veh (s) 65.5 65.6
Stop Delay (hr) 18.7 18.7
Stop Del/Veh (s) 74.5 74.5
Vehicles Entered 890 890
Vehicles Exited 884 884
Hourly Exit Rate 884 884
Input Volume 2507 2507
% of Volume 35 35
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

17: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.2 19.5 19.7
Denied Del/Veh (s) 93.6 76.9 77.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.1 14.9 15.1
Total Del/Veh (s) 64.0 60.2 60.2
Stop Delay (hr) 0.2 17.4 17.6
Stop Del/Veh (s) 70.0 70.2 70.2
Vehicles Entered 8 876 884
Vehicles Exited 8 875 883
Hourly Exit Rate 8 875 883
Input Volume 35 2507 2542
% of Volume 23 35 35
Denied Entry Before 0 2 2
Denied Entry After 0 37 37

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 97



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 8

Total Network Performance 

Denied Delay (hr) 1758.9
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1090.0
Total Delay (hr) 312.7
Total Del/Veh (s) 443.8
Stop Delay (hr) 287.8
Stop Del/Veh (s) 408.4
Vehicles Entered 2288
Vehicles Exited 2124
Hourly Exit Rate 2124
Input Volume 44058
% of Volume 5
Denied Entry Before 154
Denied Entry After 3521

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 98



Arterial Level of Service AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 9

Arterial Level of Service: NB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Acalanes Avenue 14 0.3 20.3 0.1 11
Project Dwy 11 0.0 4.1 0.0 33
Stanley Boulevard 5 12.8 19.5 0.1 15

37 1.7 9.9 0.1 30
Quandt Road 4 81.8 118.9 0.4 11
Total 96.5 172.8 0.6 13

Arterial Level of Service: SB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Rancho View Drive 1 5.4 20.8 0.2 26

19 1.1 15.6 0.1 34
Greenvalley Drive 2 5.7 12.5 0.1 21
Reliez Valle Road 3 28.0 51.8 0.3 17

20 14.3 18.0 0.0 7
Springhill Road 4 65.0 74.5 0.1 5

37 198.8 234.1 0.4 6
Deer Hill Road 5 64.6 72.6 0.1 4
Project Dwy 11 31.6 40.1 0.1 7
Acalanes Avenue 14 17.6 21.7 0.0 6

15 41.4 47.5 0.1 5
16 65.5 74.9 0.1 5
17 64.0 166.8 0.1 3

Mt. Diablo Boulevard 6 6.2 14.2 0.1 17
SR 24 EB Off Ramp 7 1.9 4.7 0.1 48
Total 611.1 869.5 1.7 8

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 99



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 10

Intersection: 1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive

Movement EB SB SB
Directions Served LTR T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 83 37 16
Average Queue (ft) 43 9 1
95th Queue (ft) 72 31 9
Link Distance (ft) 306 773 773
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive

Movement EB WB B60 SB SB
Directions Served LTR LT T T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 60 607 112 64 71
Average Queue (ft) 15 567 73 15 32
95th Queue (ft) 39 637 109 45 64
Link Distance (ft) 333 494 53 288 288
Upstream Blk Time (%) 85 87
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 77 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0

Intersection: 3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road

Movement EB EB SB SB
Directions Served L R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 454 488 332 355
Average Queue (ft) 271 459 183 195
95th Queue (ft) 627 478 280 308
Link Distance (ft) 438 438 1259 1259
Upstream Blk Time (%) 18 83
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 30
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 100



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 11

Intersection: 4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road

Movement EB WB NB SB SB SB B20 B20
Directions Served LTR LTR L T T R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 365 272 24 512 519 96 208 214
Average Queue (ft) 337 235 3 379 380 71 103 125
95th Queue (ft) 354 256 15 625 640 139 241 277
Link Distance (ft) 318 217 406 406 127 127
Upstream Blk Time (%) 100 82 42 52 13 46
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0 502 621 153 551
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 200 71
Storage Blk Time (%) 56 58 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 133 2

Intersection: 5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard

Movement WB WB NB NB SB SB SB SB B37 B37
Directions Served L LT T R L T T T T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 225 556 21 34 275 446 446 450 1878 2010
Average Queue (ft) 110 524 2 11 175 373 393 413 1622 1741
95th Queue (ft) 276 543 14 33 309 521 443 458 2450 2592
Link Distance (ft) 504 342 342 351 351 351 1832 1832
Upstream Blk Time (%) 96 26 36 40 20 76
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 285 395 439 340 1267
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 185 175
Storage Blk Time (%) 0 92 8 6 60
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 558 80 19 0

Intersection: 6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 101



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 12

Intersection: 7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road

Movement SB
Directions Served T
Maximum Queue (ft) 7
Average Queue (ft) 0
95th Queue (ft) 6
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 8: Brown Avenue/Miller Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 9: First Street/Sierra Vista Way & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 102



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 13

Intersection: 10: SR 24 WB Ramps/Laurel Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 11: Pleasant Hill Road & Project Dwy

Movement EB SB SB SB
Directions Served R T T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 216 390 391 394
Average Queue (ft) 183 154 327 324
95th Queue (ft) 199 383 459 484
Link Distance (ft) 164 342 342 342
Upstream Blk Time (%) 100 2 14 11
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 21 201 159
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 12: Project Dwy NE & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 103



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 14

Intersection: 13: Project Dwy SW & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue

Movement SB SB SB
Directions Served T T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 166 267 238
Average Queue (ft) 34 230 174
95th Queue (ft) 110 305 277
Link Distance (ft) 152 152 152
Upstream Blk Time (%) 1 94 11
Queuing Penalty (veh) 10 1555 180
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 15: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB SB SB
Directions Served T T R
Maximum Queue (ft) 60 369 287
Average Queue (ft) 12 336 103
95th Queue (ft) 50 408 228
Link Distance (ft) 262 262 262
Upstream Blk Time (%) 96 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 1586 5
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 104



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 15

Intersection: 16: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB
Directions Served T
Maximum Queue (ft) 540
Average Queue (ft) 512
95th Queue (ft) 545
Link Distance (ft) 302
Upstream Blk Time (%) 99
Queuing Penalty (veh) 1240
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 17: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB SB
Directions Served T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 125 532
Average Queue (ft) 4 506
95th Queue (ft) 63 530
Link Distance (ft) 314 314
Upstream Blk Time (%) 0 99
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 830
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 11131

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 105



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PHF = 0.75 (TJKM’s assumption) 

Evac 1 + Project Variant– Evacuation plus project, no trap lane, in the 

AM Peak  

 

  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 106



SimTraffic Simulation Summary AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 1

Summary of All Intervals

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Start Time 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50
End Time 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00
Total Time (min) 70 70 70 70 70 70
Time Recorded (min) 60 60 60 60 60 60
# of Intervals 2 2 2 2 2 2
# of Recorded Intervals 1 1 1 1 1 1
Vehs Entered 1791 1861 1881 1826 1818 1836
Vehs Exited 1693 1741 1734 1705 1729 1721
Starting Vehs 305 291 290 275 312 295
Ending Vehs 403 411 437 396 401 410
Denied Entry Before 150 161 149 162 161 157
Denied Entry After 4006 3989 3958 4088 3989 4005
Travel Distance (mi) 1583 1638 1617 1626 1663 1625
Travel Time (hr) 2421.0 2442.9 2410.2 2434.6 2418.7 2425.5
Total Delay (hr) 2365.5 2385.8 2353.9 2378.2 2361.2 2368.9
Total Stops 5726 6207 5810 6056 6244 6009
Fuel Used (gal) 590.3 597.6 588.3 594.4 592.5 592.6

Interval #0 Information  Seeding
Start Time 6:50
End Time 7:00
Total Time (min) 10
No data recorded this interval.

Interval #1 Information  Recording
Start Time 7:00
End Time 8:00
Total Time (min) 60
Volumes adjusted by PHF.

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Vehs Entered 1791 1861 1881 1826 1818 1836
Vehs Exited 1693 1741 1734 1705 1729 1721
Starting Vehs 305 291 290 275 312 295
Ending Vehs 403 411 437 396 401 410
Denied Entry Before 150 161 149 162 161 157
Denied Entry After 4006 3989 3958 4088 3989 4005
Travel Distance (mi) 1583 1638 1617 1626 1663 1625
Travel Time (hr) 2421.0 2442.9 2410.2 2434.6 2418.7 2425.5
Total Delay (hr) 2365.5 2385.8 2353.9 2378.2 2361.2 2368.9
Total Stops 5726 6207 5810 6056 6244 6009
Fuel Used (gal) 590.3 597.6 588.3 594.4 592.5 592.6

g
Denied Entry Before 150 161 149 162 161 157y
Denied Entry After 4006 3989 3958 4088 3989 4005

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 107



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 2

1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.2 0.1 0.2
Total Delay (hr) 0.2 0.1 0.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.9 7.2 4.4
Stop Delay (hr) 0.1 0.0 0.2
Stop Del/Veh (s) 3.0 5.4 3.4
Vehicles Entered 173 31 204
Vehicles Exited 174 31 205
Hourly Exit Rate 174 31 205
Input Volume 173 33 206
% of Volume 101 94 100
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.1 20.0 0.3 20.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.4 148.1 5.0 97.5
Stop Delay (hr) 0.1 18.9 0.2 19.2
Stop Del/Veh (s) 3.6 140.1 3.3 91.8
Vehicles Entered 60 476 205 741
Vehicles Exited 60 462 204 726
Hourly Exit Rate 60 462 204 726
Input Volume 56 637 207 900
% of Volume 107 73 99 81
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 108



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 3

3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 587.1 0.0 587.1
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1383.1 0.0 937.6
Total Delay (hr) 17.4 10.8 28.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 207.6 52.3 97.2
Stop Delay (hr) 17.6 9.3 26.9
Stop Del/Veh (s) 209.6 45.1 92.6
Vehicles Entered 290 726 1016
Vehicles Exited 284 714 998
Hourly Exit Rate 284 714 998
Input Volume 1499 900 2399
% of Volume 19 79 42
Denied Entry Before 8 0 8
Denied Entry After 1238 0 1238

4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL WBT NBL SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 355.8 29.6 4.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 389.8
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1474.0 367.2 397.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 638.7
Total Delay (hr) 9.9 7.8 1.1 0.1 32.8 2.8 54.5
Total Del/Veh (s) 191.0 122.8 130.0 87.9 130.5 99.5 134.8
Stop Delay (hr) 10.2 7.6 1.1 0.1 33.2 2.9 55.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 197.1 119.8 126.3 85.6 131.8 101.7 136.0
Vehicles Entered 177 227 31 5 894 99 1433
Vehicles Exited 176 222 30 5 865 97 1395
Hourly Exit Rate 176 222 30 5 865 97 1395
Input Volume 857 297 45 5 2168 231 3603
% of Volume 21 75 67 100 40 42 39
Denied Entry Before 16 0 0 0 0 0 16
Denied Entry After 692 63 9 0 0 0 764

p ( )
Vehicles Entered 290 726 1016
Vehicles Exited 284 714 998
Hourly Exit Rate 284 714 998y
Input Volume 1499 900 2399p
% of Volume 19 79 42
Denied Entry Before 8 0 8y
Denied Entry After 1238 0 1238

p ( )
Vehicles Entered 177 227 31 5 894 99 1433
Vehicles Exited 176 222 30 5 865 97 1395
Hourly Exit Rate 176 222 30 5 865 97 1395y
Input Volume 857 297 45 5 2168 231 3603p
% of Volume 21 75 67 100 40 42 39
Denied Entry Before 16 0 0 0 0 0 16y
Denied Entry After 692 63 9 0 0 0 764

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 109



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 4

5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard Performance by movement 

Movement WBL NBT NBR SBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 570.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 570.9
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1589.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 792.0
Total Delay (hr) 23.8 0.0 0.0 13.1 142.7 179.7
Total Del/Veh (s) 318.8 18.9 2.4 387.3 397.2 375.6
Stop Delay (hr) 23.6 0.0 0.0 12.6 140.5 176.7
Stop Del/Veh (s) 315.9 16.8 2.5 371.1 391.1 369.4
Vehicles Entered 243 5 33 112 1152 1545
Vehicles Exited 242 5 33 108 1123 1511
Hourly Exit Rate 242 5 33 108 1123 1511
Input Volume 1212 6 29 291 3032 4570
% of Volume 20 83 114 37 37 33
Denied Entry Before 72 0 0 0 0 72
Denied Entry After 1050 0 0 0 0 1050

6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp Performance by movement 

Movement SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 4.4 4.4
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 10 10
Vehicles Exited 10 10
Hourly Exit Rate 10 10
Input Volume 35 35
% of Volume 29 29
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

Hourly Exit Rate 242 5 33 108 1123 1511y
Input Volume 1212 6 29 291 3032 4570p
% of Volume 20 83 114 37 37 33
Denied Entry Before 72 0 0 0 0 72y
Denied Entry After 1050 0 0 0 0 1050

p ( )
Vehicles Entered 243 5 33 112 1152 1545
Vehicles Exited 242 5 33 108 1123 1511

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 110



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 5

7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 1.7 1.7
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1
Vehicles Entered 35 35
Vehicles Exited 35 35
Hourly Exit Rate 35 35
Input Volume 35 35
% of Volume 100 100
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

11: Pleasant Hill Road & Project Dwy Performance by movement 

Movement EBR NBT SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 420.6 0.0 0.0 420.6
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1907.0 0.0 0.0 688.9
Total Delay (hr) 7.9 0.0 8.2 16.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 1361.7 0.0 21.5 40.6
Stop Delay (hr) 8.0 0.0 4.7 12.6
Stop Del/Veh (s) 1366.8 0.0 12.2 31.7
Vehicles Entered 13 39 1365 1417
Vehicles Exited 12 39 1365 1416
Hourly Exit Rate 12 39 1365 1416
Input Volume 735 35 4244 5014
% of Volume 2 111 32 28
Denied Entry Before 61 0 0 61
Denied Entry After 781 0 0 781

Vehicles Exited 12 39 1365 1416
Hourly Exit Rate 12 39 1365 1416y
Input Volume 735 35 4244 5014p
% of Volume 2 111 32 28
Denied Entry Before 61 0 0 61y
Denied Entry After 781 0 0 781

p ( )
Vehicles Entered 13 39 1365 1417

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 111



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 6

14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue Performance by movement 

Movement NBT SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 4.8 4.8
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.2 12.4 12.1
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 1.7 1.7
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 4.3 4.2
Vehicles Entered 39 1377 1416
Vehicles Exited 39 1376 1415
Hourly Exit Rate 39 1376 1415
Input Volume 35 4979 5014
% of Volume 111 28 28
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

15: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement WBR SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 3.6 3.0 6.6
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.6 19.1 15.3 16.7
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.8
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 2.1 2.1 2.1
Vehicles Entered 39 676 701 1416
Vehicles Exited 39 676 701 1416
Hourly Exit Rate 39 676 701 1416
Input Volume 35 2507 2472 5014
% of Volume 111 27 28 28
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 112



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 7

16: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 1.2 1.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 6.6 6.6
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 676 676
Vehicles Exited 675 675
Hourly Exit Rate 675 675
Input Volume 2507 2507
% of Volume 27 27
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

17: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 1.0 1.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 6.9 5.0 5.1
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.4 0.4
Stop Del/Veh (s) 1.0 2.0 2.0
Vehicles Entered 10 700 710
Vehicles Exited 10 699 709
Hourly Exit Rate 10 699 709
Input Volume 35 2507 2542
% of Volume 29 28 28
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 113



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 8

Total Network Performance 

Denied Delay (hr) 2043.4
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1259.4
Total Delay (hr) 325.5
Total Del/Veh (s) 549.9
Stop Delay (hr) 305.5
Stop Del/Veh (s) 516.0
Vehicles Entered 1836
Vehicles Exited 1721
Hourly Exit Rate 1721
Input Volume 40731
% of Volume 4
Denied Entry Before 157
Denied Entry After 4005

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 114



Arterial Level of Service AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 9

Arterial Level of Service: NB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Acalanes Avenue 14 0.2 20.2 0.1 11
Project Dwy 11 0.0 4.1 0.0 34
Stanley Boulevard 5 18.9 26.8 0.1 11
Quandt Road 4 87.9 129.0 0.4 12
Total 107.0 180.0 0.6 12

Arterial Level of Service: SB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Rancho View Drive 1 7.2 22.7 0.2 24

19 1.3 15.6 0.1 34
Greenvalley Drive 2 5.0 11.8 0.1 22
Reliez Valle Road 3 49.1 72.3 0.3 12

20 26.2 29.9 0.0 4
Springhill Road 4 130.5 139.9 0.1 3
Deer Hill Road 5 360.6 399.0 0.4 4
Project Dwy 11 20.9 29.5 0.1 10
Acalanes Avenue 14 12.5 16.6 0.0 8

15 19.1 25.3 0.1 9
16 6.6 16.0 0.1 24
17 6.9 16.3 0.1 16

Mt. Diablo Boulevard 6 4.4 12.9 0.1 19
SR 24 EB Off Ramp 7 1.7 4.5 0.1 49
Total 652.1 812.3 1.7 7

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 115



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 10

Intersection: 1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive

Movement EB SB SB
Directions Served LTR T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 91 41 22
Average Queue (ft) 45 11 1
95th Queue (ft) 75 34 9
Link Distance (ft) 306 773 773
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive

Movement EB WB B60 SB SB
Directions Served LTR LT T T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 51 611 114 53 79
Average Queue (ft) 14 566 74 11 29
95th Queue (ft) 35 656 113 34 66
Link Distance (ft) 333 494 53 288 288
Upstream Blk Time (%) 84 87
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 76 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0

Intersection: 3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road

Movement EB EB SB SB
Directions Served L R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 455 481 425 447
Average Queue (ft) 218 456 230 228
95th Queue (ft) 582 471 381 408
Link Distance (ft) 438 438 1259 1259
Upstream Blk Time (%) 21 97
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 41
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 116



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 11

Intersection: 4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road

Movement EB WB NB SB SB SB B20 B20
Directions Served LTR LTR L T T R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 372 263 21 530 527 96 214 236
Average Queue (ft) 337 231 2 477 478 79 174 186
95th Queue (ft) 353 248 11 599 609 138 256 263
Link Distance (ft) 318 213 414 414 127 127
Upstream Blk Time (%) 100 83 88 90 31 88
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0 1062 1077 368 1061
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 200 71
Storage Blk Time (%) 89 84 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 194 4

Intersection: 5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard

Movement WB WB NB NB SB SB SB
Directions Served L LT T R L T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 225 556 27 42 275 2273 2409
Average Queue (ft) 204 523 2 11 185 2245 2372
95th Queue (ft) 299 542 14 32 342 2275 2427
Link Distance (ft) 504 342 342 2220 2220
Upstream Blk Time (%) 95 42 95
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 693 1585
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 185 175
Storage Blk Time (%) 8 97 6 27 69
Queuing Penalty (veh) 49 586 85 80 0

Intersection: 6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 117



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 12

Intersection: 7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road

Movement SB
Directions Served T
Maximum Queue (ft) 10
Average Queue (ft) 0
95th Queue (ft) 5
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 8: Brown Avenue/Miller Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 9: First Street/Sierra Vista Way & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 118



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 13

Intersection: 10: SR 24 WB Ramps/Laurel Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 11: Pleasant Hill Road & Project Dwy

Movement EB SB SB
Directions Served R T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 202 399 396
Average Queue (ft) 179 223 342
95th Queue (ft) 198 460 416
Link Distance (ft) 176 342 342
Upstream Blk Time (%) 100 2 8
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 37 174
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 12: Project Dwy NE & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 119



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 14

Intersection: 13: Project Dwy SW & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue

Movement SB SB
Directions Served T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 186 264
Average Queue (ft) 50 226
95th Queue (ft) 147 279
Link Distance (ft) 150 150
Upstream Blk Time (%) 1 24
Queuing Penalty (veh) 19 590
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 15: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB
Directions Served TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 353
Average Queue (ft) 165
95th Queue (ft) 408
Link Distance (ft) 266
Upstream Blk Time (%) 5
Queuing Penalty (veh) 112
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 120



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 15

Intersection: 16: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 17: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB
Directions Served TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 184
Average Queue (ft) 73
95th Queue (ft) 144
Link Distance (ft) 314
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 7775

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 121



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PHF = 1.0 

Evac 1 – Evacuation (without project) in the AM Peak  

 

 

 

  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 122



SimTraffic Simulation Summary
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 1

Summary of All Intervals

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Start Time 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50
End Time 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00
Total Time (min) 70 70 70 70 70 70
Time Recorded (min) 60 60 60 60 60 60
# of Intervals 2 2 2 2 2 2
# of Recorded Intervals 1 1 1 1 1 1
Vehs Entered 1829 1780 1769 1792 1766 1788
Vehs Exited 1731 1679 1706 1700 1710 1706
Starting Vehs 281 262 307 270 292 282
Ending Vehs 379 363 370 362 348 362
Denied Entry Before 111 105 100 89 97 101
Denied Entry After 1982 2023 2037 1992 2107 2029
Travel Distance (mi) 1600 1579 1608 1611 1609 1601
Travel Time (hr) 1351.0 1392.4 1406.7 1353.8 1407.4 1382.3
Total Delay (hr) 1295.1 1337.5 1350.7 1297.7 1351.6 1326.5
Total Stops 6213 6007 6125 6099 6108 6112
Fuel Used (gal) 348.4 356.7 360.7 349.6 362.3 355.5

Interval #0 Information  Seeding
Start Time 6:50
End Time 7:00
Total Time (min) 10
Volumes adjusted by Growth Factors.
No data recorded this interval.

Interval #1 Information  Recording
Start Time 7:00
End Time 8:00
Total Time (min) 60
Volumes adjusted by Growth Factors.

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Vehs Entered 1829 1780 1769 1792 1766 1788
Vehs Exited 1731 1679 1706 1700 1710 1706
Starting Vehs 281 262 307 270 292 282
Ending Vehs 379 363 370 362 348 362
Denied Entry Before 111 105 100 89 97 101
Denied Entry After 1982 2023 2037 1992 2107 2029
Travel Distance (mi) 1600 1579 1608 1611 1609 1601
Travel Time (hr) 1351.0 1392.4 1406.7 1353.8 1407.4 1382.3
Total Delay (hr) 1295.1 1337.5 1350.7 1297.7 1351.6 1326.5
Total Stops 6213 6007 6125 6099 6108 6112
Fuel Used (gal) 348.4 356.7 360.7 349.6 362.3 355.5

Denied Entry After 1982 2023 2037 1992 2107 2029

g
Denied Entry Beforey 111 105 100 89 97 1001

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 123



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 2

1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.2 0.1 0.2
Total Delay (hr) 0.1 0.0 0.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.5 5.4 3.8
Stop Delay (hr) 0.1 0.0 0.1
Stop Del/Veh (s) 2.7 4.1 2.9
Vehicles Entered 131 24 155
Vehicles Exited 131 24 155
Hourly Exit Rate 131 24 155
Input Volume 130 25 155
% of Volume 101 96 100
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 11.9 0.2 12.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 2.8 90.1 5.4 64.9
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 10.8 0.2 11.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 3.0 81.4 3.7 58.4
Vehicles Entered 44 467 154 665
Vehicles Exited 44 461 155 660
Hourly Exit Rate 44 461 155 660
Input Volume 42 478 155 675
% of Volume 105 96 100 98
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 124



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 3

3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 340.2 0.0 340.2
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1091.5 0.0 687.3
Total Delay (hr) 17.0 6.6 23.7
Total Del/Veh (s) 157.5 35.4 80.1
Stop Delay (hr) 16.8 5.4 22.2
Stop Del/Veh (s) 155.7 28.7 75.2
Vehicles Entered 376 660 1036
Vehicles Exited 369 660 1029
Hourly Exit Rate 369 660 1029
Input Volume 1124 675 1799
% of Volume 33 98 57
Denied Entry Before 6 0 6
Denied Entry After 746 0 746

4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL WBT NBL SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 256.6 6.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 263.6
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1364.6 96.2 92.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 482.6
Total Delay (hr) 10.0 6.9 1.2 0.1 31.9 2.8 52.9
Total Del/Veh (s) 206.2 114.7 114.1 99.9 122.7 94.6 128.9
Stop Delay (hr) 10.3 6.8 1.1 0.1 31.9 2.9 53.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 212.2 111.7 110.2 97.4 122.8 95.7 129.3
Vehicles Entered 166 216 36 3 918 107 1446
Vehicles Exited 165 212 36 3 896 103 1415
Hourly Exit Rate 165 212 36 3 896 103 1415
Input Volume 643 223 34 4 1626 173 2703
% of Volume 26 95 106 75 55 60 52
Denied Entry Before 11 1 0 0 0 0 12
Denied Entry After 511 8 1 0 0 0 520

Hourly Exit Rate 369 660 1029y
Input Volume 1124 675 1799p
% of Volume 33 98 57
Denied Entry Before 6 0 6y
Denied Entry After 746 0 746

p ( )
Vehicles Entered 376 660 1036
Vehicles Exited 369 660 1029

Hourly Exit Rate 165 212 36 3 896 103 1415y
Input Volume 643 223 34 4 1626 173 2703p
% of Volume 26 95 106 75 55 60 52
Denied Entry Before 11 1 0 0 0 0 12y
Denied Entry After 511 8 1 0 0 0 520

p ( )
Vehicles Entered 166 216 36 3 918 107 1446
Vehicles Exited 165 212 36 3 896 103 1415

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 125



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 4

5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard Performance by movement 

Movement WBL NBT NBR SBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 422.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 422.6
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1507.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 659.7
Total Delay (hr) 24.0 0.0 0.0 13.3 141.8 179.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 315.9 29.4 3.3 380.3 396.7 377.1
Stop Delay (hr) 23.9 0.0 0.0 12.7 138.9 175.6
Stop Del/Veh (s) 313.5 27.4 3.4 363.3 388.7 369.4
Vehicles Entered 246 4 21 115 1157 1543
Vehicles Exited 248 3 22 112 1123 1508
Hourly Exit Rate 248 3 22 112 1123 1508
Input Volume 909 4 22 218 2274 3427
% of Volume 27 75 100 51 49 44
Denied Entry Before 83 0 0 0 0 83
Denied Entry After 763 0 0 0 0 763

6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp Performance by movement 

Movement SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 4.5 4.5
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 12 12
Vehicles Exited 12 12
Hourly Exit Rate 12 12
Input Volume 26 26
% of Volume 46 46
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 126



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 5

7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 1.8 1.8
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.2 0.2
Vehicles Entered 29 29
Vehicles Exited 29 29
Hourly Exit Rate 29 29
Input Volume 26 26
% of Volume 112 112
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue Performance by movement 

Movement NBT SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 4.5 4.5
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.2 11.9 11.7
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 1.4 1.4
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 3.8 3.7
Vehicles Entered 25 1372 1397
Vehicles Exited 25 1372 1397
Hourly Exit Rate 25 1372 1397
Input Volume 26 3183 3209
% of Volume 96 43 44
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 127



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 6

15: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement WBR SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 3.7 2.9 6.5
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.6 19.0 15.1 16.8
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.9
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 2.3 2.3 2.3
Vehicles Entered 25 689 683 1397
Vehicles Exited 25 689 683 1397
Hourly Exit Rate 25 689 683 1397
Input Volume 26 1605 1578 3209
% of Volume 96 43 43 44
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

16: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 1.3 1.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 6.6 6.6
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 689 689
Vehicles Exited 689 689
Hourly Exit Rate 689 689
Input Volume 1605 1605
% of Volume 43 43
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 128



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 7

17: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 1.0 1.1
Total Del/Veh (s) 7.8 5.3 5.3
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.4 0.4
Stop Del/Veh (s) 1.8 2.1 2.1
Vehicles Entered 12 705 717
Vehicles Exited 12 704 716
Hourly Exit Rate 12 704 716
Input Volume 26 1605 1631
% of Volume 46 44 44
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

Total Network Performance 

Denied Delay (hr) 1027.1
Denied Del/Veh (s) 968.7
Total Delay (hr) 299.5
Total Del/Veh (s) 521.3
Stop Delay (hr) 277.9
Stop Del/Veh (s) 483.8
Vehicles Entered 1788
Vehicles Exited 1706
Hourly Exit Rate 1706
Input Volume 27792
% of Volume 6
Denied Entry Before 101
Denied Entry After 2029

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 129



Arterial Level of Service
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 8

Arterial Level of Service: NB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Acalanes Avenue 14 0.2 20.1 0.1 11

11 0.0 4.0 0.0 34
Stanley Boulevard 5 29.4 36.5 0.1 8
Quandt Road 4 99.9 148.7 0.4 11
Total 129.5 209.3 0.6 11

Arterial Level of Service: SB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Rancho View Drive 1 5.4 20.6 0.2 27

19 0.9 16.0 0.1 33
Greenvalley Drive 2 5.4 12.3 0.1 21
Reliez Valle Road 3 31.8 55.7 0.3 16

20 23.5 27.1 0.0 4
Springhill Road 4 122.7 132.1 0.1 3
Deer Hill Road 5 365.6 404.1 0.4 4

11 19.1 27.7 0.1 10
Acalanes Avenue 14 11.9 15.9 0.0 9

15 19.0 25.1 0.1 9
16 6.6 16.0 0.1 24
17 7.8 16.2 0.1 16

Mt. Diablo Boulevard 6 4.5 12.4 0.1 20
SR 24 EB Off Ramp 7 1.8 4.6 0.1 49
Total 625.8 785.8 1.7 8

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 130



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 9

Intersection: 1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive

Movement EB SB SB
Directions Served LTR T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 68 32 11
Average Queue (ft) 37 6 0
95th Queue (ft) 65 25 5
Link Distance (ft) 306 773 773
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive

Movement EB WB B60 SB SB
Directions Served LTR LT T T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 34 562 73 47 71
Average Queue (ft) 9 413 19 9 26
95th Queue (ft) 24 637 74 32 58
Link Distance (ft) 333 494 53 288 288
Upstream Blk Time (%) 22 12
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 67 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0

Intersection: 3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road

Movement EB EB SB SB
Directions Served L R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 454 486 339 344
Average Queue (ft) 237 456 177 175
95th Queue (ft) 599 474 273 281
Link Distance (ft) 438 438 1259 1259
Upstream Blk Time (%) 24 94
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 26
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 131



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 10

Intersection: 4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road

Movement EB WB NB SB SB SB B20 B20
Directions Served LTR LTR L T T R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 368 254 15 521 527 96 212 215
Average Queue (ft) 336 227 1 470 472 76 161 179
95th Queue (ft) 353 257 8 597 611 140 252 267
Link Distance (ft) 318 213 414 414 127 127
Upstream Blk Time (%) 99 70 83 87 22 82
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0 748 784 202 736
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 200 71
Storage Blk Time (%) 86 82 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 142 2

Intersection: 5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard

Movement WB WB NB NB SB SB SB
Directions Served L LT T R L T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 225 547 23 38 275 2273 2408
Average Queue (ft) 210 523 3 9 173 2241 2368
95th Queue (ft) 283 537 15 30 328 2310 2462
Link Distance (ft) 504 347 347 2220 2220
Upstream Blk Time (%) 95 42 95
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 520 1178
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 185 175
Storage Blk Time (%) 8 97 4 26 66
Queuing Penalty (veh) 36 441 51 56 0

Intersection: 6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 132



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 11

Intersection: 7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road

Movement SB
Directions Served T
Maximum Queue (ft) 5
Average Queue (ft) 0
95th Queue (ft) 3
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 8: Brown Avenue/Miller Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 9: First Street/Sierra Vista Way & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 133



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 12

Intersection: 10: SR 24 WB Ramps/Laurel Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue

Movement SB SB B11 B11
Directions Served T T T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 167 258 387 387
Average Queue (ft) 36 209 196 337
95th Queue (ft) 119 296 420 420
Link Distance (ft) 147 147 347 347
Upstream Blk Time (%) 1 20 1 6
Queuing Penalty (veh) 9 324 13 99
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 15: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB SB
Directions Served T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 11 354
Average Queue (ft) 0 191
95th Queue (ft) 8 441
Link Distance (ft) 266 266
Upstream Blk Time (%) 6
Queuing Penalty (veh) 94
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 134



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 13

Intersection: 16: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 17: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB SB
Directions Served T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 14 165
Average Queue (ft) 0 75
95th Queue (ft) 10 147
Link Distance (ft) 314 314
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 5435

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 135



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PHF = 1.0 

Evac 1 + Project – Evacuation plus project, with trap lane, in the AM 

Peak  

 

  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 136



SimTraffic Simulation Summary
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 1

Summary of All Intervals

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Start Time 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50
End Time 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00
Total Time (min) 70 70 70 70 70 70
Time Recorded (min) 60 60 60 60 60 60
# of Intervals 2 2 2 2 2 2
# of Recorded Intervals 1 1 1 1 1 1
Vehs Entered 2313 2278 2198 2250 2209 2249
Vehs Exited 2165 2144 2089 2068 2058 2105
Starting Vehs 258 231 256 249 270 256
Ending Vehs 406 365 365 431 421 397
Denied Entry Before 144 167 171 169 170 165
Denied Entry After 2127 2179 2246 2233 2121 2181
Travel Distance (mi) 1976 1959 1927 1894 1879 1927
Travel Time (hr) 1489.0 1424.4 1515.3 1507.4 1458.8 1479.0
Total Delay (hr) 1419.8 1355.7 1448.0 1441.1 1392.7 1411.4
Total Stops 9117 8435 8871 8651 8322 8680
Fuel Used (gal) 391.0 376.5 395.1 393.7 380.7 387.4

Interval #0 Information  Seeding
Start Time 6:50
End Time 7:00
Total Time (min) 10
Volumes adjusted by Growth Factors.
No data recorded this interval.

Interval #1 Information  Recording
Start Time 7:00
End Time 8:00
Total Time (min) 60
Volumes adjusted by Growth Factors.

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Vehs Entered 2313 2278 2198 2250 2209 2249
Vehs Exited 2165 2144 2089 2068 2058 2105
Starting Vehs 258 231 256 249 270 256
Ending Vehs 406 365 365 431 421 397
Denied Entry Before 144 167 171 169 170 165
Denied Entry After 2127 2179 2246 2233 2121 2181
Travel Distance (mi) 1976 1959 1927 1894 1879 1927
Travel Time (hr) 1489.0 1424.4 1515.3 1507.4 1458.8 1479.0
Total Delay (hr) 1419.8 1355.7 1448.0 1441.1 1392.7 1411.4
Total Stops 9117 8435 8871 8651 8322 8680
Fuel Used (gal) 391.0 376.5 395.1 393.7 380.7 387.4

7g
Denied Entry Before 144 167 171 169 170 165y
Denied Entry After 2127 2179 2246 2233 2121 2181

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 137



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 2

1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1 0.1
Total Delay (hr) 0.1 0.0 0.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.5 5.8 3.9
Stop Delay (hr) 0.1 0.0 0.1
Stop Del/Veh (s) 2.8 4.2 3.0
Vehicles Entered 133 23 156
Vehicles Exited 133 23 156
Hourly Exit Rate 133 23 156
Input Volume 130 25 155
% of Volume 102 92 101
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 13.6 0.2 13.9
Total Del/Veh (s) 2.7 101.7 5.2 73.8
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 12.5 0.2 12.7
Stop Del/Veh (s) 3.0 93.2 3.6 67.3
Vehicles Entered 39 469 156 664
Vehicles Exited 38 463 156 657
Hourly Exit Rate 38 463 156 657
Input Volume 42 478 155 675
% of Volume 90 97 101 97
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 138



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 3

3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 183.4 0.0 183.4
Denied Del/Veh (s) 578.6 0.0 367.2
Total Delay (hr) 14.4 4.6 19.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 72.8 24.8 49.4
Stop Delay (hr) 12.4 3.6 15.9
Stop Del/Veh (s) 62.7 19.0 41.5
Vehicles Entered 698 657 1355
Vehicles Exited 692 658 1350
Hourly Exit Rate 692 658 1350
Input Volume 1124 675 1799
% of Volume 62 97 75
Denied Entry Before 8 0 8
Denied Entry After 443 0 443

4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL WBT NBL SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 277.0 0.8 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 278.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1445.2 13.3 15.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 434.5
Total Delay (hr) 9.2 5.0 0.8 0.1 21.5 1.9 38.4
Total Del/Veh (s) 221.2 78.3 84.8 80.9 62.7 52.3 77.8
Stop Delay (hr) 9.4 4.7 0.8 0.1 19.1 1.8 35.9
Stop Del/Veh (s) 226.4 74.7 80.3 80.3 55.8 49.2 72.6
Vehicles Entered 141 226 34 4 1220 129 1754
Vehicles Exited 141 225 33 4 1196 127 1726
Hourly Exit Rate 141 225 33 4 1196 127 1726
Input Volume 643 223 34 4 1626 173 2703
% of Volume 22 101 97 100 74 73 64
Denied Entry Before 40 0 0 0 0 0 40
Denied Entry After 549 0 0 0 0 0 549

p ( )
Vehicles Entered 698 657 1355
Vehicles Exited 692 658 1350
Hourly Exit Rate 692 658 1350y
Input Volume 1124 675 1799p
% of Volume 62 97 75
Denied Entry Before 8 0 8y
Denied Entry After 443 0 443

Hourly Exit Rate 141 225 33 4 1196 127 1726y
Input Volume 643 223 34 4 1626 173 2703p
% of Volume 22 101 97 100 74 73 64
Denied Entry Before 40 0 0 0 0 0 40y
Denied Entry After 549 0 0 0 0 0 549

p ( )
Vehicles Entered 141 226 34 4 1220 1299 1754
Vehicles Exited 141 225 33 4 1196 127 1726

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 139



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 4

5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard Performance by movement 

Movement WBL NBT NBR SBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 429.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 429.5
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1546.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 619.4
Total Delay (hr) 22.1 0.0 0.0 3.5 24.5 50.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 326.7 19.3 3.6 95.9 64.4 101.8
Stop Delay (hr) 21.8 0.0 0.0 3.3 21.3 46.4
Stop Del/Veh (s) 323.3 17.4 3.8 89.6 55.8 94.2
Vehicles Entered 218 4 22 129 1341 1714
Vehicles Exited 218 4 22 131 1342 1717
Hourly Exit Rate 218 4 22 131 1342 1717
Input Volume 909 4 22 218 2274 3427
% of Volume 24 100 100 60 59 50
Denied Entry Before 82 0 0 0 0 82
Denied Entry After 782 0 0 0 0 782

6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp Performance by movement 

Movement SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 5.8 5.8
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 7 7
Vehicles Exited 7 7
Hourly Exit Rate 7 7
Input Volume 26 26
% of Volume 27 27
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

p ( )
Vehicles Entered 218 4 22 129 1341 1714
Vehicles Exited 218 4 22 131 1342 1717
Hourly Exit Rate 218 4 22 131 1342 1717y
Input Volume 909 4 22 218 2274 3427p
% of Volume 24 100 100 60 59 50
Denied Entry Before 82 0 0 0 0 82y
Denied Entry After 782 0 0 0 0 782

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 140



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 5

7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 1.9 1.9
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.3 0.3
Vehicles Entered 31 31
Vehicles Exited 31 31
Hourly Exit Rate 31 31
Input Volume 26 26
% of Volume 119 119
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

11: Pleasant Hill Road & Project Dwy Performance by movement 

Movement EBR NBT SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 205.8 0.0 0.0 205.8
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1266.7 0.0 0.0 341.3
Total Delay (hr) 7.0 0.0 14.4 21.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 115.4 0.0 32.9 42.3
Stop Delay (hr) 7.4 0.0 11.8 19.2
Stop Del/Veh (s) 123.2 0.0 27.0 38.1
Vehicles Entered 211 26 1560 1797
Vehicles Exited 210 26 1556 1792
Hourly Exit Rate 210 26 1556 1792
Input Volume 551 26 3183 3760
% of Volume 38 100 49 48
Denied Entry Before 31 0 0 31
Denied Entry After 374 0 0 374

Hourly Exit Rate 210 26 1556 1792y
Input Volume 551 26 3183 3760p
% of Volume 38 100 49 48
Denied Entry Before 31 0 0 31y
Denied Entry After 374 0 0 374

p ( )
Vehicles Entered 211 26 1560 1797
Vehicles Exited 210 26 1556 1792

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 141



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 6

14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue Performance by movement 

Movement NBT SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 8.6 8.6
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.2 17.6 17.3
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 8.4 8.4
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 17.2 16.9
Vehicles Entered 26 1766 1792
Vehicles Exited 26 1758 1784
Hourly Exit Rate 26 1758 1784
Input Volume 26 3734 3760
% of Volume 100 47 47
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

15: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement WBR SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 10.7 1.6 12.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.6 42.8 6.6 24.6
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 12.0 0.2 12.2
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 48.3 0.8 24.5
Vehicles Entered 26 889 869 1784
Vehicles Exited 26 882 870 1778
Hourly Exit Rate 26 882 870 1778
Input Volume 26 1880 1854 3760
% of Volume 100 47 47 47
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 142



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 7

16: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 16.6 16.6
Total Del/Veh (s) 66.3 66.3
Stop Delay (hr) 18.9 18.9
Stop Del/Veh (s) 75.5 75.5
Vehicles Entered 882 882
Vehicles Exited 882 882
Hourly Exit Rate 882 882
Input Volume 1880 1880
% of Volume 47 47
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

17: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.2 14.9 15.2
Denied Del/Veh (s) 106.7 59.3 59.7
Total Delay (hr) 0.1 15.0 15.1
Total Del/Veh (s) 59.2 60.5 60.4
Stop Delay (hr) 0.1 17.5 17.6
Stop Del/Veh (s) 63.0 70.6 70.5
Vehicles Entered 7 876 883
Vehicles Exited 7 875 882
Hourly Exit Rate 7 875 882
Input Volume 26 1880 1906
% of Volume 27 47 46
Denied Entry Before 0 2 2
Denied Entry After 1 30 31

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 143



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 8

Total Network Performance 

Denied Delay (hr) 1113.6
Denied Del/Veh (s) 905.0
Total Delay (hr) 297.8
Total Del/Veh (s) 428.5
Stop Delay (hr) 274.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 394.3
Vehicles Entered 2249
Vehicles Exited 2105
Hourly Exit Rate 2105
Input Volume 33042
% of Volume 6
Denied Entry Before 165
Denied Entry After 2181

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 144



Arterial Level of Service
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 9

Arterial Level of Service: NB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Acalanes Avenue 14 0.2 20.2 0.1 11
Project Dwy 11 0.0 4.1 0.0 33
Stanley Boulevard 5 19.3 27.1 0.1 10

37 1.8 9.7 0.1 31
Quandt Road 4 80.9 116.6 0.4 11
Total 102.1 177.8 0.6 13

Arterial Level of Service: SB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Rancho View Drive 1 5.8 21.2 0.2 26

19 1.0 16.4 0.1 33
Greenvalley Drive 2 5.2 12.0 0.1 21
Reliez Valle Road 3 20.2 43.9 0.3 21

20 11.5 15.1 0.0 8
Springhill Road 4 62.7 72.2 0.1 5

37 196.3 231.5 0.4 6
Deer Hill Road 5 64.4 72.3 0.1 4
Project Dwy 11 33.0 41.4 0.1 7
Acalanes Avenue 14 18.2 22.3 0.0 6

15 42.8 48.9 0.1 5
16 66.3 75.6 0.1 5
17 59.2 189.6 0.1 4

Mt. Diablo Boulevard 6 5.8 13.5 0.1 18
SR 24 EB Off Ramp 7 1.9 4.7 0.1 48
Total 594.2 880.6 1.7 8

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 145



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 10

Intersection: 1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive

Movement EB SB SB
Directions Served LTR T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 76 46 16
Average Queue (ft) 39 7 1
95th Queue (ft) 64 28 7
Link Distance (ft) 306 773 773
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive

Movement EB WB B60 SB SB
Directions Served LTR LT T T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 34 585 84 47 61
Average Queue (ft) 10 446 27 10 23
95th Queue (ft) 26 659 87 31 52
Link Distance (ft) 333 494 53 288 288
Upstream Blk Time (%) 32 26
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 70 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0

Intersection: 3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road

Movement EB EB SB SB
Directions Served L R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 467 487 270 294
Average Queue (ft) 281 459 147 161
95th Queue (ft) 634 478 215 228
Link Distance (ft) 438 438 1259 1259
Upstream Blk Time (%) 17 80
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 20
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 146



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 11

Intersection: 4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road

Movement EB WB NB SB SB SB B20 B20
Directions Served LTR LTR L T T R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 368 258 15 506 515 96 212 229
Average Queue (ft) 336 211 2 375 383 62 94 130
95th Queue (ft) 353 278 10 632 651 137 222 278
Link Distance (ft) 318 217 406 406 127 127
Upstream Blk Time (%) 100 32 37 51 8 41
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0 337 458 69 371
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 200 71
Storage Blk Time (%) 56 57 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 98 2

Intersection: 5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard

Movement WB WB NB NB SB SB SB SB B37 B37
Directions Served L LT T R L T T T T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 225 550 22 43 275 442 447 441 1884 2009
Average Queue (ft) 108 522 2 8 174 366 392 410 1590 1711
95th Queue (ft) 271 536 13 29 316 523 454 467 2522 2656
Link Distance (ft) 504 342 342 351 351 351 1832 1832
Upstream Blk Time (%) 96 23 33 41 21 76
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 193 278 337 260 943
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 185 175
Storage Blk Time (%) 92 9 4 60
Queuing Penalty (veh) 418 69 9 0

Intersection: 6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 147



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 12

Intersection: 7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road

Movement SB
Directions Served T
Maximum Queue (ft) 5
Average Queue (ft) 0
95th Queue (ft) 4
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 8: Brown Avenue/Miller Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 9: First Street/Sierra Vista Way & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 148



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 13

Intersection: 10: SR 24 WB Ramps/Laurel Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 11: Pleasant Hill Road & Project Dwy

Movement EB SB SB SB
Directions Served R T T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 218 395 389 391
Average Queue (ft) 184 156 346 337
95th Queue (ft) 201 366 416 447
Link Distance (ft) 164 342 342 342
Upstream Blk Time (%) 100 2 15 10
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 17 158 109
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 12: Project Dwy NE & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 149



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 14

Intersection: 13: Project Dwy SW & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue

Movement SB SB SB
Directions Served T T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 164 267 237
Average Queue (ft) 36 237 184
95th Queue (ft) 122 258 270
Link Distance (ft) 152 152 152
Upstream Blk Time (%) 1 97 11
Queuing Penalty (veh) 12 1208 140
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 15: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB SB SB
Directions Served T T R
Maximum Queue (ft) 56 370 283
Average Queue (ft) 11 341 106
95th Queue (ft) 47 363 244
Link Distance (ft) 262 262 262
Upstream Blk Time (%) 99 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 1230 5
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 150



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 15

Intersection: 16: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB
Directions Served T
Maximum Queue (ft) 542
Average Queue (ft) 512
95th Queue (ft) 534
Link Distance (ft) 302
Upstream Blk Time (%) 100
Queuing Penalty (veh) 939
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 17: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB SB
Directions Served T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 188 535
Average Queue (ft) 15 505
95th Queue (ft) 123 526
Link Distance (ft) 314 314
Upstream Blk Time (%) 0 99
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 622
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 8283

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 151



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PHF = 1.0 

Evac 1 + Project Variant– Evacuation plus project, no trap lane, in the 

AM Peak  

 

 

 

 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 152



SimTraffic Simulation Summary
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 1

Summary of All Intervals

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Start Time 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50
End Time 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00
Total Time (min) 70 70 70 70 70 70
Time Recorded (min) 60 60 60 60 60 60
# of Intervals 2 2 2 2 2 2
# of Recorded Intervals 1 1 1 1 1 1
Vehs Entered 1718 1770 1818 1793 1804 1781
Vehs Exited 1667 1680 1753 1687 1699 1696
Starting Vehs 332 280 318 278 287 299
Ending Vehs 383 370 383 384 392 380
Denied Entry Before 188 149 166 161 143 161
Denied Entry After 2724 2604 2474 2543 2560 2582
Travel Distance (mi) 1573 1588 1620 1618 1608 1601
Travel Time (hr) 1799.8 1669.5 1677.1 1653.3 1680.2 1696.0
Total Delay (hr) 1745.0 1614.2 1620.7 1597.2 1624.2 1640.3
Total Stops 6005 6096 6145 6278 6138 6134
Fuel Used (gal) 447.6 420.7 423.1 417.9 422.6 426.4

Interval #0 Information  Seeding
Start Time 6:50
End Time 7:00
Total Time (min) 10
Volumes adjusted by Growth Factors.
No data recorded this interval.

Interval #1 Information  Recording
Start Time 7:00
End Time 8:00
Total Time (min) 60
Volumes adjusted by Growth Factors.

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Vehs Entered 1718 1770 1818 1793 1804 1781
Vehs Exited 1667 1680 1753 1687 1699 1696
Starting Vehs 332 280 318 278 287 299
Ending Vehs 383 370 383 384 392 380
Denied Entry Before 188 149 166 161 143 161
Denied Entry After 2724 2604 2474 2543 2560 2582
Travel Distance (mi) 1573 1588 1620 1618 1608 1601
Travel Time (hr) 1799.8 1669.5 1677.1 1653.3 1680.2 1696.0
Total Delay (hr) 1745.0 1614.2 1620.7 1597.2 1624.2 1640.3
Total Stops 6005 6096 6145 6278 6138 6134
Fuel Used (gal) 447.6 420.7 423.1 417.9 422.6 426.4

g
Denied Entry Before 188 149 166 161 143 161y
Denied Entry After 2724 2604 2474 2543 2560 2582

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 153



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 2

1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.2 0.1 0.2
Total Delay (hr) 0.1 0.0 0.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.5 6.8 4.0
Stop Delay (hr) 0.1 0.0 0.1
Stop Del/Veh (s) 2.7 5.1 3.1
Vehicles Entered 135 26 161
Vehicles Exited 135 26 161
Hourly Exit Rate 135 26 161
Input Volume 130 25 155
% of Volume 104 104 104
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 10.7 0.2 11.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.2 82.0 5.0 58.4
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 9.6 0.2 9.8
Stop Del/Veh (s) 3.4 73.3 3.4 52.0
Vehicles Entered 45 457 160 662
Vehicles Exited 45 454 159 658
Hourly Exit Rate 45 454 159 658
Input Volume 42 478 155 675
% of Volume 107 95 103 97
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 154



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 3

3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 366.7 0.0 366.7
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1156.1 0.0 733.9
Total Delay (hr) 17.0 7.7 24.7
Total Del/Veh (s) 170.9 41.0 86.2
Stop Delay (hr) 17.1 6.4 23.4
Stop Del/Veh (s) 171.0 34.2 81.8
Vehicles Entered 348 657 1005
Vehicles Exited 340 655 995
Hourly Exit Rate 340 655 995
Input Volume 1124 675 1799
% of Volume 30 97 55
Denied Entry Before 12 0 12
Denied Entry After 794 0 794

4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL WBT NBL SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 232.9 5.0 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 238.9
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1302.1 78.2 89.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 450.7
Total Delay (hr) 9.8 6.7 1.2 0.1 32.7 3.0 53.4
Total Del/Veh (s) 181.3 106.8 120.8 81.7 129.3 109.9 131.2
Stop Delay (hr) 10.2 6.5 1.1 0.1 32.9 3.0 53.8
Stop Del/Veh (s) 187.4 103.4 116.2 79.8 130.5 111.8 132.2
Vehicles Entered 186 223 35 5 894 97 1440
Vehicles Exited 185 220 35 5 869 93 1407
Hourly Exit Rate 185 220 35 5 869 93 1407
Input Volume 643 223 34 4 1626 173 2703
% of Volume 29 99 103 125 53 54 52
Denied Entry Before 15 0 0 0 0 0 15
Denied Entry After 458 9 1 0 0 0 468

Hourly Exit Rate 340 655 995y
Input Volume 1124 675 1799p
% of Volume 30 97 55
Denied Entry Before 12 0 12

p ( )
Vehicles Entered 348 657 1005
Vehicles Exited 340 655 995

Denied Entry After
y

794 0 794

Hourly Exit Rate 185 220 35 5 869 93 1407y
Input Volume 643 223 34 4 1626 173 2703p
% of Volume 29 99 103 125 53 54 52
Denied Entry Before 15 0 0 0 0 0 15y
Denied Entry After 458 9 1 0 0 0 468

p ( )
Vehicles Entered 186 223 35 5 894 97 1440
Vehicles Exited 185 220 35 5 869 93 1407

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 155



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 4

5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard Performance by movement 

Movement WBL NBT NBR SBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 392.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 392.5
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1474.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 625.7
Total Delay (hr) 24.1 0.0 0.0 13.2 142.1 179.4
Total Del/Veh (s) 329.5 21.8 2.9 374.4 394.4 377.1
Stop Delay (hr) 23.9 0.0 0.0 12.5 139.4 175.8
Stop Del/Veh (s) 327.1 19.9 3.0 354.8 386.9 369.6
Vehicles Entered 238 5 21 115 1159 1538
Vehicles Exited 235 5 21 113 1132 1506
Hourly Exit Rate 235 5 21 113 1132 1506
Input Volume 909 4 22 218 2274 3427
% of Volume 26 125 95 52 50 44
Denied Entry Before 69 0 0 0 0 69
Denied Entry After 720 0 0 0 0 720

6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp Performance by movement 

Movement SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 4.9 4.9
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 8 8
Vehicles Exited 8 8
Hourly Exit Rate 8 8
Input Volume 26 26
% of Volume 31 31
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

Rate 235 5 21 113 1132 1506
Input Volume 909 4 22 218 2274 3427p
% of Volume 26 125 95 52 50 44
Denied Entry Before 69 0 0 0 0 69y
Denied Entry After 720 0 0 0 0 720

p ( )
Vehicles Entered 238 5 21 115 1159 1538
Vehicles Exited 235 5 21 113 1132 1506
Hourly Exit y

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 156



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 5

7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 1.7 1.7
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 23 23
Vehicles Exited 23 23
Hourly Exit Rate 23 23
Input Volume 26 26
% of Volume 88 88
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

11: Pleasant Hill Road & Project Dwy Performance by movement 

Movement EBR NBT SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 333.1 0.0 0.0 333.1
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1956.2 0.0 0.0 598.1
Total Delay (hr) 8.0 0.0 8.0 16.1
Total Del/Veh (s) 1374.8 0.0 21.0 40.7
Stop Delay (hr) 8.1 0.0 4.5 12.5
Stop Del/Veh (s) 1380.2 0.0 11.7 31.7
Vehicles Entered 13 25 1367 1405
Vehicles Exited 13 25 1368 1406
Hourly Exit Rate 13 25 1368 1406
Input Volume 551 26 3183 3760
% of Volume 2 96 43 37
Denied Entry Before 65 0 0 65
Denied Entry After 600 0 0 600

Hourly Exit Rate 13 25 1368 1406y
Input Volume 551 26 3183 3760p
% of Volume 2 96 43 37
Denied Entry Before 65 0 0 65y
Denied Entry After 600 0 0 600

p ( )
Vehicles Entered 13 25 1367 1405
Vehicles Exited 13 25 1368 1406

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 157



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 6

14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue Performance by movement 

Movement NBT SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 4.7 4.7
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.2 12.3 12.1
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 1.6 1.6
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 4.0 4.0
Vehicles Entered 25 1381 1406
Vehicles Exited 25 1382 1407
Hourly Exit Rate 25 1382 1407
Input Volume 26 3734 3760
% of Volume 96 37 37
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

15: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement WBR SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 3.7 2.9 6.6
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.6 19.0 15.3 16.8
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.8
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 2.1 2.1 2.1
Vehicles Entered 25 694 688 1407
Vehicles Exited 25 697 686 1408
Hourly Exit Rate 25 697 686 1408
Input Volume 26 1880 1854 3760
% of Volume 96 37 37 37
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 158



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 7

16: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 1.3 1.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 6.6 6.6
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 697 697
Vehicles Exited 697 697
Hourly Exit Rate 697 697
Input Volume 1880 1880
% of Volume 37 37
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

17: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 1.0 1.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 7.6 4.8 4.8
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.3 0.3
Stop Del/Veh (s) 1.2 1.7 1.7
Vehicles Entered 8 716 724
Vehicles Exited 8 714 722
Hourly Exit Rate 8 714 722
Input Volume 26 1880 1906
% of Volume 31 38 38
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 159



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 8

Total Network Performance 

Denied Delay (hr) 1331.4
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1098.6
Total Delay (hr) 308.8
Total Del/Veh (s) 535.6
Stop Delay (hr) 287.7
Stop Del/Veh (s) 499.0
Vehicles Entered 1781
Vehicles Exited 1696
Hourly Exit Rate 1696
Input Volume 30546
% of Volume 6
Denied Entry Before 161
Denied Entry After 2582

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 160



Arterial Level of Service
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 9

Arterial Level of Service: NB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Acalanes Avenue 14 0.2 20.2 0.1 11
Project Dwy 11 0.0 4.1 0.0 34
Stanley Boulevard 5 21.8 29.1 0.1 10
Quandt Road 4 81.7 122.2 0.4 13
Total 103.8 175.6 0.6 13

Arterial Level of Service: SB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Rancho View Drive 1 6.8 22.1 0.2 25

19 1.2 15.8 0.1 34
Greenvalley Drive 2 5.0 11.9 0.1 22
Reliez Valle Road 3 37.7 61.6 0.3 15

20 24.4 28.0 0.0 4
Springhill Road 4 129.3 138.7 0.1 3
Deer Hill Road 5 358.8 396.8 0.4 4
Project Dwy 11 20.5 29.0 0.1 10
Acalanes Avenue 14 12.4 16.4 0.0 8

15 19.0 25.1 0.1 9
16 6.6 16.0 0.1 24
17 7.6 17.2 0.1 15

Mt. Diablo Boulevard 6 4.9 13.5 0.1 18
SR 24 EB Off Ramp 7 1.7 4.5 0.1 50
Total 635.7 796.7 1.7 8

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 161



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 10

Intersection: 1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive

Movement EB SB SB
Directions Served LTR T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 77 45 16
Average Queue (ft) 38 8 1
95th Queue (ft) 63 30 7
Link Distance (ft) 306 773 773
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive

Movement EB WB B60 SB SB
Directions Served LTR LT T T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 44 567 56 50 64
Average Queue (ft) 11 385 10 9 25
95th Queue (ft) 29 611 51 31 57
Link Distance (ft) 333 494 53 288 288
Upstream Blk Time (%) 12 5
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 63 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0

Intersection: 3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road

Movement EB EB SB SB
Directions Served L R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 459 488 358 394
Average Queue (ft) 253 456 187 189
95th Queue (ft) 615 491 312 337
Link Distance (ft) 438 438 1259 1259
Upstream Blk Time (%) 27 94
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 28
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 162



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 11

Intersection: 4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road

Movement EB WB NB SB SB SB B20 B20
Directions Served LTR LTR L T T R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 369 258 16 526 525 96 207 220
Average Queue (ft) 338 223 2 476 476 76 164 183
95th Queue (ft) 355 265 9 581 604 140 245 262
Link Distance (ft) 318 213 414 414 127 127
Upstream Blk Time (%) 100 64 86 90 24 85
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0 775 809 213 762
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 200 71
Storage Blk Time (%) 89 84 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 145 2

Intersection: 5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard

Movement WB WB NB NB SB SB SB
Directions Served L LT T R L T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 225 547 28 29 275 2274 2410
Average Queue (ft) 212 521 3 8 192 2241 2371
95th Queue (ft) 276 536 15 28 344 2292 2451
Link Distance (ft) 504 342 342 2220 2220
Upstream Blk Time (%) 95 41 95
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 506 1182
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 185 175
Storage Blk Time (%) 11 97 4 30 68
Queuing Penalty (veh) 52 440 47 64 0

Intersection: 6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 163



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 12

Intersection: 7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road

Movement SB
Directions Served T
Maximum Queue (ft) 2
Average Queue (ft) 0
95th Queue (ft) 2
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 8: Brown Avenue/Miller Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 9: First Street/Sierra Vista Way & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 164



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 13

Intersection: 10: SR 24 WB Ramps/Laurel Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 11: Pleasant Hill Road & Project Dwy

Movement EB SB SB
Directions Served R T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 204 392 380
Average Queue (ft) 180 212 338
95th Queue (ft) 199 435 410
Link Distance (ft) 176 342 342
Upstream Blk Time (%) 100 1 7
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 23 114
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 12: Project Dwy NE & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 165



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 14

Intersection: 13: Project Dwy SW & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue

Movement SB SB
Directions Served T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 180 257
Average Queue (ft) 48 214
95th Queue (ft) 146 294
Link Distance (ft) 150 150
Upstream Blk Time (%) 1 22
Queuing Penalty (veh) 15 409
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 15: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB
Directions Served TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 351
Average Queue (ft) 179
95th Queue (ft) 424
Link Distance (ft) 266
Upstream Blk Time (%) 5
Queuing Penalty (veh) 89
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 166



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette
Page 15

Intersection: 16: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 17: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB
Directions Served TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 161
Average Queue (ft) 67
95th Queue (ft) 128
Link Distance (ft) 314
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 5648

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 167



EXHIBIT B

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 168



TRANSPLAN Packet Page 169



TRANSPLAN Packet Page 170



1

Jason Chen

From: Colin Elliott <colin@chelliott.com>
Sent: Sunday, December 6, 2020 7:48 PM
To: Jason Chen
Cc: 'Gerringer, Teresa'
Subject: LPMC - December 7, 2020 Meeting Agenda Item 6.  Proposed Amendment to 

Lamorinda Action Plan Gateway Constraint Policy for Pleasant Hill Road 

CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Be careful when clicking links or opening attachments! 
Dear Jason 
I’m writing to object to Item 6 in the Agenda for Monday’s meeting.  Information on this was just forwarded to me by 
another resident of NE Lafayette.  I can find no agenda or staff report for this proposal on the SWAT/LMPC website. Your 
website is, in fact, completely out of date! Is there a staff report?  If so perhaps you could forward it to me.  There 
appears to have been no notice or communications regarding this import change in policy given to the residents of 
Lafayette who will be most affected!  I do not believe this policy change has even been the subject of a public hearing in 
the City of Lafayette yet. 
A change like this will have the effect of drawing more traffic to Pleasant Hill Road from I‐680 because of traffic apps like 
Waze and Apple maps.  This needs to be studied. 
If this policy change is solely because of the proposed Terraces of Lafayette project, then it is premature.  That project is 
currently tied up in a CEQA lawsuit which will likely require parts if not all of the EIR to be re‐done.  The traffic impacts 
and impacts on emergency evacuations are among the topics that will probably require further study.  Ultimately, the 
project may not ever get developed.  The current zoning and General Plan designations for that site allow low density 
residential, which do not require a change to the Gateway Policy. 
 
Sincerely 
 
 
Colin Elliott 
 
Reliez Valley, Lafayette 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 171



1

Jason Chen

From: Jenifer Lamken Paul <jenlamkenpaul@hotmail.com>
Sent: Sunday, December 6, 2020 11:55 PM
To: Jason Chen; lbobadilla@sanramon.ca.gov
Subject: Item 6, LPMC Meeting December 7, 2020

CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Be careful when clicking links or opening attachments! 
Dear Members of the Lamorinda Program Management Committee, 
 
I am writing to you to oppose the amendment to the Gateway Constraint Policy, Item 6 on 
the agenda for your meeting on Monday, December 7th, 2020. 
 
In 2013, the firm TJKM studied the addition of the southbound lane and beyond the 
obvious that it conflicted with the Gateway Constraints Policy, they found several negative 
potential impacts. For example: 
*It would increase the pedestrian crossing distance on the Pleasant Hill Road crosswalk at 
the Deer Hill Road – Stanley Boulevard signal, which a high volume of Acalanes High 
School students currently use.  
*It would result in secondary negative impacts such as: 
  *loss of existing curb parking 

*loss or loading zones along the west curb 
*loss of the designated spaces currently used for school passenger loading which 
would cause hazardous passenger loading activity at unsuitable locations. 

*The intersection would still operate at LOS F 
 
Source - EIR 4.13 Pgs. 36-40 
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/adc83150/LyxIz5IdsEiNlND1JRHZNQ?u=https://www.lovelafayette.
org/home/showdocument?id=1553 
 

In 2017, Lafayette hired TJKM to conduct a Pleasant Hill Corridor Study. On Pages 19 and 
20, you can read the section where TJKM again evaluated to see if extending the 
southbound right-turn storage lane could help mitigate the existing traffic conditions. TJKM 
said this change would not have any material benefit on southbound movement.  
 
Source - TJKM 2017 Pleasant Hill Road Corridor Study, Pgs. 19-20 
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/2769f9bc/G9HlvBX3g0iKYHVskQ-
HLA?u=https://www.lovelafayette.org/home/showdocument?id=3995 
 

In 2020, TJKM studied the area again and stated that “adding more capacity for southbound 
through movements at Deer Hill Road does have the potential to increase speeds upstream 
and attract more drivers onto the corridor. Initial simulations using SimTraffic suggest that 
this would be the case. As such, the proposed lane may violate both the letter and spirit 
of the Gateway Constraints Policy.” 
 
Source TJKM 2020 Terraces of Lafayette Impact Study, Pgs. 90-98 
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/ee695b48/LqA8I47MXUq1bCPk5lhbtw?u=https://lafayette.granicus.
com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=19%26clip_id=4753%26meta_id=111125 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 172



2

 
The Gateway Constraints Policy was implemented to LIMIT the impacts to residents.  This 
amendment to add a “Short-Link Southbound Lane on Pleasant Hill Road as part of the Proposed 
Terraces of Lafayette Project” will do the opposite and I urge you to reject it.   
 
The Gateway Constraints Policy should not be changed solely based on the Terraces Project as 
your agenda item states it is.  That Project is currently involved in a lawsuit.  Furthermore, 
residents should be given much better notice about meetings involving topics like this.  I ask you 
to consider placing “A” frame boards up with notices at the intersection of Pleasant Hill Road, 
Deer Hill Road and Stanley Boulevard for any future meeting involving this intersection. 
 
Sincerely, 
Jenifer Paul 
Lafayette, CA 
 

 
 
Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the link will be 
analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to proceed to the destination. If 
suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning.  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 173



Lamorinda Program Management Committee (LPMC) Meeting 

– January 11, 2021 

 

Communication Received from the Public by January 11, 2021 

8 a.m. 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 174



1

Jason Chen

From: Paul Melmed <paulmelmed@gmail.com>
Sent: Saturday, January 9, 2021 1:17 PM
To: Jason Chen; lbodadilla@sanramon.ca.gov
Cc: Paul Melmed
Subject: Deny a short lane southbound on Pleasant Hill Road before Hwy 24

CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Be careful when clicking links or opening attachments! 
To: lbobadilla@sanramon.ca.gov. jchen@cityof orinda.org  

From: Paul J. Melmed, Ph.D. 35 Prado Way Lafayette, CA 94549 

RE: “Public Comment" 01/11/2021:  Deny an additional southbound short lane on Pleasant Hill Road before HWY 24  

 

Attention LPMC members 

Danger: Keep the Gateway Constraint Policy as is, do not add a trap or short lane southbound 

before Hwy 24 on Pleasant Hill Road. 

Deny the staff report re: a trap lane or short lane to accommodate the O’Brien development of the

Terraces of Lafayette apartments even before that project is fully vetted by the Superior Court of

CCC.  This is not only a premature action but also would show a conflict of interest of LPMC to favor

a combative developer’s profit driven plan.  Terraces is a decade old extremely controversial project

that was recently approved by Lafayette City Council. Of the  five member council voting on the

project  in  August  2020,  two,  including  the  Mayor  have  since  stepped  down.  The  new  LPMC

chairperson voted in favor of the project while acknowledging 13 unavoidable and unmitigatable

conditions.  The  project  is  being  contested  in  a  formal  lawsuit  brought  by  over  4600  Lafayette

residents. Putting 315 apartments at this location does not meet CEQA requirements, is in a VHFHSZ

(Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone) and would be putting ConFire and CCC Emergency Evacuation

teams at greater risk during a serious event. With WAZE and other social media commuter traffic

sites, such a short segment lane will only encourage more commuters to congest one of Lafayette’s

most heavily travelled  interactions during peak hours (see the Elite Transportation formal report

filed with the City of Lafayette).  This will bring even more safety, health and emergency danger to 

students and staff of Acalanes High School, bikers and families who drop off their children or drive

to surrounding schools including Springhill Elementary School and daycare centers. 

 
 
Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the link will be 
analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to proceed to the destination. If 
suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 175



1

Jason Chen

From: Richard Drury <richard@lozeaudrury.com>
Sent: Sunday, January 10, 2021 9:10 PM
To: Jason Chen
Subject: Save Lafayette Comment on Gateway Constraints Policy revision
Attachments: 2021.01.10.Save Lafayette Constraints ComLtr.pdf

CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Be careful when clicking links or opening attachments! 
Dear Mr. Chen: 
Attached please find the comments of Save Lafayette concerning Agenda Item 6 on the Lamorinda Program 
Management Committee meeting scheduled for Monday, January 11, 2021. Please provide this letter to the 
members of the LPMC. Thank you. 
Richard Drury 
Counsel for Save Lafayette 
 
--  
Richard Drury  
Lozeau Drury LLP 
1939 Harrison Street, Suite 150 
Oakland, CA 94612 
(510) 836-4200 
richard@lozeaudrury.com 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 176



 
 
BY E-MAIL ONLY 
 
January 10, 2021 
 
Lamorinda Program Management Committee 
c/o Jason Chen 
Orinda City Hall 
22 Orinda Way 
Orinda, CA 94563 
e-mail: JChen@cityoforinda.org 
 
 Re: Opposition to Proposed Amendment to Southwest Area 

Transportation Committee (SWAT) for Request to Amend the Lamorinda 
Action Plan Gateway Constraint Policy for Pleasant Hill Road (page 57, 3rd 
paragraph of Lamorinda Action Plan, 2017).   

  
Lamorinda Program Management Committee (LPMC): 
 

I am writing on behalf of Save Lafayette, a non-profit organization composed of 
residents living in and around the City of Lafayette (“City”) concerning the proposed 
Amendment (“Amendment”) to the Southwest Area Transportation Committee (SWAT) for 
Request to Amend the Lamorinda Action Plan Gateway Constraint Policy (GCP) for 
Pleasant Hill Road (page 57, 3rd paragraph of Lamorinda Action Plan, 2017).  I sent a 
letter on December 7, 2020, and there appears to be no substantive response to this 
letter in the Staff Report.  I request that that LPMC at the very least provide a substantive 
response to the December 7 letter, which is incorporated herein by reference. 

 
In addition to the issues raised in the December 7, 2020 letter, Save Lafayette 

raises these additional issues. 
 
First, LPMC has not provided adequate notice to sister agencies.  Page 32 of the 

Lamorinda Action Plan (page 36 of the PDF) (http://ccta-swat.net/wp-
content/uploads/2014/07/2009-Lamorinda-Action-Plan.pdf) provides that if a project would 
result in 100 or more new trips (which the Lafayette Terraces project would do), then the 
adjacent Regional Transportation Planning Committees (RTPCs) must be notified.  This 
would include SWAT-Tri Valley and Transpac.  It appears that such notice has not been 
provided.  The decision must be continued to allow for notice to the RTPCs. 

 
Second, the staff report for the LPMC meeting makes clear that that the sole 

reason for the trap lane proposal is to facilitate the Lafayette Terraces project, and that 
the LPMC is relying upon the CEQA Addendum (“Addendum”) certified by the City of 
Lafayette (“City”) for the Terraces Project.  However, Save Lafayette has sued the City 
alleging that the Addendum is legally insufficient and that a supplemental environmental TRANSPLAN Packet Page 177



Opposition to Amendment to Gateway Constraints Policy 
January 10, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
impact report (SEIR) is required.  If Save Lafayette is successful, then the CEQA 
Addendum and the approval of the Terraces Project itself must be set aside.  Therefore, 
there is no reason for the LPMC to approve the trap lane at least until the pending CEQA 
litigation is set aside.  Quite simply, if the court sets aside the Addendum and Project 
approval, then the trap lane will be unnecessary.  Since LPMC is relying on the alleged 
flawed CEQA Addendum, then its decision must also be set aside. If LPMC proceeds to 
approve the trap lane, then Save Lafayette will have no option other than to sue LPMC by 
amending the agency into the pending lawsuit as a Respondent agency in order to set 
aside LPMC’s decision.  It seems much more prudent for LPMC simply to wait for the 
outcome of the pending litigation and then decide at that time whether or not to approve 
any trap lane.  

 
For the foregoing reasons, and the reasons set forth in out letter of December 7, 

2020, Save Lafayette urges LPMC to continue the consideration of the trap lane proposal 
at least until resolution of the pending litigation challenging the Terraces Project and its 
CEQA Addendum.  Thank you for considering our comments.  

 
 

     Sincerely, 
 
 
 
     Richard Drury 

LOZEAU DRURY LLP 
 

 
 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 178



1

Jason Chen

From: Jenifer Lamken Paul <jenlamkenpaul@hotmail.com>
Sent: Sunday, January 10, 2021 12:52 PM
To: Jason Chen; lbobadilla@sanramon.ca.gov
Subject: LPMC 1/11/21 - Agenda item 6

CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Be careful when clicking links or opening attachments! 
Dear Members of the Lamorinda Program Management Committee, 
 
I am writing to you to oppose the amendment to the Gateway Constraint Policy agenda 
item 6 for your meeting on Monday, January 11th, 2021. 
 
As I stated in a letter to this committee in December of 2020, the Gateway Constraints 
Policy should not be changed and certainly not solely based on the Terraces Project as your 
agenda item states it is.  That Project is currently involved in a lawsuit.  Furthermore, 
residents should be given much better notice about meetings involving topics like 
this. Input from the community and should be considered and should have been posted in 
various ways such as on Nextdoor and via city communications.  I had asked that you 
consider placing “A” frame boards up with notices at the intersection of Pleasant Hill Road, 
Deer Hill Road, and Stanley Boulevard for any future meeting involving this intersection.  
 
 
As I also stated in my previous letter, in 2013, the firm TJKM studied the addition of the 
southbound lane, and beyond the obvious that it conflicted with the Gateway Constraints 
Policy, they found several negative potential impacts. For example: 
*It would increase the pedestrian crossing distance on the Pleasant Hill Road crosswalk at 
the Deer Hill Road – Stanley Boulevard signal, which a high volume of Acalanes High 
School students currently uses.  
*It would result in secondary negative impacts such as: 
  *loss of existing curb parking 

*loss or loading zones along the west curb 
*loss of the designated spaces currently used for school passenger loading which 
would cause hazardous passenger loading activity at unsuitable locations. 

*The intersection would still operate at LOS F 
 
Source - EIR 4.13 Pgs. 36-40 
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/90efbccb/juGp9uKTa0eyu0JFoFXGpg?u=https://www.lovelafayette.
org/home/showdocument?id=1553 
 

In 2017, Lafayette hired TJKM to conduct a Pleasant Hill Corridor Study. On Pages 19 and 
20, you can read the section where TJKM again evaluated to see if extending the 
southbound right-turn storage lane could help mitigate the existing traffic conditions. TJKM 
said this change would not have any material benefit on southbound movement.  
 
Source - TJKM 2017 Pleasant Hill Road Corridor Study, Pgs. 19-20 
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/351d3860/cWFbER-
DzkeCOD2xVlC_Lw?u=https://www.lovelafayette.org/home/showdocument?id=3995 
 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 179



2

In 2020, TJKM studied the area again and stated that “adding more capacity for southbound 
through movements at Deer Hill Road does have the potential to increase speeds upstream 
and attract more drivers onto the corridor. Initial simulations using SimTraffic suggest that 
this would be the case. As such, the proposed lane may violate both the letter and spirit 
of the Gateway Constraints Policy.” 
 
Source TJKM 2020 Terraces of Lafayette Impact Study, Pgs. 90-98 
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/9d03f79a/LeI-
_qX2Z0mC6t4uwJucCg?u=https://lafayette.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=19%26clip_i
d=4753%26meta_id=111125 
 
The Gateway Constraints Policy was implemented to LIMIT the impacts to 
residents.  This amendment to add a “Short-Link Southbound Lane on Pleasant Hill Road as 
part of the Proposed Terraces of Lafayette Project” will do the opposite and I urge you to reject 
it.   
 
 
Sincerely, 
Jenifer Paul 
Lafayette, CA 
 

 
 
Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the link will be 
analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to proceed to the destination. If 
suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning.  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 180



1

Jason Chen

From: Jenifer Lamken Paul <jenlamkenpaul@hotmail.com>
Sent: Sunday, January 10, 2021 8:48 PM
To: Jason Chen; lbobadilla@sanramon.ca.gov
Cc: cityhall@lovelafayette.org; scandell@lovelafayette.org
Subject: LPMC 1/11/21 - Agenda item 6
Attachments: pg 36flowchartLamorindaActionPlan.pdf; CCTA GMP Action Plan Update Process 

Flowchart.pdf

CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Be careful when clicking links or opening attachments! 
Dear Members of the LPMC,  
 
I have previously written to you regarding my opposition to your proposed approval of item 6 on 
your agenda for tomorrow's meeting, "Addition of a Short-Link Southbound Lane on Pleasant Hill 
Road as part of the Proposed Terraces of Lafayette Project" 
 
However, I wanted to bring another piece of information to your attention. The flow chart from 
the Lamorinda Action Plan presents a different pathway than the one that is being presented in 
the Lafayette staff report which is from CCTA.  I have also attached both flow charts to this 
email.  The Lamorinda Action Plan flow chart can also be found on Page 36 using this 
link: https://link.edgepilot.com/s/cca6559f/3ez6Q5qlSk6tDTfzbzlgdg?u=http://ccta-
swat.net/wp-content/uploads/2014/07/2009-Lamorinda-Action-Plan.pdf 
 
As you will see, the Lamorinda Action Plan Action Review Process is for General Plan 
Amendments and Projects.  It states that if a project would result in 100+ new trips, which the 
Terraces would do, then adjacent Regional Transportation Planning Committees (RTPC) have to 
be notified.  That would therefore not just be SWAT-Lamorinda.  It would include other RTPCs 
such as SWAT-Tri Valley and Transpac since this would impact them as well. 
 
I did read in the staff report that according to the CCTA flowchart, "it should be noted the 
proposed amendment will be escalated to the Southwest Area Transportation Committee (SWAT) 
regardless of the input from LPMC or the input from the other regional transportation planning 
committees (RTPCs). The CCTA Board will be making the final decision on whether to amend the 
Action Plan. LPMC and SWAT are advisory committees making a recommendation to the CCTA 
Board."  And that one of the two action items directs the "LPMC review, provide comments, and 
distribute the recommended language for amending the Lamorinda Action Plan to all of the 
regional transportation planning committees (RTPCs) within Contra Costa County for 
comment."  However, I question why we are not looking at the Lamorinda Action Plan Process 
first. This report seems to dismiss the importance of notifying other RTPCs yet the Lamorinda 
Action Plan appears to make that a priority.   
 
I am writing to bring this to your attention and to make sure we follow the process set forth in 
the Lamorinda Action Plan.   
 
Sincerely, 
Jenifer Paul 
Lafayette, CA 
 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 181



2

From: Jenifer Lamken Paul <jenlamkenpaul@hotmail.com> 
Sent: Sunday, January 10, 2021 12:52 PM 
To: Jason Chen <jchen@cityoforinda.org>; lbobadilla@sanramon.ca.gov <lbobadilla@sanramon.ca.gov> 
Subject: LPMC 1/11/21 ‐ Agenda item 6  
  
Dear Members of the Lamorinda Program Management Committee, 
 
I am writing to you to oppose the amendment to the Gateway Constraint Policy agenda 
item 6 for your meeting on Monday, January 11th, 2021. 
 
As I stated in a letter to this committee in December of 2020, the Gateway Constraints 
Policy should not be changed and certainly not solely based on the Terraces Project as your 
agenda item states it is.  That Project is currently involved in a lawsuit.  Furthermore, 
residents should be given much better notice about meetings involving topics like 
this. Input from the community and should be considered and should have been posted in 
various ways such as on Nextdoor and via city communications.  I had asked that you 
consider placing “A” frame boards up with notices at the intersection of Pleasant Hill Road, 
Deer Hill Road, and Stanley Boulevard for any future meeting involving this intersection.  
 
 
 
As I also stated in my previous letter, in 2013, the firm TJKM studied the addition of the 
southbound lane, and beyond the obvious that it conflicted with the Gateway Constraints 
Policy, they found several negative potential impacts. For example: 
*It would increase the pedestrian crossing distance on the Pleasant Hill Road crosswalk at 
the Deer Hill Road – Stanley Boulevard signal, which a high volume of Acalanes High 
School students currently uses.  
*It would result in secondary negative impacts such as: 
  *loss of existing curb parking 

*loss or loading zones along the west curb 
*loss of the designated spaces currently used for school passenger loading which 
would cause hazardous passenger loading activity at unsuitable locations. 

*The intersection would still operate at LOS F 
 
Source - EIR 4.13 Pgs. 36-40 
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/27c4e690/yqyFABsND0eOsF8MPtxv8w?u=https://www.lovelafayett
e.org/home/showdocument?id=1553 
 

In 2017, Lafayette hired TJKM to conduct a Pleasant Hill Corridor Study. On Pages 19 and 
20, you can read the section where TJKM again evaluated to see if extending the 
southbound right-turn storage lane could help mitigate the existing traffic conditions. TJKM 
said this change would not have any material benefit on southbound movement.  
 
Source - TJKM 2017 Pleasant Hill Road Corridor Study, Pgs. 19-20 
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/f81096f3/e0oUMtuxyUu8-
tJz9WUkmQ?u=https://www.lovelafayette.org/home/showdocument?id=3995 
 

In 2020, TJKM studied the area again and stated that “adding more capacity for southbound 
through movements at Deer Hill Road does have the potential to increase speeds upstream 
and attract more drivers onto the corridor. Initial simulations using SimTraffic suggest that 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 182



3

this would be the case. As such, the proposed lane may violate both the letter and spirit 
of the Gateway Constraints Policy.” 
 
Source TJKM 2020 Terraces of Lafayette Impact Study, Pgs. 90-98 
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/f370c148/O0MLj0DDo0GdHa-
_B1GQNw?u=https://lafayette.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=19%26clip_id=4753%26
meta_id=111125 
 
The Gateway Constraints Policy was implemented to LIMIT the impacts to 
residents.  This amendment to add a “Short-Link Southbound Lane on Pleasant Hill Road as 
part of the Proposed Terraces of Lafayette Project” will do the opposite and I urge you to reject 
it.   
 
 
Sincerely, 
Jenifer Paul 
Lafayette, CA 
 

 
 
Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the link will be 
analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to proceed to the destination. If 
suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning.  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 183



 
 

Lamorinda Action Plan Update 32 December 7, 2009
 

(b) If the results of the monitoring effort show that a regional route has exceeded the 
adopted MTSO, a focused Action Plan may be prepared by the RTPC; and 

 
(c) A complete review of the Lamorinda Action Plan shall be conducted on a four-to-

five-year cycle (jointly by the RTPC and CCTA) in coordination with updates to the 
Authority’s Countywide Comprehensive Transportation Plan Update. 

 
Figure 12: Action Plan Review Process for Lamorinda GPAs and Projects 
 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 184



Gateway Constraint 
Policy

Lamorinda Action 
Plan

City of Lafayette Request 
Amendment to Gateway Constraint 
Policy and Lamorinda Action Plan

Lamorinda Program Management 
Committee (LPMC) TAC & 

Committee review and make 
recommendation to either support 
or oppose the request to Amend 

the Action Plan

CCTA Board Action to 
Approve Amended Action 

Plan

RTPCs provide 
comments and 
identify policies 

in opposition 
and seek 
changes

CCTA Board review SWAT 
Committee Recommendation

Amended Gateway 
Constraint Policy 
and Lamorinda 

Action Plan

Updated Action Plan compliant 
with Growth Management Plan 

(GMP)

GMP Implementation Guide: 
“Updated Action Plan to be 

developed by RTPC in cooperation 
with local jurisdictions”

Comments 
provided to 

originating RTPC 
to revise and 

respond 

Action Plan Updates:
- 1995 (1st), 1998, 2000, 2008, 2017

Updated 11/25/20

Circulate to 
RTPC (Regional 
Transportation 

Planning 
Committee) for 

Review

Southwest Area Transportation 
Committee Technical Advisory 
Committee (SWAT TAC) review 

Request for Amended Action Plan

SWAT Committee review LPMC 
recommendation and make 

recommendation to either support 
or oppose the request to Amend 

the Action Plan

 Gateway Constraint 
Policy and 

Lamorinda Action 
Plan unchanged 

NO

YES

NOTE:
Regional Transportation Planning 
Committee (RTPC): SWAT 
(Southwest County) Committee 
covers the Lamorinda Project 
Management Committee (LPMC).  
Also referred to as “Regional 
Committees.”

RTPCS act in an advisory capacity 
and provide recommendations to  
the CCTA Board.  The final 
decisions are made by the CCTA 
Board.

CCTA Growth Management Program (GMP) 
Action Plan Update Process

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 185



1

Sivakumar Natarajan

From: Kristen Altbaum <altbaum@icloud.com>
Sent: Friday, January 8, 2021 3:43 PM
To: Joanne Robbins; Jason Chen; Bobadilla, Lisa
Subject: LPMC meeting - necessary information - please circulate today, thanks. 
Attachments: Travis Bell endorsement (1).pdf; Lttr fm Con Fire re RVR problems.pdf; Elite Evacuation 

Model .pdf; PDF-Streetlight data for PH Rd by segment and time period.pdf

CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Be careful when clicking links or opening attachments! 
Joanne and Jason - please make sure this circulates TODAY to all of the members of the below organizations. 
Thanks for your help.  
 
 
LMPC, SWAT, CCTA:  
 
I’d like to share this with you today and during the next LPMC meeting via screen sharing.  
 
Please allow this you tube video link to load. The left, congested lane, is an average non-covid southbound 
commute on PH Rd: 
 
 
 
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/7827ed1c/65AT1rrUBkeWJ1ZVAPRXdA?u=https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=
Uwlx0o7lTs0 
 
 
 
This is what an average p.m. Deer Hill eastbound commute looks like from BART 1.5 miles to Pleasant Hill 
Rd: 
 
 
 
Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the link will be 
analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to proceed to the destination. If 
suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 186



2TRANSPLAN Packet Page 187



3

 
These are what average side streets to Pleasant Hill Rd look like during a.m. peak: 
 
 
 
Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the link will be 
analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to proceed to the destination. If 
suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 

 
 
This one is 3 miles from the bottle neck of PH and Deer Hill Rd. - these cars are not waiting at a light or stop 
sign,  they are crawling ever so slowly over 3 miles. Multiple people have seen Acalanes students passing 
around 10-15 of these cars at a time on the wrong side of the road, just to try and make it to 1st period on time!  
 
 
 
Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the link will be 
analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to proceed to the destination. If 
suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 188



4TRANSPLAN Packet Page 189



5

 
Dozens more photos and videos can be found on the Facebook 
group: https://link.edgepilot.com/s/8657d5b3/2DR6mURYm0GqX4tp96OZWw?u=https://www.facebook.com/
groups/1753415531541790, which has been in existence since 2016. I created this group after being 
HORRIFIED as to how long it was taking our students to get to school - school commutes rose from 6 minutes 
to over 35 over just 3 miles. 6 miles to Stanley middle school often takes over an hour.  
 
Our local school principals and superintendents have written multiple letters with concerns about student 
tardiness and safety, as did ex fire Chief Carmen, and our school bus company. These are just a few of the 
letters that were written. I’m happy to forward additional letters.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the link will be 
analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to proceed to the destination. If 
suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 
 
 
Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the link will be 
analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to proceed to the destination. If 
suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 
 
 
 
 
 
Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the link will be 
analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to proceed to the destination. If 
suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 190



6

 
 
 
Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the link will be 
analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to proceed to the destination. If 
suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 191



7TRANSPLAN Packet Page 192



8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TJKM would most recently have you believe that delays are <2.0, but their analysis is not considered credible 
for multiple reasons. Elite Transportation and Streetlight are both aligned in delays being longer than TJKM 
data shows.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the link will be 
analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to proceed to the destination. If 
suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 
 
 
Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the link will be 
analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to proceed to the destination. If 
suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 
 
 
TJMK ADMITTED TO NOT HAVING STUDIED THE ADDITIONAL TERRACES STUDENTS IN 
CROSSWALKS AND HOW THOSE PEDESTRIANS WOULD AFFECT TRAFFIC THAT ALREADY 
EXISTS. THIS IS WHAT THAT INTERSECTION WILL LOOK LIKE, SO I ASK YOU - HOW EFFECTIVE 
WILL A NEW RIGHT HAND TURN LANE BE, WHEN IT A) IS FILLED UP WITH MORE WAZE 
TRAFFIC COMING OF HWY 680 (WHEN WE CREATE MORE CAPACITY FOR SOLO OCCUPANT 
CARS, THE TRAFFIC APP ALGORITHMS SHIFT THE TRAFFIC TO “FILL UP” THAT CAPACITY; 
AND 2) HAS TO TURN AGAINST, AND WAIT FOR, A SLEW OF NEW TERRACES STUDENTS 
WALKING TO SPRINGHILL AND ACALANES DURING PEAK?  
 
 
 
 
Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the link will be 
analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to proceed to the destination. If 
suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 193



TRANSPLAN Packet Page 194



10

 
 
You guys have a responsibility to tax payers to make good on the goals and objectives laid out in the Lamorinda 
Action Plan on growth is to be handled, PARTICULARLY BECAUSE THIS IS A HIGH RISK FIRE ZONE.  
 
The Lamorinda Action Plan says the following:  
 
2008, page 5:  
 
  1) where appropriate, provide priority for buses, carpools; Establish and maintain LOS standards on major 
arterials. 2) Reduce automobile demand by promoting and accommodating ridesharing, transit, bicycling, 
walking, and telecommuting. 3) Discourage freeway bypass traffic on Lamorinda roads. 
 
2008, page 6: 
 

1. Pursue actions to meet or sustain service objectives that will reduce reliance on single occupant 
automobile travel.  

2. Avoid the addition of roadway capacity for single-occupant vehicles.   
3. Enhance mobility by providing alternative travel options.   
4. Actions should not lead to an increase in the use of BART parking in Lamorinda by people driving 

into the area from outside communities.   
5. Pursue actions to improve safety of travelers by all modes.   
6. Encourage through-trips and interregional travel to stay on freeways and discourage diversion of 

these trips to arterial and local streets as a mechanism for ensuring intraregional mobility.   
7. Maintain capacity constraints at selected gateways 
8.  
9. 2008Page 7  
1. Establish CCCTA bus service on Pleasant Hill Road and/or Taylor Boulevard that has a composite 

frequency of at least two buses per hour during peak commute and school times (6:30 AM – 9:30 AM 
and 3:30 PM – 6:30 PM) and direct connection to the Lafayette BART station.  

2. Maintain school bus service on Pleasant Hill Road and Taylor Boulevard. 
3. Maintain a maximum wait time for drivers on side streets wishing to access Pleasant Hill Road or 

Taylor Boulevard of one signal cycle or less. 
4. Maintain peak hour peak direction delay index of 2.0 or lower.” 

 
Proposed Actions for Pleasant Hill Rd (Lamorinda Action Plans 2008, page 25): 
 
4) If the CCCTA cannot increase service to Acalanes School, evaluate the feasibility of augmenting the 
existing school bus program to add the high school as funding permits  
6) Support development of HOV lane programs on all freeways and regional routes where feasible  
7) Support the provision of public transit service in the Pleasant Hill Road / Taylor Boulevard Corridor with 
connections to BART and other CCCTA services in Lafayette  
8) Support the provision of Park and Ride lots north of Lafayette's segment of Pleasant Hill Road  
10) Investigate appropriate mechanisms, including maintaining existing roadway lanes and widths and 
restrictive signal timing, to discourage use of Pleasant Hill Road as a substitute for freeway travel  
11) Support pedestrian and bicycle safety improvements around schools, trailheads, and at intersections and 
along the bikeway network  
12) Work with TRANSPAC to develop a traffic management program to encourage delay in order to 
discourage use of westbound/southbound traffic using Pleasant Hill Road to bypass the I-680 SR 24 
interchange  
 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 195



11

 
So I ask you, if you permit a solo occupant short lane segment and turn lane, and resources are spent on 
this, are you doing your job per the goals and objectives of the Lamorinda Action Plan which should be your 
ultimate guide  No. You need to FOLLOW THE LAMORINDA ACTION PLAN, PAID FOR BY TAX 
PAYERS. THIS IS HOW WE COME TO TRUST YOU.  DO NOT MODIFY THE GATEWAY 
CONSTRAINT POLICY WITHOUT MINIMALLY  REQUIRING PEDESTRIAN BRIDGES, PROTECTED 
BIKE LANES, MORE BUSING, AND CARPOOL LANES ALONG PLEASANT HILL RD.  
 
LET’S MAKE CIRCULATION IN THIS AREA THE BEST IT CAN BE. BEING LAZY, BECAUSE YOU 
DON’T LIVE HERE, AND ADDING SOLO LANES TO APPEASE A DEVELOPER AND A CITY 
DETERMINED TO AVOID A LAWSUIT,  IS KNOWINGLY MAKING IT WORSE. MORE SOLO LANES 
ACROSS FROM A HIGHSCHOOL AND NEXT TO MORE UNPROTECTED PEDESTRIANS AND 
UNPROTECTED BIKE LANES IS POTENTIALLY DEADLY, PARTICULARLY WITH MANY 
FRUSTRATED, LATE DRIVERS ON THE ROADWAY.  
 
THIS AREA NEEDS A HOLISTIC PLAN LAID OUT BY A SOPHISTICATED, STATE OF THE ART 
TRANSPORTATION CONSULTANT. ANYTHING LESS WILL RESULT IN DEATH. MY CONSCIENCE 
AND LOVE FOR MY COMMUNITY PROPELS ME TO GO ON RECORD AND MAKE SURE YOU ARE 
AWARE OF THIS AHEAD OF ANY DECISION YOU MAKE.  
 
— KRISTEN ALTBAUM 
Reliez Valley resident since 1998.  
925-285-8309  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the email above, the link will be 
analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is found, you will not be able to proceed to the destination. If 
suspicious content is detected, you will see a warning. 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 196



TRANSPLAN Packet Page 197



TRANSPLAN Packet Page 198



 

SB Peak AM (7:00-9:00am) 
STREETLIGHT DATA PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 199



NB Peak PM (4:00-7:00pm) 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 200



�

�

�ƵŐƵƐƚ�Ϯϰ͕�ϮϬϮϬ�

�

ZĞ͗�dĞƌƌĂĐĞƐ�ŽĨ�>ĂĨĂǇĞƚƚĞ��ŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ��ǀĂĐƵĂƚŝŽŶ�dƌĂĨĨŝĐ�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�^ƚƵĚǇ�

�ĞĂƌ�DĂǇŽƌ�ĂŶĚ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�DĞŵďĞƌƐ�

�ƉŽůŽŐŝĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƚĞŶĞƐƐ�ŝŶ�ŐĞƚƚŝŶŐ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƚŽ�ǇŽƵ͕�ďƵƚ�ǁĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐŝŶĐĞ�ǁĞ�ŐŽƚ�ƚŚĞ�
ůĂƚĞƐƚ�d:<D�ŵĞŵŽ�ŽŶ�dƵĞƐĚĂǇ͘���ƚƚĂĐŚĞĚ�ŝƐ�ĂŶŽƚŚĞƌ�ŵĞŵŽ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ�ďǇ��ůŝƚĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁƐ�ƚŚĞ�d:<D�
ŵĞŵŽƌĂŶĚƵŵ�ĚĂƚĞĚ��ƵŐƵƐƚ�ϭϬ͕�ϮϬϮϬ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁĂƐ�Ă�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ƚŽ��ůŝƚĞ͛Ɛ�ůĂƐƚ�ŵĞŵŽ�ŽĨ��ƵŐƵƐƚ�ϴ͕�ϮϬϮϬ͘��/Ŷ�
ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ͕��ůŝƚĞ�ŚĂƐ�ŶŽǁ�ƌƵŶ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ƐŝŵƵůĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�d:<D�ŵŽĚĞů͕�ĨŝƌƐƚůǇ�ƚŽ�ĐŚĞĐŬ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ĚƵƉůŝĐĂƚĞ�
d:<D͛Ɛ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĚŝĚ͕�ďƵƚ�ƚŚĞŶ�ƚŽ�ůŽŽŬ�ĚĞĞƉĞƌ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ƚŽ�ĂŶƐǁĞƌ�ƐŽŵĞ�ĐƌŝƚŝĐĂů�ƋƵĞƐƚŝŽŶƐ͕�
ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�͞ŚŽǁ�ŵĂŶǇ�ǀĞŚŝĐůĞƐ�ĐĂŶ�ĂĐƚƵĂůůǇ�ŐĞƚ�ŽƵƚ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�Ă�ĨŝƌĞ͘͟���ůŝƚĞ͛Ɛ�ĨŝŶĚŝŶŐƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƐŚŽĐŬŝŶŐ͕�ĂŶĚ�
ĂƌĞ�ƐƵŵŵĂƌŝǌĞĚ�ĂƐ�ĨŽůůŽǁƐ͗�

ϭ͘� tŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�dĞƌƌĂĐĞƐ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�dƌĂƉ�ůĂŶĞ͕�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ϱϱϭ�ĐĂƌƐ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ͕�ŽŶůǇ�ϮϬϴ�ĂƌĞ�ĂďůĞ�
ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�ŽƵƚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƌƐƚ�ŚŽƵƌ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǀĂĐƵĂƚŝŽŶ͘��ϯϰϯ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƐƚƵĐŬ͘��/Ĩ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ŶŽ�dƌĂƉ�ůĂŶĞ�ŽŶůǇ�ϭϲ�
ĐĂƌƐ�ǁŝůů�ŵĂŬĞ�ŝƚ�ŽƵƚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƌƐƚ�ŚŽƵƌ�Ͳ�ϱϯϱ�ĐĂƌƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƐƚƵĐŬ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĚƌŝǀĞǁĂǇƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƵŶĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�
ŐĞƚ�ƚŽ�WůĞĂƐĂŶƚ�,ŝůů�ZŽĂĚ͘��dŚŝƐ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚůǇ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĚŝĐƚƐ�ǁŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƌĞ�ĐŚŝĞĨ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐĂǇŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŚĞ�ŝƐ�
ŶŽƚ�ǁŽƌƌŝĞĚ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�dĞƌƌĂĐĞƐ�ďĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƌĞĞǁĂǇ͘�

Ϯ͘� &Žƌ�ĞǀĂĐƵĂƚŝŶŐ�ƚƌĂĨĨŝĐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵƌƌŽƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ĂƌĞĂ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝƚƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ďĂĚ͘��/Ĩ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ŶŽ�ƚƌĂƉ�
ůĂŶĞ�ďƵŝůƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ͕�ĂŶ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ϱϱϯ�ŶĞŝŐŚďŽƌŚŽŽĚ�ĐĂƌƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƐƚƵĐŬ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�
ĚƌŝǀĞǁĂǇƐ�ĂĨƚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƌƐƚ�ŚŽƵƌ�ĂŶĚ�ƵŶĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�ƚŽ�WůĞĂƐĂŶƚ�,ŝůů�ZŽĂĚ͘���ĚĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƚƌĂƉ�ůĂŶĞ�
ĚƌŽƉƐ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƚŽ�ϭϱϮ�ĞǆƚƌĂ�ĐĂƌƐ�ƐƚƵĐŬ͕�ďƵƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�Ɛƚŝůů�ϭϱϮ�ĐĂƌƐ�ƚŽŽ�ŵĂŶǇ͘�

ϯ͘� dŚŝƐ�ĞǆƉůĂŝŶƐ�d:<D͛Ɛ�ĞĂƌůŝĞƌ�ĐŽŶĐůƵƐŝŽŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�dĞƌƌĂĐĞƐ�ŽŶůǇ�ĂĚĚƐ�ϭϬ�ƚŽ�ϭϲ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚƐ�ĞǆƚƌĂ�ĚĞůĂǇ�
ŽŶ�WůĞĂƐĂŶƚ�,ŝůů�ZŽĂĚ͖�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ďĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂũŽƌŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ĞǀĂĐƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚƌĂĨĨŝĐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�dĞƌƌĂĐĞƐ�ĐĂŶ͛ƚ�
ĞǀĞŶ�ŵĂŬĞ�ŝƚ�ƚŽ�WůĞĂƐĂŶƚ�,ŝůů�ZŽĂĚ͘�

ϰ͘� �ŶŽƚŚĞƌ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚ�ƌĞƐƵůƚ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�d:<D͛Ɛ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƐŽŵĞ�ƉĂƌĞŶƚƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƉŝĐŬ�ƵƉ�
ƐƚƵĚĞŶƚƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ǁĂǇ�ŽƵƚ�ŝƐ�ŝŶǀĂůŝĚ�ʹ�ƐŽŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƉĂƌĞŶƚƐ�ĚŽŶ͛ƚ�ĞǀĞŶ�ŵĂŬĞ�ŝƚ�
ƚŽ�WůĞĂƐĂŶƚ�,ŝůů�ZŽĂĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƌƐƚ�ŚŽƵƌ͘�

ϱ͘� �ůŝƚĞ�ůŽŽŬĞĚ�Ăƚ�d:<D͛Ɛ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂůƚŚŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƐƚĂƌƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂŶ�ĞŵƉƚǇ�ŶĞƚǁŽƌŬ͕�ƚŚĞǇ�ĚŝĚ�
ƐĞĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞƚǁŽƌŬ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐŽŵĞ�ƚƌĂĨĨŝĐ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǀĂĐƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ďĞŐŝŶƐ͘��dŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ƚƌƵĞ͕�ďƵƚ�d:<D�ŽŶůǇ�
ƐĞĞĚĞĚ�ŝƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĞŶŽƵŐŚ�ƚƌĂĨĨŝĐ�ƚŽ�ĨŽƌŵ�Ă�ďĂĐŬ�ƵƉ�ĨƌŽŵ��ĞĞƌ�,ŝůů�ZŽĂĚ�ŚĂůĨ�ǁĂǇ�ƚŽ�^ƉƌŝŶŐŚŝůů�ZŽĂĚ͘��
^ĞĞ�ƉĂŐĞ�ϴ�ŽĨ�d:<D͛Ɛ�ŵĞŵŽ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŶ�ŝůůƵƐƚƌĂƚŝŽŶ͘��dŚŝƐ�ŝŶ�ŶŽƚ�ŚĞĂǀǇ�ĐŽŵŵƵƚĞ�ŚŽƵƌ�ƚƌĂĨĨŝĐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƐŽ�
ƚŚĞ�ŵŽĚĞů�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞŝŶŐ�Ăƚ�Ăůů�ĐŽŶƐĞƌǀĂƚŝǀĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƐƉĞĐƚ͘���

ϲ͘� EŽƚĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�Ăůů�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�d:<D͛Ɛ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽĚĞů�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ǁŝůů�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�
ĂŶǇ�ƚƌĂĨĨŝĐ�ĐŽŶŐĞƐƚŝŽŶ�ŽŶ�,ŝŐŚǁĂǇ�Ϯϰ͘���/Ŷ�ĨĂĐƚ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝƚƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŵƵĐŚ�ǁŽƌƐĞ�ŝĨ�,ŝŐŚǁĂǇ�Ϯϰ�ŝƐ�

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 201



ďĂĐŬĞĚ�ƵƉ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝƐ�ůŝŬĞůǇ͘���ůŝƚĞ�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐĞƐ�ŽŶ�ƉĂŐĞ�ϵ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŵĞŵŽ�d:<D͛Ɛ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�
,ŝŐŚǁĂǇ�Ϯϰ�ƚƌĂĨĨŝĐ�ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ŵĂƚƚĞƌ�ʹ�ŝƚ�ĚŽĞƐ͊�

ϳ͘� KŶ�ƉĂŐĞ�ϭϬ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŵĞŵŽ͕��ůŝƚĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚƐ�ƚŽ�d:<D͛Ɛ�ĐůĂŝŵƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŽŶͲƌĂŵƉƐ�ƚŽ�,ŝŐŚǁĂǇ�
Ϯϰ�ǁŝůů�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ŚĂŶĚůĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƚƌĂ�ĞǀĂĐƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚƌĂĨĨŝĐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�
dĞƌƌĂĐĞƐ�ʹ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ƚƌƵĞ͘��

�

/Ŷ�ƐƵŵŵĂƌǇ͕�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ĐůĞĂƌ�ĨƌŽŵ��ůŝƚĞ͛Ɛ�ĐŽŵƉƌĞŚĞŶƐŝǀĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�d:<D�ĞǀĂĐƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ŵŽĚĞů�ĂĐƚƵĂůůǇ�
ƐŚŽǁƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�dĞƌƌĂĐĞƐ�ǁŝůů�ŝŵƉŽƐĞ�ƐŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚ�ƐĂĨĞƚǇ�ƚŚƌĞĂƚƐ�ŽŶ�ďŽƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵƌƌŽƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ŶĞŝŐŚďŽƌŚŽŽĚ�
ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ŝƚƐĞůĨ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƚƌĂĨĨŝĐ�ĐŽŶŐĞƐƚŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ�
ĞǀĂĐƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ĚĞůĂǇƐ͘��zŽƵ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ƚŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ�ĚĞŶǇ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�Ăƚ�ǇŽƵƌ�ŵĞĞƚŝŶŐ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĞǀĞŶŝŶŐ͘�

�

^ŝŶĐĞƌĞůǇ͕�

�ŽůŝŶ��ůůŝŽƚƚ�ŽŶ�ďĞŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�DŝĐŚĂĞů�'ƌŝĨĨŝƚŚƐ�

�

�ƚƚĂĐŚĞĚ͗���

ϭ͘� �ůŝƚĞ�WĞĞƌ�ZĞǀŝĞǁ�ŵĞŵŽ�ĚĂƚĞĚ�ϴͬϮϯͬϮϬϮϬ�

�

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 202



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ь�Quality ь�Reliability  
 

Modeling x Planning x Engineering x ITS       Page | 1 

Memorandum 
Date: August 23, 2020 

To: Michael Griffiths 

From: Lin Zhang, PhD, PE, TE, PTOE 
Elite Transportation Group, Inc. (ETG) 
 

Subject: Peer Review of TJKM’s Evacuation Models and Response Memo for Terraces of 
Lafayette Traffic Impact Study 

TJKM, the traffic study consultant for the proposed Terraces of Lafayette Project, released a memorandum 
dated August 10, 2020, in response to ETG’s comments regarding TJKM’s emergency evacuation modeling 
and analysis. The purpose of this memorandum is to provide a summary of our latest findings based on a 
review of the TJKM’s response memo and evacuation models.  

TJKM’s evacuation models were developed for AM and PM peak hours using Synchro/SimTraffic, a 
commonly used software package for arterial operations. TJKM’s evacuation model files were organized 
for the following six scenarios (“Project” is referred as the Terraces of Lafayette): 

x Evac 1 – Evacuation (without project) in the AM Peak 
x Evac 1 + Project – Evacuation plus project, with trap lane1, in the AM Peak 
x Evac 1 + Project Variant – Evacuation plus project, no trap lane, in the AM Peak 
x Evac 2 – Evacuation (without project) in the PM Peak 
x Evac 2 + Project – Evacuation plus project, with trap lane, in the PM Peak 
x Evac 2 + Project Variant – Evacuation plus project, no trap lane, in the PM Peak 

In TJKM’s memo, “denied entry vehicles”, which will be explained in the next, were not reported. We re-
ran SimTraffic simulation for the AM peak scenarios using the Synchro files and the same parameters that 
TJKM provided, as listed below: 

x 5 runs per synchro file 
x 10-minute seeding interval 
x 60-minute analysis interval 
x Random seed 1412 

The SimTraffic simulation reports are attached in Appendix. We were able to replicate majority of the 
performance measures that were included in TJKM’s memo. In addition, we also reported “denied entry 
vehicles”, for both systemwide and individual intersections (see Appendix).  

 

1 The Gateway Constraints Policy outlined in the Lamorinda Action Plan precludes adding more through lanes. 
Pleasant Hill Road is used as an alternative route by traffic heading south on I-680 in the AM Peak period.  One of 
the rationales for the Gateway Constraints Policy is the recognition that any improvement in through traffic flow 
on Pleasant Hill Road is likely to attract more traffic from I-680. 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 203



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ь�Quality ь�Reliability  
 

Modeling x Planning x Engineering x ITS       Page | 2 

DENIED ENTRY VEHICLES (WAITING TO ENTER THE TRAFFIC NETWORK) 

Denied entry vehicles (i.e., unserved vehicles) are the vehicles that are still waiting to enter the traffic 
network by the end of the traffic analysis period. We checked and found many denied entry vehicles in 
TJKM’s evaluation models. For instance, in the AM peak hour evacuation model (7:00-8:00 AM), the 
number of denied entry vehicles including the Terraces of Lafayette project is more than 3,400 vehicles 
under the trap lane scenario (Table 1), or more than 3,800 vehicles under the no trap lane scenario (Table 
2). This means that by 8:00 AM (the end of the traffic analysis period), there would still be more than 
3,400 vehicles (under the trap lane scenario), or more than 3,800 vehicles (under the no trap lane 
scenario), waiting to get onto streets for evacuation.  

Table 1. Systemwide Denied Entry Vehicles – AM Peak, with Project, with Trap Lane 

 

 
Table 2. Systemwide Denied Entry Vehicles – AM Peak, with Project, No Trap Lane (Project Variant) 

 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 204



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ь�Quality ь�Reliability  
 

Modeling x Planning x Engineering x ITS       Page | 3 

We checked the project driveway connecting with Pleasant Hill Road, and saw that the project driveway 
is still packed with vehicles by the end of the traffic analysis period (see Figure 1). We then checked and 
found that there were more than 500 denied entry vehicles under the trap lane scenario (Table 3), or 
more than 700 denied entry vehicles under the no trap lane scenario (Table 4). Only 12 vehicles, or 2%, 
would be able to get out of the Terraces of Lafayette community during the 7:00-8:00 AM one-hour 
evacuation period under the no trap lane scenario. Even with the trap lane scenario, only 217 vehicles, or 
30%, would be able to get out of the Terraces of Lafayette community. The denied entry vehicles would 
not show up on the short project driveway. To better visualize the stack of the denied entry vehicles, we 
“artificially” extended the project driveway, as shown in Figure 1. Majority of vehicles could not even 
leave Terraces of Lafayette community after the one-hour evacuation period.  

Table 3. Denied Entry Vehicles at Project Driveway – AM Peak, with Project, with Trap Lane 

 

Table 4. Denied Entry Vehicles at Project Driveway – AM Peak, with Project, No Trap Lane (Project 
Variant) 

 

  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 205



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ь�Quality ь�Reliability  
 

Modeling x Planning x Engineering x ITS       Page | 4 

Figure 1. Pleasant Hill Road & Project Driveway (by end of traffic analysis period in AM peak) 
    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 206



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ь�Quality ь�Reliability  
 

Modeling x Planning x Engineering x ITS       Page | 5 

We noticed that TJKM assumed a peak hour factor (PHF) of 0.75 in the evacuation models. The PHF is 
usually used to convert the hourly traffic volume into the flow rate that represents the busiest 15 minutes 
of the rush hour.  

ܨܪܲ =  
݁݉ݑ݈ܸ ݂݂ܿ݅ܽݎܶ ݕ݈ݎݑܪ ݈ܽݐܶ

(ܲ݁ܽ݇ ͳͷᄘݎݑܪ ݄݁ݐ ݄ݐ݅ݓ ݁݉ݑ݈ܸ ݂݂ܿ݅ܽݎܶ ݁ݐݑ݊݅ܯ) × 4
 

Using a PHF of 0.75 means that the analysis flow rate (i.e., peak 15-minute traffic flow rate) is 33.3% more 
than the hourly traffic volume.  

Different from a typical intersection delay and level of service (LOS) analysis, the purpose of an evacuation 
model is mainly focused on how quickly the evacuation can be achieved. Therefore, using PHFs may not 
be appropriate for evacuation analyses. We then ran SimTraffic simulation for the AM peak scenarios 
using the same Synchro files and primary parameters, with the only change of PHF from 0.75 to 1.0. The 
SimTraffic simulation reports based on PHF of 1.0 are attached in Appendix.  

Even with a PHF of 1.0, we still found that there would be more than 300 denied entry vehicles under the 
trap lane scenario (Table 5), or more than 500 denied entry vehicles under the no trap lane scenario (Table 
6). Only 13 vehicles, or 2%, would be able to get out of the Terraces of Lafayette community during the 
7:00-8:00 AM one-hour evacuation period under the no trap lane scenario. Even with the trap lane 
scenario, only 210 vehicles, or 38%, would be able to get out of the Terraces of Lafayette community. 

Table 5. Denied Entry Vehicles at Project Driveway – AM Peak, with Project, with Trap Lane (PHF=1.0) 

 

 
  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 207



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ь�Quality ь�Reliability  
 

Modeling x Planning x Engineering x ITS       Page | 6 

Table 6. Denied Entry Vehicles at Project Driveway – AM Peak, with Project, No Trap Lane (Project 
Variant) (PHF=1.0) 

 

The denied entry vehicles exist on other streets too, including Stanley Boulevard, Spring Hill Road, Quandt 
Road, and Reliez Valley Road, as shown in Figure 2. Keep it in mind that Stanley Boulevard is mainly for 
evacuating students from Acalanes High School, and denied entry vehicles (i.e., waiting to enter the traffic 
network) would be more than 900.  

With so many denied entry vehicles systemwide (>3,400 vehicles under the trap lane scenario, or >3,800 
vehicles under the no trap lane scenario), and 98% of vehicles under the no trap lane scenario (or more 
than 60% under the trap lane scenario) could not even leave Terraces of Lafayette community after the 
one-hour evacuation period, TJKM’s evacuation models apparently lack credibility and the results coming 
out of the evacuation models are simply invalid. 

  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 208



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ь�Quality ь�Reliability  
 

Modeling x Planning x Engineering x ITS       Page | 7 

Figure 2. Streets with Significant Denied Entry Vehicles (by end of traffic analysis period in AM peak) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 209



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ь�Quality ь�Reliability  
 

Modeling x Planning x Engineering x ITS       Page | 8 

BACKGROUND TRAFFIC 

In their response memo, TJKM mentioned that they included a 10-minute “seeding” period (i.e., 6:50-7:00 
AM). We ran the 10-minute seeding period, and found that traffic was only backed up to somewhere 
between Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard and Spring Hill Road/Quant Road, as shown in Figure 3.  

Figure 3. Traffic Condition (by end of 10-minute seeding period in AM peak) 
 

  

End of the queue 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 210



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ь�Quality ь�Reliability  
 

Modeling x Planning x Engineering x ITS       Page | 9 

However, it is well known that the Pleasant Hill Road backs up much further upstream at 7:00 AM during 
the morning peak. There should have been many more vehicles (i.e., “background traffic”) already in the 
roadway system when the evacuation starts during the AM peak hour.  

In their response memo, TJKM claimed that “By including both evacuation traffic and normal commute 
traffic, these vehicles would be double counted.” This would only be true if all of the traffic on Pleasant 
Hill Road would come only from Lafayette. However, Pleasant Hill Road carries traffic from many 
surrounding cities and communities. The right approach is to load the roadway network so that at the 
beginning of the evacuation (i.e., 7:00 AM during the morning peak), the modeled traffic condition 
represents what would look like during a normal day without evacuation. After that, no new non-
evacuation traffic would enter Pleasant Hill Road from the north once a roadblock has been set up after 
the evacuation order is given. However, TJKM’s evacuation models did not follow the right approach, and 
therefore significantly underestimated background traffic. Adding background traffic could make traffic 
delay exponentially worse. 

SR 24 CAPACITY CONSTRAINT 

The evacuation models assumed that all evacuating vehicles would use SR 24 to leave Lafayette – 50% 
would travel eastbound (EB) and 50% would travel westbound (WB). We raised the question that the 
evacuation models ended at the on-ramps (both EB and WB) and did not model or put capacity constraints 
on SR 24 mainline freeway, as illustrated in Figure 4. By doing this, TJKM assumed that SR 24 would have 
“unlimited” capacity to absorb the additional evacuating traffic. This assumption is unrealistic since SR 24 
is already congested (WB in AM and EB in PM) and does not have enough extra capacity to accommodate 
the significant amount increase of traffic due to evacuation.  

In their response memo, TJKM did not address this concern directly. It is only simply stated that “the 
evacuation traffic volumes are already extremely conservative.”  

Here is a simple example for the AM peak hour to illustrate the importance of SR 24 capacity constraint. 
Again, this example is for illustration purposes and it does not replace detailed and accurate modeling.  

x Same assumption of all evacuating vehicles would use SR 24 to leave Lafayette – 50% would travel 
EB and 50% would travel WB. 

x In the AM peak hour (7:00-8:00 AM), SR 24 WB has a capacity constraint – assuming 900 vehicles 
are able to get on and use SR 24 in the WB direction.  

x Traffic demand during the evacuation is 1,800 vehicles to use the SR 24 WB on-ramp. 
x With the above assumptions, vehicles cannot be fully evacuated in two hours (i.e., 1,800/900 = 2) 

In other words, one additional hour is needed after the one-hour peak period. However, with all 
the above assumptions except for the SR 24 capacity constraint, as modelled by TJKM, vehicles 
can be fully evacuated within the one-hour peak period.  

x Additional evacuating traffic coming out of the Terraces of Lafayette community is 551 vehicles 
(based on TJKM’s memo dated June 22, 2020). Now adding half of them to the SR 24 WB direction, 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 211



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ь�Quality ь�Reliability  
 

Modeling x Planning x Engineering x ITS       Page | 10 

the additional 275 vehicles (i.e., 551/2 = 275) coming out of the Terraces of Lafayette community 
would cause additional 18 minutes (i.e., 275/900*60 = 18) to evacuate.  

Therefore, the evacuation models must have significantly underestimated the level of traffic congestion, 
and the impacts of which is that traffic is unable to get onto the SR 24 freeway and gets backed up on 
surface streets. 

Figure 4. Evacuation Models Ended at On-Ramps 

 

ON-RAMP CAPACITY CONSTRAINT 

We stated in our previous memo that the single-lane on-ramps (both EB and WB) may not be able to 
handle the significant amount of traffic getting onto SR 24 freeway during the peak hours, with a 
maximum capacity of 1,900 vehicles per hour per lane at on-ramps assuming no congestion on the 
freeway onto which the traffic merges. TJKM responded by stating that “it is not an absolute limit, and 
exceeding 1,900 vehicles per hour per lane does not immediately result in gridlock or excessive delays. In 
addition, the sections of SR-24 where the westbound and eastbound ramps enter the freeway feature 
long auxiliary lanes, such that evacuation traffic would have ample time to merge into the other travel 
lanes without slowing down ramp traffic.” 

x On-Ramp Capacity: TJKM stated that on-ramp maximum capacity of 1,900 vehicles per hour per 
lane “it is not an absolute limit”. Traffic Engineers generally use 1,900 vehicles under the close to 
“ideal” condition without traffic congestion or traffic flow breakdown. 1,900 vehicles per hour per 
lane corresponds to 1.9 seconds in headway (i.e., 3,600 seconds/1,900 = 1.9). Headway is a 

Model ends here 

Model ends here 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 212



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ь�Quality ь�Reliability  
 

Modeling x Planning x Engineering x ITS       Page | 11 

measure of the temporal space between two vehicles. Specifically, the headway is the time that 
elapses between the arrival of the leading vehicle and the following vehicle at the designated test 
point. In fact, on-ramp capacity drops when traffic is congested (traffic flow breakdown), causing 
“productivity loss”. It is not uncommon to see on-ramp capacity drops to 1,200 vehicles per hour 
per lane or less when traffic follow breaks down. Under the emergency evacuation condition, 
traffic typically breaks down due to many factors such as poor visibility (due to smoke), 
rubbernecking, panicking, etc. We agree that the on-ramp capacity is not an absolute limit; 
instead, it drops significantly under the emergency evacuation condition. In this perspective, 
traffic congestion would be even much worse.  

x Auxiliary Lanes:  TJKM stated that “the sections of SR-24 where the westbound and eastbound 
ramps enter the freeway feature long auxiliary lanes, such that evacuation traffic would have 
ample time to merge into the other travel lanes without slowing down ramp traffic.” Auxiliary 
lanes on SR 24 do not help when traffic is already congested (WB in AM and EB in PM) while much 
more additional traffic is being loaded onto SR 24 due to emergency evacuation.  

CONCLUSION 

In conclusion, the evacuation models that TJKM developed has critical fatal flaws. The results generated 
from the evacuation models are invalid and should not be used for any decision-making.  

  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 213



                   Elite Transportation Group (ETG)    |    Integrity ь�Quality ь�Reliability  
 

Modeling x Planning x Engineering x ITS       Page | 12 

APPENDIX 

SimTraffic Simulation Reports 

x PHF = 0.75 (TJKM’s assumption) 

o Evac 1 – Evacuation (without project) in the AM Peak 

o Evac 1 + Project – Evacuation plus project, with trap lane, in the AM Peak 

o Evac 1 + Project Variant – Evacuation plus project, no trap lane, in the AM Peak 

x PHF = 1.0  

o Evac 1 – Evacuation without project in the AM Peak  

o Evac 1 + Project – Evacuation plus project, with trap lane, in the AM Peak 

o Evac 1 + Project Variant – Evacuation plus project, no trap lane, in the AM Peak 

 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 214



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PHF = 0.75 (TJKM’s assumption) 

Evac 1 – Evacuation (without project) in the AM Peak  
 

 

  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 215



SimTraffic Simulation Summary
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 1

Summary of All Intervals

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Start Time 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50
End Time 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00
Total Time (min) 70 70 70 70 70 70
Time Recorded (min) 60 60 60 60 60 60
# of Intervals 2 2 2 2 2 2
# of Recorded Intervals 1 1 1 1 1 1
Vehs Entered 1839 1799 1853 1780 1801 1815
Vehs Exited 1731 1727 1714 1677 1712 1712
Starting Vehs 281 306 248 270 292 279
Ending Vehs 389 378 387 373 381 380
Denied Entry Before 111 134 82 89 97 102
Denied Entry After 3211 3348 3053 3274 3192 3215
Travel Distance (mi) 1650 1646 1657 1635 1633 1644
Travel Time (hr) 1970.3 2079.1 1891.0 2004.2 1963.6 1981.7
Total Delay (hr) 1913.1 2022.1 1833.3 1947.6 1906.9 1924.6
Total Stops 6129 6226 6137 6034 6042 6113
Fuel Used (gal) 490.2 515.2 471.8 497.7 486.6 492.3

Interval #0 Information  Seeding
Start Time 6:50
End Time 7:00
Total Time (min) 10
No data recorded this interval.

Interval #1 Information  Recording
Start Time 7:00
End Time 8:00
Total Time (min) 60
Volumes adjusted by PHF.

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Vehs Entered 1839 1799 1853 1780 1801 1815
Vehs Exited 1731 1727 1714 1677 1712 1712
Starting Vehs 281 306 248 270 292 279
Ending Vehs 389 378 387 373 381 380
Denied Entry Before 111 134 82 89 97 102
Denied Entry After 3211 3348 3053 3274 3192 3215
Travel Distance (mi) 1650 1646 1657 1635 1633 1644
Travel Time (hr) 1970.3 2079.1 1891.0 2004.2 1963.6 1981.7
Total Delay (hr) 1913.1 2022.1 1833.3 1947.6 1906.9 1924.6
Total Stops 6129 6226 6137 6034 6042 6113
Fuel Used (gal) 490.2 515.2 471.8 497.7 486.6 492.3

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 216



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 2

1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.2 0.1 0.2
Total Delay (hr) 0.2 0.1 0.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.6 6.3 4.1
Stop Delay (hr) 0.1 0.0 0.2
Stop Del/Veh (s) 2.8 4.5 3.1
Vehicles Entered 176 36 212
Vehicles Exited 175 36 211
Hourly Exit Rate 175 36 211
Input Volume 173 33 206
% of Volume 101 109 102
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.1 19.7 0.3 20.1
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.4 144.5 5.2 95.1
Stop Delay (hr) 0.1 18.6 0.2 18.9
Stop Del/Veh (s) 3.5 136.2 3.4 89.3
Vehicles Entered 56 479 212 747
Vehicles Exited 55 467 212 734
Hourly Exit Rate 55 467 212 734
Input Volume 56 637 207 900
% of Volume 98 73 102 82
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 217



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 3

3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 571.5 0.0 571.5
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1365.2 0.0 918.1
Total Delay (hr) 17.5 8.3 25.7
Total Del/Veh (s) 199.0 39.8 87.2
Stop Delay (hr) 17.5 6.7 24.3
Stop Del/Veh (s) 199.8 32.4 82.2
Vehicles Entered 303 734 1037
Vehicles Exited 297 727 1024
Hourly Exit Rate 297 727 1024
Input Volume 1499 900 2399
% of Volume 20 81 43
Denied Entry Before 8 0 8
Denied Entry After 1204 0 1204

4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL WBT NBL SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 354.3 42.1 6.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 402.8
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1456.1 485.6 480.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 641.6
Total Delay (hr) 9.9 7.9 1.2 0.1 32.3 2.5 53.8
Total Del/Veh (s) 201.6 123.7 126.0 96.5 123.9 93.5 131.2
Stop Delay (hr) 10.2 7.7 1.1 0.1 32.5 2.6 54.2
Stop Del/Veh (s) 207.6 120.7 121.8 94.2 124.8 94.5 132.0
Vehicles Entered 167 228 33 5 922 97 1452
Vehicles Exited 166 223 32 5 897 94 1417
Hourly Exit Rate 166 223 32 5 897 94 1417
Input Volume 857 297 45 5 2168 231 3603
% of Volume 19 75 71 100 41 41 39
Denied Entry Before 11 1 0 0 0 0 12
Denied Entry After 709 84 15 0 0 0 808

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 218



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 4

5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard Performance by movement 

Movement WBL NBT NBR SBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 573.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 573.7
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1606.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 792.8
Total Delay (hr) 23.6 0.0 0.0 13.0 140.8 177.4
Total Del/Veh (s) 320.2 17.2 2.9 373.8 389.2 369.9
Stop Delay (hr) 23.4 0.0 0.0 12.3 137.2 172.9
Stop Del/Veh (s) 317.5 15.6 2.9 353.2 379.4 360.7
Vehicles Entered 238 7 26 112 1174 1557
Vehicles Exited 241 7 26 113 1139 1526
Hourly Exit Rate 241 7 26 113 1139 1526
Input Volume 1212 6 29 291 3032 4570
% of Volume 20 117 90 39 38 33
Denied Entry Before 82 0 0 0 0 82
Denied Entry After 1048 0 0 0 0 1048

6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp Performance by movement 

Movement SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.1 4.8 4.1
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 2 11 13
Vehicles Exited 2 11 13
Hourly Exit Rate 2 11 13
Input Volume 7 28 35
% of Volume 29 39 37
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 219



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 5

7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 1.8 1.8
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1
Vehicles Entered 28 28
Vehicles Exited 28 28
Hourly Exit Rate 28 28
Input Volume 29 29
% of Volume 97 97
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue Performance by movement 

Movement NBT SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 4.5 4.5
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.3 11.8 11.6
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 1.4 1.4
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 3.7 3.6
Vehicles Entered 33 1377 1410
Vehicles Exited 33 1376 1409
Hourly Exit Rate 33 1376 1409
Input Volume 35 4244 4279
% of Volume 94 32 33
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 220



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 6

15: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement WBR SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 3.7 2.9 6.5
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.7 18.8 15.1 16.6
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.8
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 2.1 2.2 2.1
Vehicles Entered 33 697 679 1409
Vehicles Exited 33 695 681 1409
Hourly Exit Rate 33 695 681 1409
Input Volume 35 2140 2104 4279
% of Volume 94 32 32 33
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

16: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 1.3 1.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 6.7 6.7
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 695 695
Vehicles Exited 695 695
Hourly Exit Rate 695 695
Input Volume 2140 2140
% of Volume 32 32
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 221



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 7

17: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1 0.1
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 1.3 1.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 7.3 6.3 6.3
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.6 0.6
Stop Del/Veh (s) 1.7 3.2 3.1
Vehicles Entered 13 716 729
Vehicles Exited 13 716 729
Hourly Exit Rate 13 716 729
Input Volume 35 2140 2175
% of Volume 37 33 34
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

Total Network Performance 

Denied Delay (hr) 1613.5
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1154.8
Total Delay (hr) 311.1
Total Del/Veh (s) 535.4
Stop Delay (hr) 289.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 497.3
Vehicles Entered 1815
Vehicles Exited 1712
Hourly Exit Rate 1712
Input Volume 37038
% of Volume 5
Denied Entry Before 102
Denied Entry After 3215

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 222



Arterial Level of Service
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 8

Arterial Level of Service: NB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Acalanes Avenue 14 0.3 20.2 0.1 11

11 0.0 4.0 0.0 34
Stanley Boulevard 5 17.2 24.2 0.1 12
Quandt Road 4 96.5 141.4 0.4 11
Total 113.9 189.8 0.6 12

Arterial Level of Service: SB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Rancho View Drive 1 6.3 21.5 0.2 26

19 1.3 16.3 0.1 33
Greenvalley Drive 2 5.2 12.0 0.1 21
Reliez Valle Road 3 39.1 63.3 0.3 14

20 24.2 27.8 0.0 4
Springhill Road 4 123.9 133.4 0.1 3
Deer Hill Road 5 359.4 398.0 0.4 4

11 19.5 28.0 0.1 10
Acalanes Avenue 14 11.8 15.8 0.0 9

15 18.8 25.0 0.1 9
16 6.7 16.1 0.1 24
17 7.3 16.4 0.1 16

Mt. Diablo Boulevard 6 4.8 12.9 0.1 19
SR 24 EB Off Ramp 7 1.8 4.6 0.1 48
Total 630.0 791.1 1.7 8

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 223



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 9

Intersection: 1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive

Movement EB SB SB
Directions Served LTR T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 91 48 11
Average Queue (ft) 42 11 1
95th Queue (ft) 73 37 8
Link Distance (ft) 306 773 773
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive

Movement EB WB B60 SB SB
Directions Served LTR LT T T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 56 611 112 55 75
Average Queue (ft) 14 562 73 12 31
95th Queue (ft) 35 664 112 37 63
Link Distance (ft) 333 494 53 288 288
Upstream Blk Time (%) 82 84
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 76
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0

Intersection: 3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road

Movement EB EB SB SB
Directions Served L R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 467 486 360 366
Average Queue (ft) 283 457 200 198
95th Queue (ft) 631 473 292 304
Link Distance (ft) 438 438 1259 1259
Upstream Blk Time (%) 33 96
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 34
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 224



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 10

Intersection: 4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road

Movement EB WB NB SB SB SB B20 B20
Directions Served LTR LTR L T T R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 370 255 20 523 520 96 217 222
Average Queue (ft) 338 231 3 470 470 76 169 181
95th Queue (ft) 355 246 15 612 625 140 262 266
Link Distance (ft) 318 213 414 414 127 127
Upstream Blk Time (%) 100 89 86 88 28 86
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0 1036 1053 331 1036
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 200 71
Storage Blk Time (%) 87 81 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 188 3

Intersection: 5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard

Movement WB WB NB NB SB SB SB
Directions Served L LT T R L T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 225 554 32 47 275 2267 2401
Average Queue (ft) 194 524 3 11 183 2238 2366
95th Queue (ft) 304 543 17 34 335 2325 2480
Link Distance (ft) 504 347 347 2220 2220
Upstream Blk Time (%) 95 40 94
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 672 1556
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 185 175
Storage Blk Time (%) 9 97 6 28 66
Queuing Penalty (veh) 52 587 88 81 0

Intersection: 6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 225



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 11

Intersection: 7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road

Movement SB
Directions Served T
Maximum Queue (ft) 3
Average Queue (ft) 0
95th Queue (ft) 2
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 8: Brown Avenue/Miller Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 9: First Street/Sierra Vista Way & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 226



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 12

Intersection: 10: SR 24 WB Ramps/Laurel Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue

Movement SB SB B11 B11
Directions Served T T T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 190 254 400 387
Average Queue (ft) 45 206 186 334
95th Queue (ft) 142 305 430 436
Link Distance (ft) 147 147 347 347
Upstream Blk Time (%) 1 20 1 7
Queuing Penalty (veh) 17 428 25 146
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 15: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB
Directions Served TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 361
Average Queue (ft) 183
95th Queue (ft) 427
Link Distance (ft) 266
Upstream Blk Time (%) 6
Queuing Penalty (veh) 117
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 227



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 13

Intersection: 16: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 17: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB
Directions Served TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 217
Average Queue (ft) 80
95th Queue (ft) 174
Link Distance (ft) 314
Upstream Blk Time (%) 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 7415

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 228



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PHF = 0.75 (TJKM’s assumption) 

Evac 1 + Project – Evacuation plus project, with trap lane, in the AM 
Peak  

 

 

  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 229



SimTraffic Simulation Summary AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 1

Summary of All Intervals

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Start Time 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50
End Time 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00
Total Time (min) 70 70 70 70 70 70
Time Recorded (min) 60 60 60 60 60 60
# of Intervals 2 2 2 2 2 2
# of Recorded Intervals 1 1 1 1 1 1
Vehs Entered 2263 2295 2244 2328 2313 2288
Vehs Exited 2102 2093 2083 2150 2194 2124
Starting Vehs 258 221 256 240 270 249
Ending Vehs 419 423 417 418 389 413
Denied Entry Before 144 118 171 165 170 154
Denied Entry After 3606 3495 3527 3411 3573 3521
Travel Distance (mi) 1958 1940 1912 1998 1993 1960
Travel Time (hr) 2184.8 2082.6 2177.1 2092.5 2164.7 2140.3
Total Delay (hr) 2116.4 2014.8 2109.6 2022.3 2095.0 2071.6
Total Stops 8764 8548 8324 9019 8972 8724
Fuel Used (gal) 547.6 524.9 544.9 528.3 545.2 538.2

Interval #0 Information  Seeding
Start Time 6:50
End Time 7:00
Total Time (min) 10
No data recorded this interval.

Interval #1 Information  Recording
Start Time 7:00
End Time 8:00
Total Time (min) 60
Volumes adjusted by PHF.

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Vehs Entered 2263 2295 2244 2328 2313 2288
Vehs Exited 2102 2093 2083 2150 2194 2124
Starting Vehs 258 221 256 240 270 249
Ending Vehs 419 423 417 418 389 413
Denied Entry Before 144 118 171 165 170 154
Denied Entry After 3606 3495 3527 3411 3573 3521
Travel Distance (mi) 1958 1940 1912 1998 1993 1960
Travel Time (hr) 2184.8 2082.6 2177.1 2092.5 2164.7 2140.3
Total Delay (hr) 2116.4 2014.8 2109.6 2022.3 2095.0 2071.6
Total Stops 8764 8548 8324 9019 8972 8724
Fuel Used (gal) 547.6 524.9 544.9 528.3 545.2 538.2

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 230



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 2

1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.2 0.1 0.2
Total Delay (hr) 0.2 0.1 0.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.8 5.4 4.1
Stop Delay (hr) 0.1 0.0 0.2
Stop Del/Veh (s) 2.9 3.8 3.0
Vehicles Entered 177 34 211
Vehicles Exited 176 33 209
Hourly Exit Rate 176 33 209
Input Volume 173 33 206
% of Volume 102 100 101
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.1 20.1 0.3 20.5
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.9 148.6 5.7 97.7
Stop Delay (hr) 0.1 19.1 0.2 19.4
Stop Del/Veh (s) 4.1 140.8 3.9 92.2
Vehicles Entered 59 475 209 743
Vehicles Exited 59 464 209 732
Hourly Exit Rate 59 464 209 732
Input Volume 56 637 207 900
% of Volume 105 73 101 81
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 231



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 3

3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 400.7 0.0 400.7
Denied Del/Veh (s) 962.4 0.0 646.6
Total Delay (hr) 15.4 6.5 21.8
Total Del/Veh (s) 88.9 31.0 57.3
Stop Delay (hr) 13.7 5.1 18.8
Stop Del/Veh (s) 79.2 24.6 49.4
Vehicles Entered 609 732 1341
Vehicles Exited 606 725 1331
Hourly Exit Rate 606 725 1331
Input Volume 1499 900 2399
% of Volume 40 81 55
Denied Entry Before 7 0 7
Denied Entry After 890 0 890

4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL WBT NBL SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 381.4 20.4 3.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 405.4
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1544.3 254.1 269.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 570.4
Total Delay (hr) 9.2 7.5 1.4 0.1 21.9 2.0 42.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 224.5 108.8 117.4 81.8 65.0 53.8 84.7
Stop Delay (hr) 9.4 7.2 1.3 0.1 19.4 1.8 39.3
Stop Del/Veh (s) 229.7 104.7 112.5 81.0 57.8 50.3 79.3
Vehicles Entered 138 247 42 5 1198 129 1759
Vehicles Exited 137 244 41 5 1175 128 1730
Hourly Exit Rate 137 244 41 5 1175 128 1730
Input Volume 857 297 45 5 2168 231 3603
% of Volume 16 82 91 100 54 55 48
Denied Entry Before 40 0 0 0 0 0 40
Denied Entry After 751 42 7 0 0 0 800

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 232



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 4

5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard Performance by movement 

Movement WBL NBT NBR SBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 564.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 564.4
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1578.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 725.7
Total Delay (hr) 21.7 0.0 0.0 3.5 24.7 50.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 326.5 12.8 3.7 97.3 64.6 100.7
Stop Delay (hr) 21.5 0.0 0.0 3.3 21.4 46.2
Stop Del/Veh (s) 323.2 11.6 3.9 91.1 55.9 93.1
Vehicles Entered 214 7 32 128 1346 1727
Vehicles Exited 215 7 32 128 1346 1728
Hourly Exit Rate 215 7 32 128 1346 1728
Input Volume 1212 6 29 291 3032 4570
% of Volume 18 117 110 44 44 38
Denied Entry Before 72 0 0 0 0 72
Denied Entry After 1073 0 0 0 0 1073

6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp Performance by movement 

Movement SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 6.2 6.2
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 8 8
Vehicles Exited 8 8
Hourly Exit Rate 8 8
Input Volume 35 35
% of Volume 23 23
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 233



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 5

7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 1.9 1.9
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1
Vehicles Entered 34 34
Vehicles Exited 34 34
Hourly Exit Rate 34 34
Input Volume 35 35
% of Volume 97 97
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

11: Pleasant Hill Road & Project Dwy Performance by movement 

Movement EBR NBT SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 294.0 0.0 0.0 294.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1369.0 0.0 0.0 446.0
Total Delay (hr) 7.0 0.0 13.7 20.7
Total Del/Veh (s) 112.7 0.0 31.4 40.6
Stop Delay (hr) 7.5 0.0 11.1 18.6
Stop Del/Veh (s) 120.4 0.0 25.4 36.5
Vehicles Entered 217 39 1561 1817
Vehicles Exited 217 39 1558 1814
Hourly Exit Rate 217 39 1558 1814
Input Volume 735 35 4244 5014
% of Volume 30 111 37 36
Denied Entry Before 31 0 0 31
Denied Entry After 556 0 0 556

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 234



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 6

14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue Performance by movement 

Movement NBT SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 8.4 8.4
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.3 16.9 16.6
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 8.1 8.1
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 16.4 16.1
Vehicles Entered 39 1775 1814
Vehicles Exited 39 1768 1807
Hourly Exit Rate 39 1768 1807
Input Volume 35 4979 5014
% of Volume 111 36 36
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

15: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement WBR SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 10.4 1.6 12.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.7 41.4 6.8 23.9
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 11.6 0.2 11.9
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 46.5 0.9 23.6
Vehicles Entered 39 898 869 1806
Vehicles Exited 39 890 869 1798
Hourly Exit Rate 39 890 869 1798
Input Volume 35 2507 2472 5014
% of Volume 111 36 35 36
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 235



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 7

16: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 16.4 16.4
Total Del/Veh (s) 65.5 65.6
Stop Delay (hr) 18.7 18.7
Stop Del/Veh (s) 74.5 74.5
Vehicles Entered 890 890
Vehicles Exited 884 884
Hourly Exit Rate 884 884
Input Volume 2507 2507
% of Volume 35 35
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

17: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.2 19.5 19.7
Denied Del/Veh (s) 93.6 76.9 77.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.1 14.9 15.1
Total Del/Veh (s) 64.0 60.2 60.2
Stop Delay (hr) 0.2 17.4 17.6
Stop Del/Veh (s) 70.0 70.2 70.2
Vehicles Entered 8 876 884
Vehicles Exited 8 875 883
Hourly Exit Rate 8 875 883
Input Volume 35 2507 2542
% of Volume 23 35 35
Denied Entry Before 0 2 2
Denied Entry After 0 37 37

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 236



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 8

Total Network Performance 

Denied Delay (hr) 1758.9
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1090.0
Total Delay (hr) 312.7
Total Del/Veh (s) 443.8
Stop Delay (hr) 287.8
Stop Del/Veh (s) 408.4
Vehicles Entered 2288
Vehicles Exited 2124
Hourly Exit Rate 2124
Input Volume 44058
% of Volume 5
Denied Entry Before 154
Denied Entry After 3521

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 237



Arterial Level of Service AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 9

Arterial Level of Service: NB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Acalanes Avenue 14 0.3 20.3 0.1 11
Project Dwy 11 0.0 4.1 0.0 33
Stanley Boulevard 5 12.8 19.5 0.1 15

37 1.7 9.9 0.1 30
Quandt Road 4 81.8 118.9 0.4 11
Total 96.5 172.8 0.6 13

Arterial Level of Service: SB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Rancho View Drive 1 5.4 20.8 0.2 26

19 1.1 15.6 0.1 34
Greenvalley Drive 2 5.7 12.5 0.1 21
Reliez Valle Road 3 28.0 51.8 0.3 17

20 14.3 18.0 0.0 7
Springhill Road 4 65.0 74.5 0.1 5

37 198.8 234.1 0.4 6
Deer Hill Road 5 64.6 72.6 0.1 4
Project Dwy 11 31.6 40.1 0.1 7
Acalanes Avenue 14 17.6 21.7 0.0 6

15 41.4 47.5 0.1 5
16 65.5 74.9 0.1 5
17 64.0 166.8 0.1 3

Mt. Diablo Boulevard 6 6.2 14.2 0.1 17
SR 24 EB Off Ramp 7 1.9 4.7 0.1 48
Total 611.1 869.5 1.7 8

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 238



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 10

Intersection: 1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive

Movement EB SB SB
Directions Served LTR T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 83 37 16
Average Queue (ft) 43 9 1
95th Queue (ft) 72 31 9
Link Distance (ft) 306 773 773
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive

Movement EB WB B60 SB SB
Directions Served LTR LT T T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 60 607 112 64 71
Average Queue (ft) 15 567 73 15 32
95th Queue (ft) 39 637 109 45 64
Link Distance (ft) 333 494 53 288 288
Upstream Blk Time (%) 85 87
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 77 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0

Intersection: 3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road

Movement EB EB SB SB
Directions Served L R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 454 488 332 355
Average Queue (ft) 271 459 183 195
95th Queue (ft) 627 478 280 308
Link Distance (ft) 438 438 1259 1259
Upstream Blk Time (%) 18 83
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 30
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 239



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 11

Intersection: 4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road

Movement EB WB NB SB SB SB B20 B20
Directions Served LTR LTR L T T R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 365 272 24 512 519 96 208 214
Average Queue (ft) 337 235 3 379 380 71 103 125
95th Queue (ft) 354 256 15 625 640 139 241 277
Link Distance (ft) 318 217 406 406 127 127
Upstream Blk Time (%) 100 82 42 52 13 46
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0 502 621 153 551
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 200 71
Storage Blk Time (%) 56 58 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 133 2

Intersection: 5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard

Movement WB WB NB NB SB SB SB SB B37 B37
Directions Served L LT T R L T T T T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 225 556 21 34 275 446 446 450 1878 2010
Average Queue (ft) 110 524 2 11 175 373 393 413 1622 1741
95th Queue (ft) 276 543 14 33 309 521 443 458 2450 2592
Link Distance (ft) 504 342 342 351 351 351 1832 1832
Upstream Blk Time (%) 96 26 36 40 20 76
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 285 395 439 340 1267
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 185 175
Storage Blk Time (%) 0 92 8 6 60
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 558 80 19 0

Intersection: 6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 240



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 12

Intersection: 7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road

Movement SB
Directions Served T
Maximum Queue (ft) 7
Average Queue (ft) 0
95th Queue (ft) 6
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 8: Brown Avenue/Miller Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 9: First Street/Sierra Vista Way & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 241



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 13

Intersection: 10: SR 24 WB Ramps/Laurel Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 11: Pleasant Hill Road & Project Dwy

Movement EB SB SB SB
Directions Served R T T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 216 390 391 394
Average Queue (ft) 183 154 327 324
95th Queue (ft) 199 383 459 484
Link Distance (ft) 164 342 342 342
Upstream Blk Time (%) 100 2 14 11
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 21 201 159
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 12: Project Dwy NE & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 242



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 14

Intersection: 13: Project Dwy SW & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue

Movement SB SB SB
Directions Served T T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 166 267 238
Average Queue (ft) 34 230 174
95th Queue (ft) 110 305 277
Link Distance (ft) 152 152 152
Upstream Blk Time (%) 1 94 11
Queuing Penalty (veh) 10 1555 180
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 15: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB SB SB
Directions Served T T R
Maximum Queue (ft) 60 369 287
Average Queue (ft) 12 336 103
95th Queue (ft) 50 408 228
Link Distance (ft) 262 262 262
Upstream Blk Time (%) 96 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 1586 5
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 243



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 15

Intersection: 16: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB
Directions Served T
Maximum Queue (ft) 540
Average Queue (ft) 512
95th Queue (ft) 545
Link Distance (ft) 302
Upstream Blk Time (%) 99
Queuing Penalty (veh) 1240
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 17: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB SB
Directions Served T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 125 532
Average Queue (ft) 4 506
95th Queue (ft) 63 530
Link Distance (ft) 314 314
Upstream Blk Time (%) 0 99
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 830
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 11131

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 244



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PHF = 0.75 (TJKM’s assumption) 

Evac 1 + Project Variant– Evacuation plus project, no trap lane, in the 
AM Peak  

 

  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 245



SimTraffic Simulation Summary AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 1

Summary of All Intervals

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Start Time 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50
End Time 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00
Total Time (min) 70 70 70 70 70 70
Time Recorded (min) 60 60 60 60 60 60
# of Intervals 2 2 2 2 2 2
# of Recorded Intervals 1 1 1 1 1 1
Vehs Entered 1791 1861 1881 1826 1818 1836
Vehs Exited 1693 1741 1734 1705 1729 1721
Starting Vehs 305 291 290 275 312 295
Ending Vehs 403 411 437 396 401 410
Denied Entry Before 150 161 149 162 161 157
Denied Entry After 4006 3989 3958 4088 3989 4005
Travel Distance (mi) 1583 1638 1617 1626 1663 1625
Travel Time (hr) 2421.0 2442.9 2410.2 2434.6 2418.7 2425.5
Total Delay (hr) 2365.5 2385.8 2353.9 2378.2 2361.2 2368.9
Total Stops 5726 6207 5810 6056 6244 6009
Fuel Used (gal) 590.3 597.6 588.3 594.4 592.5 592.6

Interval #0 Information  Seeding
Start Time 6:50
End Time 7:00
Total Time (min) 10
No data recorded this interval.

Interval #1 Information  Recording
Start Time 7:00
End Time 8:00
Total Time (min) 60
Volumes adjusted by PHF.

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Vehs Entered 1791 1861 1881 1826 1818 1836
Vehs Exited 1693 1741 1734 1705 1729 1721
Starting Vehs 305 291 290 275 312 295
Ending Vehs 403 411 437 396 401 410
Denied Entry Before 150 161 149 162 161 157
Denied Entry After 4006 3989 3958 4088 3989 4005
Travel Distance (mi) 1583 1638 1617 1626 1663 1625
Travel Time (hr) 2421.0 2442.9 2410.2 2434.6 2418.7 2425.5
Total Delay (hr) 2365.5 2385.8 2353.9 2378.2 2361.2 2368.9
Total Stops 5726 6207 5810 6056 6244 6009
Fuel Used (gal) 590.3 597.6 588.3 594.4 592.5 592.6

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 246



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 2

1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.2 0.1 0.2
Total Delay (hr) 0.2 0.1 0.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.9 7.2 4.4
Stop Delay (hr) 0.1 0.0 0.2
Stop Del/Veh (s) 3.0 5.4 3.4
Vehicles Entered 173 31 204
Vehicles Exited 174 31 205
Hourly Exit Rate 174 31 205
Input Volume 173 33 206
% of Volume 101 94 100
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.1 20.0 0.3 20.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.4 148.1 5.0 97.5
Stop Delay (hr) 0.1 18.9 0.2 19.2
Stop Del/Veh (s) 3.6 140.1 3.3 91.8
Vehicles Entered 60 476 205 741
Vehicles Exited 60 462 204 726
Hourly Exit Rate 60 462 204 726
Input Volume 56 637 207 900
% of Volume 107 73 99 81
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 247



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 3

3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 587.1 0.0 587.1
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1383.1 0.0 937.6
Total Delay (hr) 17.4 10.8 28.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 207.6 52.3 97.2
Stop Delay (hr) 17.6 9.3 26.9
Stop Del/Veh (s) 209.6 45.1 92.6
Vehicles Entered 290 726 1016
Vehicles Exited 284 714 998
Hourly Exit Rate 284 714 998
Input Volume 1499 900 2399
% of Volume 19 79 42
Denied Entry Before 8 0 8
Denied Entry After 1238 0 1238

4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL WBT NBL SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 355.8 29.6 4.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 389.8
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1474.0 367.2 397.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 638.7
Total Delay (hr) 9.9 7.8 1.1 0.1 32.8 2.8 54.5
Total Del/Veh (s) 191.0 122.8 130.0 87.9 130.5 99.5 134.8
Stop Delay (hr) 10.2 7.6 1.1 0.1 33.2 2.9 55.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 197.1 119.8 126.3 85.6 131.8 101.7 136.0
Vehicles Entered 177 227 31 5 894 99 1433
Vehicles Exited 176 222 30 5 865 97 1395
Hourly Exit Rate 176 222 30 5 865 97 1395
Input Volume 857 297 45 5 2168 231 3603
% of Volume 21 75 67 100 40 42 39
Denied Entry Before 16 0 0 0 0 0 16
Denied Entry After 692 63 9 0 0 0 764

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 248



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 4

5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard Performance by movement 

Movement WBL NBT NBR SBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 570.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 570.9
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1589.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 792.0
Total Delay (hr) 23.8 0.0 0.0 13.1 142.7 179.7
Total Del/Veh (s) 318.8 18.9 2.4 387.3 397.2 375.6
Stop Delay (hr) 23.6 0.0 0.0 12.6 140.5 176.7
Stop Del/Veh (s) 315.9 16.8 2.5 371.1 391.1 369.4
Vehicles Entered 243 5 33 112 1152 1545
Vehicles Exited 242 5 33 108 1123 1511
Hourly Exit Rate 242 5 33 108 1123 1511
Input Volume 1212 6 29 291 3032 4570
% of Volume 20 83 114 37 37 33
Denied Entry Before 72 0 0 0 0 72
Denied Entry After 1050 0 0 0 0 1050

6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp Performance by movement 

Movement SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 4.4 4.4
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 10 10
Vehicles Exited 10 10
Hourly Exit Rate 10 10
Input Volume 35 35
% of Volume 29 29
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 249



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 5

7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 1.7 1.7
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1
Vehicles Entered 35 35
Vehicles Exited 35 35
Hourly Exit Rate 35 35
Input Volume 35 35
% of Volume 100 100
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

11: Pleasant Hill Road & Project Dwy Performance by movement 

Movement EBR NBT SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 420.6 0.0 0.0 420.6
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1907.0 0.0 0.0 688.9
Total Delay (hr) 7.9 0.0 8.2 16.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 1361.7 0.0 21.5 40.6
Stop Delay (hr) 8.0 0.0 4.7 12.6
Stop Del/Veh (s) 1366.8 0.0 12.2 31.7
Vehicles Entered 13 39 1365 1417
Vehicles Exited 12 39 1365 1416
Hourly Exit Rate 12 39 1365 1416
Input Volume 735 35 4244 5014
% of Volume 2 111 32 28
Denied Entry Before 61 0 0 61
Denied Entry After 781 0 0 781

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 250



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 6

14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue Performance by movement 

Movement NBT SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 4.8 4.8
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.2 12.4 12.1
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 1.7 1.7
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 4.3 4.2
Vehicles Entered 39 1377 1416
Vehicles Exited 39 1376 1415
Hourly Exit Rate 39 1376 1415
Input Volume 35 4979 5014
% of Volume 111 28 28
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

15: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement WBR SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 3.6 3.0 6.6
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.6 19.1 15.3 16.7
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.8
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 2.1 2.1 2.1
Vehicles Entered 39 676 701 1416
Vehicles Exited 39 676 701 1416
Hourly Exit Rate 39 676 701 1416
Input Volume 35 2507 2472 5014
% of Volume 111 27 28 28
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 251



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 7

16: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 1.2 1.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 6.6 6.6
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 676 676
Vehicles Exited 675 675
Hourly Exit Rate 675 675
Input Volume 2507 2507
% of Volume 27 27
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

17: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 1.0 1.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 6.9 5.0 5.1
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.4 0.4
Stop Del/Veh (s) 1.0 2.0 2.0
Vehicles Entered 10 700 710
Vehicles Exited 10 699 709
Hourly Exit Rate 10 699 709
Input Volume 35 2507 2542
% of Volume 29 28 28
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 252



SimTraffic Performance Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 8

Total Network Performance 

Denied Delay (hr) 2043.4
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1259.4
Total Delay (hr) 325.5
Total Del/Veh (s) 549.9
Stop Delay (hr) 305.5
Stop Del/Veh (s) 516.0
Vehicles Entered 1836
Vehicles Exited 1721
Hourly Exit Rate 1721
Input Volume 40731
% of Volume 4
Denied Entry Before 157
Denied Entry After 4005

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 253



Arterial Level of Service AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 9

Arterial Level of Service: NB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Acalanes Avenue 14 0.2 20.2 0.1 11
Project Dwy 11 0.0 4.1 0.0 34
Stanley Boulevard 5 18.9 26.8 0.1 11
Quandt Road 4 87.9 129.0 0.4 12
Total 107.0 180.0 0.6 12

Arterial Level of Service: SB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Rancho View Drive 1 7.2 22.7 0.2 24

19 1.3 15.6 0.1 34
Greenvalley Drive 2 5.0 11.8 0.1 22
Reliez Valle Road 3 49.1 72.3 0.3 12

20 26.2 29.9 0.0 4
Springhill Road 4 130.5 139.9 0.1 3
Deer Hill Road 5 360.6 399.0 0.4 4
Project Dwy 11 20.9 29.5 0.1 10
Acalanes Avenue 14 12.5 16.6 0.0 8

15 19.1 25.3 0.1 9
16 6.6 16.0 0.1 24
17 6.9 16.3 0.1 16

Mt. Diablo Boulevard 6 4.4 12.9 0.1 19
SR 24 EB Off Ramp 7 1.7 4.5 0.1 49
Total 652.1 812.3 1.7 7

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 254



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 10

Intersection: 1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive

Movement EB SB SB
Directions Served LTR T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 91 41 22
Average Queue (ft) 45 11 1
95th Queue (ft) 75 34 9
Link Distance (ft) 306 773 773
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive

Movement EB WB B60 SB SB
Directions Served LTR LT T T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 51 611 114 53 79
Average Queue (ft) 14 566 74 11 29
95th Queue (ft) 35 656 113 34 66
Link Distance (ft) 333 494 53 288 288
Upstream Blk Time (%) 84 87
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 76 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0

Intersection: 3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road

Movement EB EB SB SB
Directions Served L R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 455 481 425 447
Average Queue (ft) 218 456 230 228
95th Queue (ft) 582 471 381 408
Link Distance (ft) 438 438 1259 1259
Upstream Blk Time (%) 21 97
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 41
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 255



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 11

Intersection: 4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road

Movement EB WB NB SB SB SB B20 B20
Directions Served LTR LTR L T T R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 372 263 21 530 527 96 214 236
Average Queue (ft) 337 231 2 477 478 79 174 186
95th Queue (ft) 353 248 11 599 609 138 256 263
Link Distance (ft) 318 213 414 414 127 127
Upstream Blk Time (%) 100 83 88 90 31 88
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0 1062 1077 368 1061
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 200 71
Storage Blk Time (%) 89 84 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 194 4

Intersection: 5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard

Movement WB WB NB NB SB SB SB
Directions Served L LT T R L T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 225 556 27 42 275 2273 2409
Average Queue (ft) 204 523 2 11 185 2245 2372
95th Queue (ft) 299 542 14 32 342 2275 2427
Link Distance (ft) 504 342 342 2220 2220
Upstream Blk Time (%) 95 42 95
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 693 1585
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 185 175
Storage Blk Time (%) 8 97 6 27 69
Queuing Penalty (veh) 49 586 85 80 0

Intersection: 6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 256



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 12

Intersection: 7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road

Movement SB
Directions Served T
Maximum Queue (ft) 10
Average Queue (ft) 0
95th Queue (ft) 5
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 8: Brown Avenue/Miller Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 9: First Street/Sierra Vista Way & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 257



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 13

Intersection: 10: SR 24 WB Ramps/Laurel Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 11: Pleasant Hill Road & Project Dwy

Movement EB SB SB
Directions Served R T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 202 399 396
Average Queue (ft) 179 223 342
95th Queue (ft) 198 460 416
Link Distance (ft) 176 342 342
Upstream Blk Time (%) 100 2 8
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 37 174
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 12: Project Dwy NE & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 258



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 14

Intersection: 13: Project Dwy SW & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue

Movement SB SB
Directions Served T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 186 264
Average Queue (ft) 50 226
95th Queue (ft) 147 279
Link Distance (ft) 150 150
Upstream Blk Time (%) 1 24
Queuing Penalty (veh) 19 590
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 15: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB
Directions Served TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 353
Average Queue (ft) 165
95th Queue (ft) 408
Link Distance (ft) 266
Upstream Blk Time (%) 5
Queuing Penalty (veh) 112
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 259



Queuing and Blocking Report AM PEAK
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 15

Intersection: 16: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 17: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB
Directions Served TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 184
Average Queue (ft) 73
95th Queue (ft) 144
Link Distance (ft) 314
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 7775

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 260



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PHF = 1.0 

Evac 1 – Evacuation (without project) in the AM Peak  
 

 

 

  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 261



SimTraffic Simulation Summary
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 1

Summary of All Intervals

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Start Time 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50
End Time 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00
Total Time (min) 70 70 70 70 70 70
Time Recorded (min) 60 60 60 60 60 60
# of Intervals 2 2 2 2 2 2
# of Recorded Intervals 1 1 1 1 1 1
Vehs Entered 1829 1780 1769 1792 1766 1788
Vehs Exited 1731 1679 1706 1700 1710 1706
Starting Vehs 281 262 307 270 292 282
Ending Vehs 379 363 370 362 348 362
Denied Entry Before 111 105 100 89 97 101
Denied Entry After 1982 2023 2037 1992 2107 2029
Travel Distance (mi) 1600 1579 1608 1611 1609 1601
Travel Time (hr) 1351.0 1392.4 1406.7 1353.8 1407.4 1382.3
Total Delay (hr) 1295.1 1337.5 1350.7 1297.7 1351.6 1326.5
Total Stops 6213 6007 6125 6099 6108 6112
Fuel Used (gal) 348.4 356.7 360.7 349.6 362.3 355.5

Interval #0 Information  Seeding
Start Time 6:50
End Time 7:00
Total Time (min) 10
Volumes adjusted by Growth Factors.
No data recorded this interval.

Interval #1 Information  Recording
Start Time 7:00
End Time 8:00
Total Time (min) 60
Volumes adjusted by Growth Factors.

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Vehs Entered 1829 1780 1769 1792 1766 1788
Vehs Exited 1731 1679 1706 1700 1710 1706
Starting Vehs 281 262 307 270 292 282
Ending Vehs 379 363 370 362 348 362
Denied Entry Before 111 105 100 89 97 101
Denied Entry After 1982 2023 2037 1992 2107 2029
Travel Distance (mi) 1600 1579 1608 1611 1609 1601
Travel Time (hr) 1351.0 1392.4 1406.7 1353.8 1407.4 1382.3
Total Delay (hr) 1295.1 1337.5 1350.7 1297.7 1351.6 1326.5
Total Stops 6213 6007 6125 6099 6108 6112
Fuel Used (gal) 348.4 356.7 360.7 349.6 362.3 355.5

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 262



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 2

1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.2 0.1 0.2
Total Delay (hr) 0.1 0.0 0.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.5 5.4 3.8
Stop Delay (hr) 0.1 0.0 0.1
Stop Del/Veh (s) 2.7 4.1 2.9
Vehicles Entered 131 24 155
Vehicles Exited 131 24 155
Hourly Exit Rate 131 24 155
Input Volume 130 25 155
% of Volume 101 96 100
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 11.9 0.2 12.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 2.8 90.1 5.4 64.9
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 10.8 0.2 11.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 3.0 81.4 3.7 58.4
Vehicles Entered 44 467 154 665
Vehicles Exited 44 461 155 660
Hourly Exit Rate 44 461 155 660
Input Volume 42 478 155 675
% of Volume 105 96 100 98
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 263



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 3

3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 340.2 0.0 340.2
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1091.5 0.0 687.3
Total Delay (hr) 17.0 6.6 23.7
Total Del/Veh (s) 157.5 35.4 80.1
Stop Delay (hr) 16.8 5.4 22.2
Stop Del/Veh (s) 155.7 28.7 75.2
Vehicles Entered 376 660 1036
Vehicles Exited 369 660 1029
Hourly Exit Rate 369 660 1029
Input Volume 1124 675 1799
% of Volume 33 98 57
Denied Entry Before 6 0 6
Denied Entry After 746 0 746

4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL WBT NBL SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 256.6 6.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 263.6
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1364.6 96.2 92.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 482.6
Total Delay (hr) 10.0 6.9 1.2 0.1 31.9 2.8 52.9
Total Del/Veh (s) 206.2 114.7 114.1 99.9 122.7 94.6 128.9
Stop Delay (hr) 10.3 6.8 1.1 0.1 31.9 2.9 53.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 212.2 111.7 110.2 97.4 122.8 95.7 129.3
Vehicles Entered 166 216 36 3 918 107 1446
Vehicles Exited 165 212 36 3 896 103 1415
Hourly Exit Rate 165 212 36 3 896 103 1415
Input Volume 643 223 34 4 1626 173 2703
% of Volume 26 95 106 75 55 60 52
Denied Entry Before 11 1 0 0 0 0 12
Denied Entry After 511 8 1 0 0 0 520

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 264



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 4

5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard Performance by movement 

Movement WBL NBT NBR SBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 422.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 422.6
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1507.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 659.7
Total Delay (hr) 24.0 0.0 0.0 13.3 141.8 179.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 315.9 29.4 3.3 380.3 396.7 377.1
Stop Delay (hr) 23.9 0.0 0.0 12.7 138.9 175.6
Stop Del/Veh (s) 313.5 27.4 3.4 363.3 388.7 369.4
Vehicles Entered 246 4 21 115 1157 1543
Vehicles Exited 248 3 22 112 1123 1508
Hourly Exit Rate 248 3 22 112 1123 1508
Input Volume 909 4 22 218 2274 3427
% of Volume 27 75 100 51 49 44
Denied Entry Before 83 0 0 0 0 83
Denied Entry After 763 0 0 0 0 763

6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp Performance by movement 

Movement SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 4.5 4.5
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 12 12
Vehicles Exited 12 12
Hourly Exit Rate 12 12
Input Volume 26 26
% of Volume 46 46
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 265



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 5

7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 1.8 1.8
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.2 0.2
Vehicles Entered 29 29
Vehicles Exited 29 29
Hourly Exit Rate 29 29
Input Volume 26 26
% of Volume 112 112
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue Performance by movement 

Movement NBT SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 4.5 4.5
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.2 11.9 11.7
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 1.4 1.4
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 3.8 3.7
Vehicles Entered 25 1372 1397
Vehicles Exited 25 1372 1397
Hourly Exit Rate 25 1372 1397
Input Volume 26 3183 3209
% of Volume 96 43 44
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 266



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 6

15: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement WBR SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 3.7 2.9 6.5
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.6 19.0 15.1 16.8
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.9
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 2.3 2.3 2.3
Vehicles Entered 25 689 683 1397
Vehicles Exited 25 689 683 1397
Hourly Exit Rate 25 689 683 1397
Input Volume 26 1605 1578 3209
% of Volume 96 43 43 44
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

16: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 1.3 1.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 6.6 6.6
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 689 689
Vehicles Exited 689 689
Hourly Exit Rate 689 689
Input Volume 1605 1605
% of Volume 43 43
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 267



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 7

17: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 1.0 1.1
Total Del/Veh (s) 7.8 5.3 5.3
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.4 0.4
Stop Del/Veh (s) 1.8 2.1 2.1
Vehicles Entered 12 705 717
Vehicles Exited 12 704 716
Hourly Exit Rate 12 704 716
Input Volume 26 1605 1631
% of Volume 46 44 44
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

Total Network Performance 

Denied Delay (hr) 1027.1
Denied Del/Veh (s) 968.7
Total Delay (hr) 299.5
Total Del/Veh (s) 521.3
Stop Delay (hr) 277.9
Stop Del/Veh (s) 483.8
Vehicles Entered 1788
Vehicles Exited 1706
Hourly Exit Rate 1706
Input Volume 27792
% of Volume 6
Denied Entry Before 101
Denied Entry After 2029

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 268



Arterial Level of Service
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 8

Arterial Level of Service: NB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Acalanes Avenue 14 0.2 20.1 0.1 11

11 0.0 4.0 0.0 34
Stanley Boulevard 5 29.4 36.5 0.1 8
Quandt Road 4 99.9 148.7 0.4 11
Total 129.5 209.3 0.6 11

Arterial Level of Service: SB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Rancho View Drive 1 5.4 20.6 0.2 27

19 0.9 16.0 0.1 33
Greenvalley Drive 2 5.4 12.3 0.1 21
Reliez Valle Road 3 31.8 55.7 0.3 16

20 23.5 27.1 0.0 4
Springhill Road 4 122.7 132.1 0.1 3
Deer Hill Road 5 365.6 404.1 0.4 4

11 19.1 27.7 0.1 10
Acalanes Avenue 14 11.9 15.9 0.0 9

15 19.0 25.1 0.1 9
16 6.6 16.0 0.1 24
17 7.8 16.2 0.1 16

Mt. Diablo Boulevard 6 4.5 12.4 0.1 20
SR 24 EB Off Ramp 7 1.8 4.6 0.1 49
Total 625.8 785.8 1.7 8

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 269



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 9

Intersection: 1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive

Movement EB SB SB
Directions Served LTR T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 68 32 11
Average Queue (ft) 37 6 0
95th Queue (ft) 65 25 5
Link Distance (ft) 306 773 773
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive

Movement EB WB B60 SB SB
Directions Served LTR LT T T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 34 562 73 47 71
Average Queue (ft) 9 413 19 9 26
95th Queue (ft) 24 637 74 32 58
Link Distance (ft) 333 494 53 288 288
Upstream Blk Time (%) 22 12
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 67 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0

Intersection: 3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road

Movement EB EB SB SB
Directions Served L R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 454 486 339 344
Average Queue (ft) 237 456 177 175
95th Queue (ft) 599 474 273 281
Link Distance (ft) 438 438 1259 1259
Upstream Blk Time (%) 24 94
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 26
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 270



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 10

Intersection: 4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road

Movement EB WB NB SB SB SB B20 B20
Directions Served LTR LTR L T T R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 368 254 15 521 527 96 212 215
Average Queue (ft) 336 227 1 470 472 76 161 179
95th Queue (ft) 353 257 8 597 611 140 252 267
Link Distance (ft) 318 213 414 414 127 127
Upstream Blk Time (%) 99 70 83 87 22 82
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0 748 784 202 736
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 200 71
Storage Blk Time (%) 86 82 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 142 2

Intersection: 5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard

Movement WB WB NB NB SB SB SB
Directions Served L LT T R L T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 225 547 23 38 275 2273 2408
Average Queue (ft) 210 523 3 9 173 2241 2368
95th Queue (ft) 283 537 15 30 328 2310 2462
Link Distance (ft) 504 347 347 2220 2220
Upstream Blk Time (%) 95 42 95
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 520 1178
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 185 175
Storage Blk Time (%) 8 97 4 26 66
Queuing Penalty (veh) 36 441 51 56 0

Intersection: 6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 271



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 11

Intersection: 7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road

Movement SB
Directions Served T
Maximum Queue (ft) 5
Average Queue (ft) 0
95th Queue (ft) 3
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 8: Brown Avenue/Miller Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 9: First Street/Sierra Vista Way & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 272



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 12

Intersection: 10: SR 24 WB Ramps/Laurel Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue

Movement SB SB B11 B11
Directions Served T T T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 167 258 387 387
Average Queue (ft) 36 209 196 337
95th Queue (ft) 119 296 420 420
Link Distance (ft) 147 147 347 347
Upstream Blk Time (%) 1 20 1 6
Queuing Penalty (veh) 9 324 13 99
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 15: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB SB
Directions Served T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 11 354
Average Queue (ft) 0 191
95th Queue (ft) 8 441
Link Distance (ft) 266 266
Upstream Blk Time (%) 6
Queuing Penalty (veh) 94
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 273



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 13

Intersection: 16: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 17: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB SB
Directions Served T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 14 165
Average Queue (ft) 0 75
95th Queue (ft) 10 147
Link Distance (ft) 314 314
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 5435

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 274



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PHF = 1.0 

Evac 1 + Project – Evacuation plus project, with trap lane, in the AM 
Peak  

 

  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 275



SimTraffic Simulation Summary
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 1

Summary of All Intervals

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Start Time 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50
End Time 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00
Total Time (min) 70 70 70 70 70 70
Time Recorded (min) 60 60 60 60 60 60
# of Intervals 2 2 2 2 2 2
# of Recorded Intervals 1 1 1 1 1 1
Vehs Entered 2313 2278 2198 2250 2209 2249
Vehs Exited 2165 2144 2089 2068 2058 2105
Starting Vehs 258 231 256 249 270 256
Ending Vehs 406 365 365 431 421 397
Denied Entry Before 144 167 171 169 170 165
Denied Entry After 2127 2179 2246 2233 2121 2181
Travel Distance (mi) 1976 1959 1927 1894 1879 1927
Travel Time (hr) 1489.0 1424.4 1515.3 1507.4 1458.8 1479.0
Total Delay (hr) 1419.8 1355.7 1448.0 1441.1 1392.7 1411.4
Total Stops 9117 8435 8871 8651 8322 8680
Fuel Used (gal) 391.0 376.5 395.1 393.7 380.7 387.4

Interval #0 Information  Seeding
Start Time 6:50
End Time 7:00
Total Time (min) 10
Volumes adjusted by Growth Factors.
No data recorded this interval.

Interval #1 Information  Recording
Start Time 7:00
End Time 8:00
Total Time (min) 60
Volumes adjusted by Growth Factors.

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Vehs Entered 2313 2278 2198 2250 2209 2249
Vehs Exited 2165 2144 2089 2068 2058 2105
Starting Vehs 258 231 256 249 270 256
Ending Vehs 406 365 365 431 421 397
Denied Entry Before 144 167 171 169 170 165
Denied Entry After 2127 2179 2246 2233 2121 2181
Travel Distance (mi) 1976 1959 1927 1894 1879 1927
Travel Time (hr) 1489.0 1424.4 1515.3 1507.4 1458.8 1479.0
Total Delay (hr) 1419.8 1355.7 1448.0 1441.1 1392.7 1411.4
Total Stops 9117 8435 8871 8651 8322 8680
Fuel Used (gal) 391.0 376.5 395.1 393.7 380.7 387.4

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 276



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 2

1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1 0.1
Total Delay (hr) 0.1 0.0 0.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.5 5.8 3.9
Stop Delay (hr) 0.1 0.0 0.1
Stop Del/Veh (s) 2.8 4.2 3.0
Vehicles Entered 133 23 156
Vehicles Exited 133 23 156
Hourly Exit Rate 133 23 156
Input Volume 130 25 155
% of Volume 102 92 101
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 13.6 0.2 13.9
Total Del/Veh (s) 2.7 101.7 5.2 73.8
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 12.5 0.2 12.7
Stop Del/Veh (s) 3.0 93.2 3.6 67.3
Vehicles Entered 39 469 156 664
Vehicles Exited 38 463 156 657
Hourly Exit Rate 38 463 156 657
Input Volume 42 478 155 675
% of Volume 90 97 101 97
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 277



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 3

3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 183.4 0.0 183.4
Denied Del/Veh (s) 578.6 0.0 367.2
Total Delay (hr) 14.4 4.6 19.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 72.8 24.8 49.4
Stop Delay (hr) 12.4 3.6 15.9
Stop Del/Veh (s) 62.7 19.0 41.5
Vehicles Entered 698 657 1355
Vehicles Exited 692 658 1350
Hourly Exit Rate 692 658 1350
Input Volume 1124 675 1799
% of Volume 62 97 75
Denied Entry Before 8 0 8
Denied Entry After 443 0 443

4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL WBT NBL SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 277.0 0.8 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 278.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1445.2 13.3 15.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 434.5
Total Delay (hr) 9.2 5.0 0.8 0.1 21.5 1.9 38.4
Total Del/Veh (s) 221.2 78.3 84.8 80.9 62.7 52.3 77.8
Stop Delay (hr) 9.4 4.7 0.8 0.1 19.1 1.8 35.9
Stop Del/Veh (s) 226.4 74.7 80.3 80.3 55.8 49.2 72.6
Vehicles Entered 141 226 34 4 1220 129 1754
Vehicles Exited 141 225 33 4 1196 127 1726
Hourly Exit Rate 141 225 33 4 1196 127 1726
Input Volume 643 223 34 4 1626 173 2703
% of Volume 22 101 97 100 74 73 64
Denied Entry Before 40 0 0 0 0 0 40
Denied Entry After 549 0 0 0 0 0 549

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 278



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 4

5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard Performance by movement 

Movement WBL NBT NBR SBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 429.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 429.5
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1546.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 619.4
Total Delay (hr) 22.1 0.0 0.0 3.5 24.5 50.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 326.7 19.3 3.6 95.9 64.4 101.8
Stop Delay (hr) 21.8 0.0 0.0 3.3 21.3 46.4
Stop Del/Veh (s) 323.3 17.4 3.8 89.6 55.8 94.2
Vehicles Entered 218 4 22 129 1341 1714
Vehicles Exited 218 4 22 131 1342 1717
Hourly Exit Rate 218 4 22 131 1342 1717
Input Volume 909 4 22 218 2274 3427
% of Volume 24 100 100 60 59 50
Denied Entry Before 82 0 0 0 0 82
Denied Entry After 782 0 0 0 0 782

6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp Performance by movement 

Movement SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 5.8 5.8
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 7 7
Vehicles Exited 7 7
Hourly Exit Rate 7 7
Input Volume 26 26
% of Volume 27 27
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 279



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 5

7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 1.9 1.9
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.3 0.3
Vehicles Entered 31 31
Vehicles Exited 31 31
Hourly Exit Rate 31 31
Input Volume 26 26
% of Volume 119 119
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

11: Pleasant Hill Road & Project Dwy Performance by movement 

Movement EBR NBT SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 205.8 0.0 0.0 205.8
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1266.7 0.0 0.0 341.3
Total Delay (hr) 7.0 0.0 14.4 21.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 115.4 0.0 32.9 42.3
Stop Delay (hr) 7.4 0.0 11.8 19.2
Stop Del/Veh (s) 123.2 0.0 27.0 38.1
Vehicles Entered 211 26 1560 1797
Vehicles Exited 210 26 1556 1792
Hourly Exit Rate 210 26 1556 1792
Input Volume 551 26 3183 3760
% of Volume 38 100 49 48
Denied Entry Before 31 0 0 31
Denied Entry After 374 0 0 374

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 280



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 6

14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue Performance by movement 

Movement NBT SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 8.6 8.6
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.2 17.6 17.3
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 8.4 8.4
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 17.2 16.9
Vehicles Entered 26 1766 1792
Vehicles Exited 26 1758 1784
Hourly Exit Rate 26 1758 1784
Input Volume 26 3734 3760
% of Volume 100 47 47
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

15: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement WBR SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 10.7 1.6 12.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.6 42.8 6.6 24.6
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 12.0 0.2 12.2
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 48.3 0.8 24.5
Vehicles Entered 26 889 869 1784
Vehicles Exited 26 882 870 1778
Hourly Exit Rate 26 882 870 1778
Input Volume 26 1880 1854 3760
% of Volume 100 47 47 47
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 281



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 7

16: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 16.6 16.6
Total Del/Veh (s) 66.3 66.3
Stop Delay (hr) 18.9 18.9
Stop Del/Veh (s) 75.5 75.5
Vehicles Entered 882 882
Vehicles Exited 882 882
Hourly Exit Rate 882 882
Input Volume 1880 1880
% of Volume 47 47
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

17: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.2 14.9 15.2
Denied Del/Veh (s) 106.7 59.3 59.7
Total Delay (hr) 0.1 15.0 15.1
Total Del/Veh (s) 59.2 60.5 60.4
Stop Delay (hr) 0.1 17.5 17.6
Stop Del/Veh (s) 63.0 70.6 70.5
Vehicles Entered 7 876 883
Vehicles Exited 7 875 882
Hourly Exit Rate 7 875 882
Input Volume 26 1880 1906
% of Volume 27 47 46
Denied Entry Before 0 2 2
Denied Entry After 1 30 31

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 282



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 8

Total Network Performance 

Denied Delay (hr) 1113.6
Denied Del/Veh (s) 905.0
Total Delay (hr) 297.8
Total Del/Veh (s) 428.5
Stop Delay (hr) 274.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 394.3
Vehicles Entered 2249
Vehicles Exited 2105
Hourly Exit Rate 2105
Input Volume 33042
% of Volume 6
Denied Entry Before 165
Denied Entry After 2181

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 283



Arterial Level of Service
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 9

Arterial Level of Service: NB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Acalanes Avenue 14 0.2 20.2 0.1 11
Project Dwy 11 0.0 4.1 0.0 33
Stanley Boulevard 5 19.3 27.1 0.1 10

37 1.8 9.7 0.1 31
Quandt Road 4 80.9 116.6 0.4 11
Total 102.1 177.8 0.6 13

Arterial Level of Service: SB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Rancho View Drive 1 5.8 21.2 0.2 26

19 1.0 16.4 0.1 33
Greenvalley Drive 2 5.2 12.0 0.1 21
Reliez Valle Road 3 20.2 43.9 0.3 21

20 11.5 15.1 0.0 8
Springhill Road 4 62.7 72.2 0.1 5

37 196.3 231.5 0.4 6
Deer Hill Road 5 64.4 72.3 0.1 4
Project Dwy 11 33.0 41.4 0.1 7
Acalanes Avenue 14 18.2 22.3 0.0 6

15 42.8 48.9 0.1 5
16 66.3 75.6 0.1 5
17 59.2 189.6 0.1 4

Mt. Diablo Boulevard 6 5.8 13.5 0.1 18
SR 24 EB Off Ramp 7 1.9 4.7 0.1 48
Total 594.2 880.6 1.7 8

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 284



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 10

Intersection: 1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive

Movement EB SB SB
Directions Served LTR T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 76 46 16
Average Queue (ft) 39 7 1
95th Queue (ft) 64 28 7
Link Distance (ft) 306 773 773
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive

Movement EB WB B60 SB SB
Directions Served LTR LT T T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 34 585 84 47 61
Average Queue (ft) 10 446 27 10 23
95th Queue (ft) 26 659 87 31 52
Link Distance (ft) 333 494 53 288 288
Upstream Blk Time (%) 32 26
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 70 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0

Intersection: 3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road

Movement EB EB SB SB
Directions Served L R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 467 487 270 294
Average Queue (ft) 281 459 147 161
95th Queue (ft) 634 478 215 228
Link Distance (ft) 438 438 1259 1259
Upstream Blk Time (%) 17 80
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 20
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 285



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 11

Intersection: 4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road

Movement EB WB NB SB SB SB B20 B20
Directions Served LTR LTR L T T R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 368 258 15 506 515 96 212 229
Average Queue (ft) 336 211 2 375 383 62 94 130
95th Queue (ft) 353 278 10 632 651 137 222 278
Link Distance (ft) 318 217 406 406 127 127
Upstream Blk Time (%) 100 32 37 51 8 41
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0 337 458 69 371
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 200 71
Storage Blk Time (%) 56 57 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 98 2

Intersection: 5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard

Movement WB WB NB NB SB SB SB SB B37 B37
Directions Served L LT T R L T T T T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 225 550 22 43 275 442 447 441 1884 2009
Average Queue (ft) 108 522 2 8 174 366 392 410 1590 1711
95th Queue (ft) 271 536 13 29 316 523 454 467 2522 2656
Link Distance (ft) 504 342 342 351 351 351 1832 1832
Upstream Blk Time (%) 96 23 33 41 21 76
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 193 278 337 260 943
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 185 175
Storage Blk Time (%) 92 9 4 60
Queuing Penalty (veh) 418 69 9 0

Intersection: 6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 286



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 12

Intersection: 7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road

Movement SB
Directions Served T
Maximum Queue (ft) 5
Average Queue (ft) 0
95th Queue (ft) 4
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 8: Brown Avenue/Miller Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 9: First Street/Sierra Vista Way & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 287



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 13

Intersection: 10: SR 24 WB Ramps/Laurel Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 11: Pleasant Hill Road & Project Dwy

Movement EB SB SB SB
Directions Served R T T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 218 395 389 391
Average Queue (ft) 184 156 346 337
95th Queue (ft) 201 366 416 447
Link Distance (ft) 164 342 342 342
Upstream Blk Time (%) 100 2 15 10
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 17 158 109
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 12: Project Dwy NE & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 288



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 14

Intersection: 13: Project Dwy SW & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue

Movement SB SB SB
Directions Served T T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 164 267 237
Average Queue (ft) 36 237 184
95th Queue (ft) 122 258 270
Link Distance (ft) 152 152 152
Upstream Blk Time (%) 1 97 11
Queuing Penalty (veh) 12 1208 140
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 15: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB SB SB
Directions Served T T R
Maximum Queue (ft) 56 370 283
Average Queue (ft) 11 341 106
95th Queue (ft) 47 363 244
Link Distance (ft) 262 262 262
Upstream Blk Time (%) 99 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 1230 5
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 289



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 15

Intersection: 16: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB
Directions Served T
Maximum Queue (ft) 542
Average Queue (ft) 512
95th Queue (ft) 534
Link Distance (ft) 302
Upstream Blk Time (%) 100
Queuing Penalty (veh) 939
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 17: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB SB
Directions Served T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 188 535
Average Queue (ft) 15 505
95th Queue (ft) 123 526
Link Distance (ft) 314 314
Upstream Blk Time (%) 0 99
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 622
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 8283

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 290



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PHF = 1.0 

Evac 1 + Project Variant– Evacuation plus project, no trap lane, in the 
AM Peak  

 

 

 

 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 291



SimTraffic Simulation Summary
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 1

Summary of All Intervals

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Start Time 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50 6:50
End Time 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00 8:00
Total Time (min) 70 70 70 70 70 70
Time Recorded (min) 60 60 60 60 60 60
# of Intervals 2 2 2 2 2 2
# of Recorded Intervals 1 1 1 1 1 1
Vehs Entered 1718 1770 1818 1793 1804 1781
Vehs Exited 1667 1680 1753 1687 1699 1696
Starting Vehs 332 280 318 278 287 299
Ending Vehs 383 370 383 384 392 380
Denied Entry Before 188 149 166 161 143 161
Denied Entry After 2724 2604 2474 2543 2560 2582
Travel Distance (mi) 1573 1588 1620 1618 1608 1601
Travel Time (hr) 1799.8 1669.5 1677.1 1653.3 1680.2 1696.0
Total Delay (hr) 1745.0 1614.2 1620.7 1597.2 1624.2 1640.3
Total Stops 6005 6096 6145 6278 6138 6134
Fuel Used (gal) 447.6 420.7 423.1 417.9 422.6 426.4

Interval #0 Information  Seeding
Start Time 6:50
End Time 7:00
Total Time (min) 10
Volumes adjusted by Growth Factors.
No data recorded this interval.

Interval #1 Information  Recording
Start Time 7:00
End Time 8:00
Total Time (min) 60
Volumes adjusted by Growth Factors.

Run Number 1 2 3 4 5 Avg
Vehs Entered 1718 1770 1818 1793 1804 1781
Vehs Exited 1667 1680 1753 1687 1699 1696
Starting Vehs 332 280 318 278 287 299
Ending Vehs 383 370 383 384 392 380
Denied Entry Before 188 149 166 161 143 161
Denied Entry After 2724 2604 2474 2543 2560 2582
Travel Distance (mi) 1573 1588 1620 1618 1608 1601
Travel Time (hr) 1799.8 1669.5 1677.1 1653.3 1680.2 1696.0
Total Delay (hr) 1745.0 1614.2 1620.7 1597.2 1624.2 1640.3
Total Stops 6005 6096 6145 6278 6138 6134
Fuel Used (gal) 447.6 420.7 423.1 417.9 422.6 426.4

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 292



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 2

1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.2 0.1 0.2
Total Delay (hr) 0.1 0.0 0.2
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.5 6.8 4.0
Stop Delay (hr) 0.1 0.0 0.1
Stop Del/Veh (s) 2.7 5.1 3.1
Vehicles Entered 135 26 161
Vehicles Exited 135 26 161
Hourly Exit Rate 135 26 161
Input Volume 130 25 155
% of Volume 104 104 104
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 10.7 0.2 11.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 3.2 82.0 5.0 58.4
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 9.6 0.2 9.8
Stop Del/Veh (s) 3.4 73.3 3.4 52.0
Vehicles Entered 45 457 160 662
Vehicles Exited 45 454 159 658
Hourly Exit Rate 45 454 159 658
Input Volume 42 478 155 675
% of Volume 107 95 103 97
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 293



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 3

3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 366.7 0.0 366.7
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1156.1 0.0 733.9
Total Delay (hr) 17.0 7.7 24.7
Total Del/Veh (s) 170.9 41.0 86.2
Stop Delay (hr) 17.1 6.4 23.4
Stop Del/Veh (s) 171.0 34.2 81.8
Vehicles Entered 348 657 1005
Vehicles Exited 340 655 995
Hourly Exit Rate 340 655 995
Input Volume 1124 675 1799
% of Volume 30 97 55
Denied Entry Before 12 0 12
Denied Entry After 794 0 794

4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road Performance by movement 

Movement EBR WBL WBT NBL SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 232.9 5.0 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 238.9
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1302.1 78.2 89.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 450.7
Total Delay (hr) 9.8 6.7 1.2 0.1 32.7 3.0 53.4
Total Del/Veh (s) 181.3 106.8 120.8 81.7 129.3 109.9 131.2
Stop Delay (hr) 10.2 6.5 1.1 0.1 32.9 3.0 53.8
Stop Del/Veh (s) 187.4 103.4 116.2 79.8 130.5 111.8 132.2
Vehicles Entered 186 223 35 5 894 97 1440
Vehicles Exited 185 220 35 5 869 93 1407
Hourly Exit Rate 185 220 35 5 869 93 1407
Input Volume 643 223 34 4 1626 173 2703
% of Volume 29 99 103 125 53 54 52
Denied Entry Before 15 0 0 0 0 0 15
Denied Entry After 458 9 1 0 0 0 468

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 294



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 4

5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard Performance by movement 

Movement WBL NBT NBR SBL SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 392.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 392.5
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1474.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 625.7
Total Delay (hr) 24.1 0.0 0.0 13.2 142.1 179.4
Total Del/Veh (s) 329.5 21.8 2.9 374.4 394.4 377.1
Stop Delay (hr) 23.9 0.0 0.0 12.5 139.4 175.8
Stop Del/Veh (s) 327.1 19.9 3.0 354.8 386.9 369.6
Vehicles Entered 238 5 21 115 1159 1538
Vehicles Exited 235 5 21 113 1132 1506
Hourly Exit Rate 235 5 21 113 1132 1506
Input Volume 909 4 22 218 2274 3427
% of Volume 26 125 95 52 50 44
Denied Entry Before 69 0 0 0 0 69
Denied Entry After 720 0 0 0 0 720

6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp Performance by movement 

Movement SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 4.9 4.9
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 8 8
Vehicles Exited 8 8
Hourly Exit Rate 8 8
Input Volume 26 26
% of Volume 31 31
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 295



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 5

7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.1
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 1.7 1.7
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 23 23
Vehicles Exited 23 23
Hourly Exit Rate 23 23
Input Volume 26 26
% of Volume 88 88
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

11: Pleasant Hill Road & Project Dwy Performance by movement 

Movement EBR NBT SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 333.1 0.0 0.0 333.1
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1956.2 0.0 0.0 598.1
Total Delay (hr) 8.0 0.0 8.0 16.1
Total Del/Veh (s) 1374.8 0.0 21.0 40.7
Stop Delay (hr) 8.1 0.0 4.5 12.5
Stop Del/Veh (s) 1380.2 0.0 11.7 31.7
Vehicles Entered 13 25 1367 1405
Vehicles Exited 13 25 1368 1406
Hourly Exit Rate 13 25 1368 1406
Input Volume 551 26 3183 3760
% of Volume 2 96 43 37
Denied Entry Before 65 0 0 65
Denied Entry After 600 0 0 600

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 296



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 6

14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue Performance by movement 

Movement NBT SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 4.7 4.7
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.2 12.3 12.1
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 1.6 1.6
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 4.0 4.0
Vehicles Entered 25 1381 1406
Vehicles Exited 25 1382 1407
Hourly Exit Rate 25 1382 1407
Input Volume 26 3734 3760
% of Volume 96 37 37
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

15: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement WBR SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 3.7 2.9 6.6
Total Del/Veh (s) 0.6 19.0 15.3 16.8
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.8
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 2.1 2.1 2.1
Vehicles Entered 25 694 688 1407
Vehicles Exited 25 697 686 1408
Hourly Exit Rate 25 697 686 1408
Input Volume 26 1880 1854 3760
% of Volume 96 37 37 37
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 297



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 7

16: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 1.3 1.3
Total Del/Veh (s) 6.6 6.6
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0
Stop Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0
Vehicles Entered 697 697
Vehicles Exited 697 697
Hourly Exit Rate 697 697
Input Volume 1880 1880
% of Volume 37 37
Denied Entry Before 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0

17: Pleasant Hill Road Performance by movement 

Movement SBT SBR All
Denied Delay (hr) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Denied Del/Veh (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (hr) 0.0 1.0 1.0
Total Del/Veh (s) 7.6 4.8 4.8
Stop Delay (hr) 0.0 0.3 0.3
Stop Del/Veh (s) 1.2 1.7 1.7
Vehicles Entered 8 716 724
Vehicles Exited 8 714 722
Hourly Exit Rate 8 714 722
Input Volume 26 1880 1906
% of Volume 31 38 38
Denied Entry Before 0 0 0
Denied Entry After 0 0 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 298



SimTraffic Performance Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 8

Total Network Performance 

Denied Delay (hr) 1331.4
Denied Del/Veh (s) 1098.6
Total Delay (hr) 308.8
Total Del/Veh (s) 535.6
Stop Delay (hr) 287.7
Stop Del/Veh (s) 499.0
Vehicles Entered 1781
Vehicles Exited 1696
Hourly Exit Rate 1696
Input Volume 30546
% of Volume 6
Denied Entry Before 161
Denied Entry After 2582

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 299



Arterial Level of Service
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 9

Arterial Level of Service: NB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Acalanes Avenue 14 0.2 20.2 0.1 11
Project Dwy 11 0.0 4.1 0.0 34
Stanley Boulevard 5 21.8 29.1 0.1 10
Quandt Road 4 81.7 122.2 0.4 13
Total 103.8 175.6 0.6 13

Arterial Level of Service: SB Pleasant Hill Road

Delay Travel Dist Arterial
Cross Street Node (s/veh) time (s) (mi) Speed
Rancho View Drive 1 6.8 22.1 0.2 25

19 1.2 15.8 0.1 34
Greenvalley Drive 2 5.0 11.9 0.1 22
Reliez Valle Road 3 37.7 61.6 0.3 15

20 24.4 28.0 0.0 4
Springhill Road 4 129.3 138.7 0.1 3
Deer Hill Road 5 358.8 396.8 0.4 4
Project Dwy 11 20.5 29.0 0.1 10
Acalanes Avenue 14 12.4 16.4 0.0 8

15 19.0 25.1 0.1 9
16 6.6 16.0 0.1 24
17 7.6 17.2 0.1 15

Mt. Diablo Boulevard 6 4.9 13.5 0.1 18
SR 24 EB Off Ramp 7 1.7 4.5 0.1 50
Total 635.7 796.7 1.7 8

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 300



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 10

Intersection: 1: Pleasant Hill Road & Rancho View Drive

Movement EB SB SB
Directions Served LTR T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 77 45 16
Average Queue (ft) 38 8 1
95th Queue (ft) 63 30 7
Link Distance (ft) 306 773 773
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 2: Pleasant Hill Road & Greenvalley Drive

Movement EB WB B60 SB SB
Directions Served LTR LT T T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 44 567 56 50 64
Average Queue (ft) 11 385 10 9 25
95th Queue (ft) 29 611 51 31 57
Link Distance (ft) 333 494 53 288 288
Upstream Blk Time (%) 12 5
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 63 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0

Intersection: 3: Pleasant Hill Road & Reliez Valle Road

Movement EB EB SB SB
Directions Served L R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 459 488 358 394
Average Queue (ft) 253 456 187 189
95th Queue (ft) 615 491 312 337
Link Distance (ft) 438 438 1259 1259
Upstream Blk Time (%) 27 94
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%) 28
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 301



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 11

Intersection: 4: Pleasant Hill Road & Springhill Road/Quandt Road

Movement EB WB NB SB SB SB B20 B20
Directions Served LTR LTR L T T R T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 369 258 16 526 525 96 207 220
Average Queue (ft) 338 223 2 476 476 76 164 183
95th Queue (ft) 355 265 9 581 604 140 245 262
Link Distance (ft) 318 213 414 414 127 127
Upstream Blk Time (%) 100 64 86 90 24 85
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0 775 809 213 762
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 200 71
Storage Blk Time (%) 89 84 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 145 2

Intersection: 5: Pleasant Hill Road & Deer Hill Road/Stanley Boulevard

Movement WB WB NB NB SB SB SB
Directions Served L LT T R L T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 225 547 28 29 275 2274 2410
Average Queue (ft) 212 521 3 8 192 2241 2371
95th Queue (ft) 276 536 15 28 344 2292 2451
Link Distance (ft) 504 342 342 2220 2220
Upstream Blk Time (%) 95 41 95
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 506 1182
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 185 175
Storage Blk Time (%) 11 97 4 30 68
Queuing Penalty (veh) 52 440 47 64 0

Intersection: 6: Pleasant Hill Road & Mt. Diablo Boulevard/SR 24 EB On Ramp

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 302



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 12

Intersection: 7: Pleasant Hill Road & SR 24 EB Off Ramp/Old Tunnel Road

Movement SB
Directions Served T
Maximum Queue (ft) 2
Average Queue (ft) 0
95th Queue (ft) 2
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 8: Brown Avenue/Miller Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 9: First Street/Sierra Vista Way & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 303



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 13

Intersection: 10: SR 24 WB Ramps/Laurel Drive & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 11: Pleasant Hill Road & Project Dwy

Movement EB SB SB
Directions Served R T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 204 392 380
Average Queue (ft) 180 212 338
95th Queue (ft) 199 435 410
Link Distance (ft) 176 342 342
Upstream Blk Time (%) 100 1 7
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 23 114
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 12: Project Dwy NE & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 304



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 14

Intersection: 13: Project Dwy SW & Deer Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 14: Pleasant Hill Road & Acalanes Avenue

Movement SB SB
Directions Served T T
Maximum Queue (ft) 180 257
Average Queue (ft) 48 214
95th Queue (ft) 146 294
Link Distance (ft) 150 150
Upstream Blk Time (%) 1 22
Queuing Penalty (veh) 15 409
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 15: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB
Directions Served TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 351
Average Queue (ft) 179
95th Queue (ft) 424
Link Distance (ft) 266
Upstream Blk Time (%) 5
Queuing Penalty (veh) 89
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 305



Queuing and Blocking Report
Evacuation Scenario 1 plus Project Variant 08/23/2020

SimTraffic ReportTerraces Apartments TIS, City of Lafayette�
Page 15

Intersection: 16: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement
Directions Served
Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 17: Pleasant Hill Road

Movement SB
Directions Served TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 161
Average Queue (ft) 67
95th Queue (ft) 128
Link Distance (ft) 314
Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 5648

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 306



ITEM 5 
5. REVIEW AND COMMENT ON THE ACCESSIBLE TRANSPORTATION

STRATEGIC (ATS) PLAN 

  

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 307



    Planning Committee STAFF REPORT

Meeting Date: March 03, 2021

Subject Request Authority Board Approval of the Draft Final Contra 
Costa Accessible Transportation Strategic Plan (ATSP) and to 
Submit the Final Report to the California Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans) 

Summary of Issues In 2019, the Authority received a Sustainable Communities 
Planning grant from Caltrans in the amount of $400,000 to 
complete a countywide ATSP to address disparate 
transportation services in the county related to transportation 
for seniors and people with disabilities. The study was 
recommended in the 2017 Countywide Transportation Plan 
(CTP). The ATSP was prepared by Nelson\Nygaard Consulting 
Associates, Inc. (Nelson\Nygaard) with oversight provided in 
partnership between the Authority and Contra Costa County 
(County) and a Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) and a 
Policy Advisory Committee (PAC).

Recommendations Staff seeks Authority Board approval of the attached Draft 
Final Contra Costa ATSP so that Authority staff may forward 
the final report to Caltrans to complete the Sustainable 
Communities Planning grant, authorize implementation of the 
recommended Coordinating Structure by creating an 
Accessible Transportation Implementation Task Force (TF) to 
address and implement the ATSP, and continue to collect 
input from the public and stakeholders to provide information 
to the TF.

Staff Contact Peter Engel

4.B-1

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 308



Planning Committee STAFF REPORT
March 03, 2021

Page 2 of 10

1
7
5
4

Financial Implications The ATSP was completed using a Caltrans Sustainable 
Communities Planning grant and within budget. Authority staff 
will return at a later meeting with a proposed budget to fund 
the ATSP TF.

Options None

Attachments A. Draft Final Contra Costa ATSP Executive Summary

B. Draft Contra Costa ATSP

Changes from Committee N/A

  Background

The ATSP originated from the 2017 Contra Costa CTP. The CTP identified a need to address 
the challenges associated with: (1) different types of accessible transportation services for 
older adults and people with disabilities; (2) multiple transportation providers including 
cities/towns, transit operators, social services agencies, and non-profit organizations; and (3) 
diverse, and sometimes overlapping service areas. 

The ATSP is also intended to address several unimplemented recommendations of three 
previous studies which were similar in scope. The 2016 and 2020 Transportation Expenditure 
Plans (TEP) was unsuccessful in assessing new sales tax measure funds; however, they did 
further set expectations for the ATSP to ultimately "implement a customer-focused, user-
friendly, seamless coordinated system”. The ATSP will also help fulfill a requirement by the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) in its Resolution 4321, that County 
Transportation Agencies (CTA)/Congestion Management Agencies (CMA) must meet the 
following mobility management requirement: 

“Each county must establish or enhance mobility management programs to help provide 
equitable and effective access to transportation.” Mobility management in this context refers 
to a centralized point-of-contact that facilitates ease of use of a variety of transportation 
modes by people with disabilities, veterans, and older adults. 

MTC uses the following description to define mobility management activities: 

The region’s Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Plan directs counties 

4.B-2

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 309



Planning Committee STAFF REPORT
March 03, 2021

Page 3 of 10

1
7
5
4

to develop mobility management programs with three key components:  

 Countywide travel training;

 In-person Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) paratransit certification; and

 Coordination of information and referrals (I&R) through the provision of a mobility 
manager.

The Authority and the County jointly applied for the Caltrans Sustainable Communities 
Transportation Planning grant and agreed that the project would be managed by the 
Authority with assistance from the County’s Department of Conservation and Development. 
As part of the preparation for the project, the Authority and the County met with each transit 
agency to ensure they were supportive of the study, consulted with the Authority’s Bus 
Transit Coordinating Committee (BTCC), and had each transit agency review and comment on 
the Scope-of-Work (SOW) and proposed oversight structure before the study was initiated.  

This ATSP effort was a partnership between the Authority and the County, funded by a 
Caltrans Sustainable Communities Transportation Planning grant. The Authority issued a 
Request for Proposals (RFP) and selected Nelson\Nygaard to complete the ATSP. The process 
of developing the plan was originally intended to involve multiple oversight committees. The 
project team eventually defined and set-up a TAC and a PAC.  

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 

The role of the TAC was to provide subject matter expertise and public policy implications on 
service concepts under review by the study team. The TAC first met in November 2019 and 
continued meeting approximately monthly throughout the Study. 

Policy Advisory Committee (PAC)

The role of the PAC was to provide input on addressing policy barriers, communicate with 
stakeholders about the Study, liaise with elected or appointed Boards, and review and 
prioritize recommended strategies. The PAC first met in August 2020 and was originally 
slated to meet three times. Given the online meeting format and the complicated nature of 
the County’s transportation challenges, the PAC ended up meeting approximately monthly 

4.B-3

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 310



Planning Committee STAFF REPORT
March 03, 2021

Page 4 of 10

1
7
5
4

since October 2020.

As noted above, previous paratransit-related studies have been completed. Four studies of 
note are the 1990 Contra Costa County Paratransit Plan, the 2004 Contra Costa County 
Paratransit Improvement Study, the 2013 Contra Costa County Mobility Management Plan, 
and the 2018 West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee (WCCTAC) 
Transportation Needs Assessment. While many of the strategies recommended in those 
plans are considered to be best practices in other locations, a significant proportion have not 
been implemented in the County. There are a variety of reasons for the failure to implement 
these previous studies such as lack of political support, structural issues related to the 
existence of multiple agencies involved in service delivery, and the lack of funding. A primary 
factor in the Authority’s design and development of this study was to uncover and address 
these previous barriers to ensure that recommendations from this study are more likely to be 
implemented. The process incorporated into the ATSP resulted in a more collaborative and 
engaging discussion than was the case in previous studies. It is therefore anticipated that the 
recommended strategies will have greater community and agency support than previous 
efforts, and therefore have a greater likelihood of implementation. 

Seniors and people with disabilities face significant challenges navigating a disparate 
transportation system. In addition, the proportion of seniors in the population is growing 
significantly leading to an increase in demand for ADA paratransit services and a continuing 
magnification of related transportation challenges including the need for greater 
transportation resources. The growing challenges facing seniors, people with disabilities, and 
eligible veterans in accessing needed transportation have been integrated into the 
recommended strategies of the ATSP.  

The study’s three primary goals were to:

1. Evaluate the existing services and provide corresponding recommendations for 
improvements;

2. Identify alternative models for service delivery, present those alternatives to 
stakeholders, and select a final preferred model; and

3. Develop a detailed implementation plan for that model.

4.B-4

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 311



Planning Committee STAFF REPORT
March 03, 2021

Page 5 of 10

1
7
5
4

Any study related to transportation for seniors and people with disabilities needs to address 
the issues of funding and demand. The Authority and the County recognize that current 
funding for these areas is limited. Grants for planning (e.g. Caltrans) and mobility 
management pilots may be obtained (e.g. Federal Transit Administration 5310) but 
jurisdictions must still establish sustainable funding for ongoing operations. Significant 
portions of current funding, such as for ADA-mandated paratransit programs, are restricted 
on how and to whom they can provide service. Regulatory concerns also affect 
transportation to and from healthcare, and inter-jurisdictional travel. Although some 
organizations and jurisdictions have proposed legislative fixes to these issues, it is challenging 
to change State or Federal law.   

Outreach

At the outset of this effort, a framework was developed for public outreach and engagement 
that would solicit input from key individuals and organizations, as well as a broad cross-
section of the County’s communities and stakeholder groups, particularly seniors and persons 
with disabilities. The outreach plan included five key goals to support a successful ATSP:

1. Educate community members about the Study and different transportation options in 
the County;

2. Engage with community members and learn about current transportation usage;

3. Identify strengths and challenges of existing services and unmet needs;

4. Gather and incorporate feedback on alternative models; and

5. Create support within the community for new models and identify potential barriers 
to implementation.

Outcomes from ATSP Outreach

• Presentations pre-COVID 

o Developmental Disabilities Council of Contra Costa County
o Pleasant Hill Commission on Aging

4.B-5

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 312



Planning Committee STAFF REPORT
March 03, 2021

Page 6 of 10

1
7
5
4

• Surveys – 1000+

o English, Spanish and Mandarin

• Flyer/survey emailed and on paper with meal delivery

• Five Virtual Focus groups

o Diablo Valley College Disability Support Services

o Lighthouse for the Blind

o San Pablo Senior Center (Spanish)

o San Ramon Senior Center

o El Cerrito Senior Center

• Eleven Stakeholder interviews 

• Telephone Town Hall Meeting – Oct 27, 2020

o Call available in English, Spanish, and Mandarin

o 225 people pre-registered

o 23,000 phone numbers dialed, 1,149 accepted.

o 4 simple polls; 17 audience questions answered by staff

• Partner websites

• Social media 

o Instagram, Facebook, Nextdoor, and Twitter

• Public Strategy Input on Recommendations through the project website 
(www.https://www.atspcontracosta.com/)

The outreach effort provided significant input into the identification of transportation needs 
and gaps, which are provided in Chapter 4 of the ATSP.  

4.B-6

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 313

www.https://www.atspcontracosta.com/


Planning Committee STAFF REPORT
March 03, 2021

Page 7 of 10

1
7
5
4

The final two chapters of the ATSP provide recommended mobility strategies to address the 
needs and gaps, as well as an implementation plan which includes a blueprint to 
implementation of these strategies.

The primary recommended strategy that is necessary to implement several of the mobility 
strategies is the implementation of a Coordinated Structure as defined in detail below.

Coordinated Structure 

A coordinated structure will need to be in place to implement countywide and centralized 
mobility strategies. Due to the complexity of implementing a coordinated service, 
establishment of this structure is proposed to be an iterative, two-phase process. In the 
short-term, a TF should be established that will be responsible for identifying which mobility 
strategies require a dedicated entity to increase the likelihood of implementation of 
countywide study recommendations, and which strategies could be assigned to existing 
entities for implementation in the shorter term.   

Phase 1: Establish a Task Force (TF)

The ATSP recommends that a TF be established to take the study recommendations to the 
next level of implementation. Following are some of the elements of this task that will need 
to be implemented: 

Composition: The TF should include representatives of a broad variety of individuals 
representing agencies or user groups that have a stake in the project outcomes. This TF 
should include representatives of relevant human service agencies, transit agencies, elected 
officials, disabled and older adult advocates representing a range of segments of these 
communities, veterans, funding bodies, and other representatives. 

To expedite the development of the TF, the ATSP recommends that it be composed of a 
modified version of the study’s PAC, depending on interest, availability, and representation 
of a diversity of interests.   

Mission: The TF is proposed to have three primary tasks:

1. Identify ATSP recommended strategies that can be delegated to existing agencies or 
non-profit organizations that do not require a Coordinated Entity (CE) for short-term 

4.B-7

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 314



Planning Committee STAFF REPORT
March 03, 2021

Page 8 of 10

1
7
5
4

implementation;

2. Define and establish a dedicated countywide CE for implementation of countywide 
strategies; and

3. Identify funding.

Activities should include prioritizing of the strategies presented in this study, and 
development of an incremental approach to strategy implementation. This would ensure that 
select study recommendations can be implemented in the short-term rather than waiting for 
the creation or designation of a unified entity for implementation of large-scale, longer term 
strategies.   

Reporting Structure and Administrative Support: Authority staff is recommending that the 
responsibility of interim oversight of the TF be provided by the Authority to ensure continuity 
moving to the next phase from the ATSP. 

The TF could be an advisory committee to the Authority Board and report regularly on 
activities. It would need to be determined how and when the TF would report to the County 
Board of Supervisors (BOS), and/or transit agency Boards. 

Funding Sources: Potential overhead costs for this task should be relatively limited beyond 
the required staffing support. Authority staff will bring a recommendation of proposed 
funding for staffing support to a future Authority Board meeting.

Time Frame: Once the ATSP has been approved by the Authority Board and County BOS, the 
TF could begin operating within three to six months. If the PAC is used as the basis for the 
formulation of the TF, it will ease implementation of this recommendation. The TF would 
remain in place until it completed its mission and could be dissolved once a CE is in place. 

Phase 2: Establish a Dedicated Countywide Coordinated Entity (CE) 

A dedicated CE should either be created or designated to implement countywide study 
recommendations. The TF will be responsible for determining where this entity should be 
housed – it could be in an existing non-profit or public agency, or the TF could determine that 
a new entity will need to be established.   

4.B-8

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 315



Planning Committee STAFF REPORT
March 03, 2021

Page 9 of 10

1
7
5
4

Mission: The role of the CE would be to implement study recommendations. Examples of 
strategies to be implemented by the CE could include:  

• Identify and pursue new funding sources.
• Administer a uniform countywide ADA paratransit eligibility certification.
• Expand mobility management function.
• Procure joint paratransit scheduling software.
• Present a unified voice regarding policy and funding at the local, state, and federal 

levels.
• Oversee a one-seat ride for inter-jurisdictional trips both within and outside the 

county.

Additional opportunities for countywide service could be considered in the future as 
appropriate. 

Successful implementation of this recommendation will require political commitment at the 
highest levels of elected representatives in the County serving on the Authority Board, 
County BOS, and transit agencies. 

Substantial effort will be required to set-up this organization (or to designate an existing 
organization to take on this role). Some of the considerations include potentially lengthy 
negotiations between stakeholders, resolution of legal issues, governance decisions, 
incorporating and otherwise incubating a non-profit, setting up joint powers agreements, etc. 

The CE could have significant potential for implementing some of the longer term strategies 
proposed in the ATSP depending on the strength of leadership and the ability to secure 
dedicated funding.

The CE will need to seek funding through a variety of means, likely including funding 
dedicated through a sales tax measure. A non-profit could have access to funding not 
available to public entities, such as grant funding and Community Development Block Grants, 
foundation funding, donations, other public funding options, etc.  

One role of the TF and CE will be to explore comprehensive funding opportunities outside of 
“transportation” dollars. State and federal agencies provide funding through social service 
departments for transportation, outside of the traditional transportation silos.

4.B-9

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 316



Planning Committee STAFF REPORT
March 03, 2021

Page 10 of 10

1
7
5
4

Recommendations 

Authority staff is recommending that the Authority take the following actions:

1. Approve the attached Draft Final Contra Costa ATSP and forward to Caltrans to close 
out the Sustainable Communities Planning grant by the end of March;

2. Authorize the implementation of the recommended Coordinating Structure by 
creating a TF to address and implement the ATSP recommendations; and

3. Continue to collect input from the public and stakeholders for informing and 
consideration by the TF.

Next Steps

If the creation of the TF is authorized, Authority staff will work with County staff to bring back 
to the Authority Board a work plan, budget, possible funding, schedule and proposed 
member roster for the TF in May or June 2021 to incorporate into the Fiscal Year 2021-22 
workplan and budget.

4.B-10

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 317



CONTRA COSTA ACCESSIBLE 
TRANSPORTATION STRATEGIC PLAN

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Contra Costa Accessible Transportation Strategic Plan

FEBRUARY 2021

ATTACHMENT A

4.B-11

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 318



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
The Contra Costa Accessible Transportation Strategic Plan was 
funded by a Caltrans Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant.

Project Team
Peter Engel, Director of Programs, Contra Costa Transportation 
Authority

John Cunningham, Principal Transportation Planner, Contra Costa 
County Department of Conservation and Development

Corinne Dutra-Roberts, Innovative Mobility Programs, Advanced 
Mobility Group (AMG)

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting
Naomi Armenta, Project Manager

Richard Weiner, Principal in Charge

Marvin Ranaldson

Tanya Shah

Kevin Lucas

Emily Roach

Brian Manford

Kevin Ottem

4.B-12

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 319



Executive Summary | February 2021

  

Table of Contents
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . ES-1

Study Background  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . ES-1
Study Context   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . ES-2
Existing Conditions   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . ES-3
Outreach  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . ES-6
Survey Results  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . ES-10
Transportation Needs and Gaps  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . ES-12
Recommendations   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . ES-13

i4.B-13

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 320



Accessible Transportation Strategic Plan

 

ii 4.B-14

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 321



Final Plan | June 2020

STUDY BACKGROUND
The Accessible Transportation Strategic (ATS) Plan 
provides a coordination structure with strategies to improve 
accessible transportation services, based on an examination 
of transportation challenges facing seniors, people with 
disabilities, and veterans in Contra Costa County. 

Sponsored by a partnership between CCTA and the County, 
the ATS was funded by a Caltrans Sustainable Communities 
Transportation Planning grant.

Inclusive and equitable public engagement was a key focus 
of the Plan, with input from organizations, key stakeholders, 
and the broader Contra Costa community. 

Executive Summary
Project Oversight
The ATS process was overseen by 
Technical Advisory and Policy Advisory 
Committees. In March 2020, due to the 
COVID-19 outbreak, the project team 
started working “virtually” to allow people 
to participate safely.

• Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)
Provided subject matter expertise and
public policy implications on service
concepts

• Policy Advisory Committee (PAC)
Provided input on addressing
policy barriers, communicating
with stakeholders about the Study,
liaising with elected or appointed
Boards, and reviewing and prioritizing
recommended strategies

ES-1
4.B-15TRANSPLAN Packet Page 322



Accessible Transportation Strategic Plan

Executive Summary

STUDY CONTEXT
Contra Costa County has a diverse population 
spread across a relatively large area.

Related Planning Initiatives 2016-2020

2016 and 2020  
Transportation Expenditure Plan

“CCTA will develop an Accessible 
Transportation Strategic Plan 

to implement a customer-
focused, user-friendly, seamless 

coordinated system…”

2017 Countywide Comprehensive 
Transportation Plan 

“Initiate the ATS Plan: Ensure 
services are delivered in a 

coordinated system…”

2019 Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) Resolution 4321

“Each county must establish or 
enhance mobility management 

programs to help provide 
equitable and effective access to 

transportation.” 
ES-2 4.B-16

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 323



Executive Summary | February 2021

 Executive Summary

EXISTING CONDITIONS 
Older Adults and Adults with Disabilities
The distribution of older adults and prople with disabilities reflects the general population 
spread throughout the county, with a few areas of unusual concentration. Rossmoor has a higher 
population both of older adults and people with disabilities—countywide, those two groups 
constitute 23% of the population.

1
2

3

Older Adults
Three areas have a higher density of older adults: 
1) Rossmoor (between Moraga and Walnut Creek),
2) Crow Canyon (north of San Ramon), and the
area 3) South of Brentwood.

Rossmoor

People with Disabilities
People with disabilities have a similar 
geographic spread as the general 
population, except one concentrated 
area in Rossmoor.

ES-3
4.B-17TRANSPLAN Packet Page 324



Accessible Transportation Strategic Plan

Executive Summary

People of Color
Nearly half of the county population identifies as 
people of color or other non-white ethnicity.

Equity Considerations

Countywide Ethnicity

52% White 48% People of Color/Other

Household Income
Low income population concentrations include West 
County, mid-County, and North county locations.

ES-4 4.B-18

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 325



Executive Summary | February 2021

 Executive Summary

Transportation Need and Services

Community-Based Transportation
Services areas don’t always overlap areas of greatest 
demand, increasing the need for transit and paratransit 
services provided by community-transportation programs 
from public sector services or non-profit organizations.

Access to Medical Facilities
Most medical facilities are clustered in the center of the County 
between Pleasant Hill and Walnut Creek (2). Two facilities needed 
by residents throughout the County are the Contra Costa County 
Medical Center and the VA Medical Center, both in Martinez (2). 

1

2

ES-5

4.B-19TRANSPLAN Packet Page 326



Accessible Transportation Strategic Plan

Executive Summary

OUTREACH
Outreach Toolkit
A virtual and paper flyer, along 
with tweets and postings 
on provider websites were 
distributed via social media, 
encouraging people to provide 
input through the online 
survey.

Virtual Outreach Flyer

ES-6 4.B-20

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 327



Executive Summary | February 2021

 Executive Summary

Public Engagement Collateral

ES-7

4.B-21TRANSPLAN Packet Page 328



Accessible Transportation Strategic Plan

Executive Summary

Pre-COVID Outreach
Before the onset of the pandemic, surveys and engagement flyers were distributed 
and the project team made public presentations at the Developmental Disabilities 
Council of Contra Costa County and the Pleasant Hill Commission on Aging. 

The Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA), in coordination with Contra Costa County, 
is conducting a study to find out how to improve transportation services for seniors, people with 
disabilities, and eligible veterans who live or travel in Contra Costa County.
Please take a few minutes to fill out this survey and return it to the person who gave it to you, or 
you can also take the survey on-line at: https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/CCTA_Survey. 
If you have any questions or need assistance filling out this survey, 
please contact 510-506-7586 or info@atspcontracosta.com.

OVER►

SURVEY

1. Which modes of transportation do you usually use? 
(Check all that apply; answer any related follow-up 
questions for BUS, ADA PARATRANSIT and LYFT/UBER)
1 BART
2 Bus  Answer follow-up Q 2-4
3 Bicycle
4 Walk/Roll
5 ADA Paratransit (East Bay Paratransit, WestCAT 

Dial-a-Ride, County Connection LINK, Tri Delta 
Paratransit)  Answer follow-up Q 5-7

6 Drive myself
7 Lyft/Uber  Answer follow-up Q 8-9
8 Taxi
9 Family, neighbor, or paid helper drives me
10 Other (example: R-Transit, Rossmoor Dial-a-Bus, 

Lamorinda Spirit Van, etc): ______________________

 Q 2-4. BUS RIDER QUESTIONS
Skip questions 2-4 if you don’t ride the bus.
2. If you use the BUS, what service(s) do you use?

1 AC Transit
2 WestCAT 
3 County Connection 

4 Tri Delta 
5 Other (please specify):
      _______________________

3. Please tell us about your BUS-riding experience and 
interactions with drivers:
1 Excellent
2 Satisfactory 
3 Poor 

4 Additional comments:
      _____________________
      _____________________

4. Please share any other comments about your BUS-
riding experience, such as ease of use, maintenance 
issues, or vehicle cleanliness: 
 ___________________________________________________

Q 5-7. ADA PARATRANSIT RIDER QUESTIONS
Skip questions 5-7 if you don’t ride paratransit.
5. If you use ADA PARATRANSIT, what service(s) do you 

use?

1 East Bay Paratransit
2 WestCAT Dial-a-Ride
3 County Connection 

LINK 

4 Tri Delta Paratransit
5 Other (please specify):
       ______________________

CONTRA COSTA  
ACCESSIBLE TRANSPORTATION STRATEGIC PLAN

6. Please tell us about your ADA PARATRANSIT-riding 
experience and interactions with drivers:
1 Excellent
2 Satisfactory 
3 Poor 

4 Additional comments:
      ______________________________
      ______________________________

7. Please share any other comments about your ADA 
PARATRANSIT-riding experience, such as ease of use, 
maintenance issues, or vehicle cleanliness: 
 ___________________________________________________

Q 8-9. LYFT/UBER RIDER QUESTIONS
Skip questions 8-9 if you don’t ride Lyft/Uber.
8. If you use LYFT/UBER, please tell us about your riding 

experience and interactions with drivers:
1 Excellent
2 Satisfactory 
3 Poor 

4 Additional comments:
      ______________________________
      ______________________________

9. Please share any other comments about your 
LYFT/UBER-riding experience, such as ease of use, 
maintenance issues, or vehicle cleanliness: 
 ___________________________________________________

Q 10-16 GENERAL RIDER QUESTIONS
10. Where are you usually going? (Please select up to 

three)
I go to...
1 Medical appointment
2 Grocery shopping/drugstore
3 Non-medical appointment
4 See friends or family
5 Attend a class
6 The Senior Center
7 Church
8 Work or Volunteer position
9 Other (please specify):  __________________________

1,000+ 
Surveys

Distributed via e-mail and 
meal deliveries

ES-8 4.B-22

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 329



Executive Summary | February 2021

 Executive Summary

Focus Groups
Five virtual focus groups with seniors and persons 
with disabilities involved in-depth conversations 
with the project team, with an emphasis on reaching 
populations often overlooked through other forms of 
public engagement, such as adults with disabilities, 
people with Limited English Proficiency, and West 
County residents.

5 Focus 
Groups

Stakeholder Interviews
Interview commencing in March of 2020 
were put on hold in light of the onset 
of the COVID-19 pandemic. Interview 
questions were reevaluated to reflect 
the circumstances, and the interviews 
with public and nonprofit agencies, 
representing an array of stakeholder 
groups and interests, were completed 
between September and November. 

11 
Interviews

Telephone Town Hall
Nelson\Nygaard hosted a live 
Telephone Town Hall on October 
27, 2020 to outline the project 
and answer questions. 

1,149 
participants
out of 23,000 invitations

3 languages
English, Spanish, Mandarin 

Post-COVID Outreach
Once the pandemic set in, the project team moved all outreach activities to safe platforms, 
utilizing virtual focus groups, stakeholder interviews, an online survey, and virtual town hall to 
safely interact with participants.

Photo by John Schnobrich on Unsplash

ES-9
4.B-23TRANSPLAN Packet Page 330



Accessible Transportation Strategic Plan

Executive Summary

Destinations
The top destination was 
medical appointments, with 
grocery/drugstore shopping 
in second place. Senior 
Center trips and non-
medical appointments each 
accounted for an 8% share of 
destinations.

* Respondents could choose up to three trips that they take most often.
Percentages reflect total respondents (1,063) identifying each trip type.

SURVEY RESULTS
Trip Destinations and Challenges
An online survey provided insight into how respondents get where they are going, 
where they go, and what factors complicate their trips.

8%
Senior Center

8%
Non-Medical 
Appointment

56%
Medical 
Appointments

46%
Grocery/ 
drugstore

Mode to Destination
Trips were most commonly 
made by solo drivers, 
followed by those driven by 
a family, neighbor or paid 
helper. BART was used by 
about a third of respondents, 
with ADA paratransit utilized 
by 10% of the entire survey 
sample. * Respondents could choose as many modes as they used. Percentages reflect total

respondents (1,063) selecting a particular mode they used.

40%
Drive Myself 32%

BART
10%
ADA paratransit

38%
Family, 
neighbor, or 
paid driver

ES-10 4.B-24

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 331



Executive Summary | February 2021

 Executive Summary

Trip Challenges
Almost one-third of 
respondents feel unsafe 
while traveling, with about a 
quarter unable to go where 
or when they want, or feeling 
their trip takes too long.

* Respondents could choose up to three challenges that they faced most often.
Percentages reflect total respondents (1,063) identifying each trip type.

29%
Feel unsafe 
when traveling

24%
Can’t go when 
needed

Trip Difficulty  
Mirroring the top destinations, 
respondents had the most 
difficulty with medical 
appointments and making 
grocery/ drugstore trips. 
Seeing friends/family and 
getting to the Senior Center 
rounded up the top four types 
of difficult trips. * Respondents could choose up to three trips that they take most often. Percentages reflect total

respondents (1,063) for each trip type.

11%
Senior Center19%

Friends/Family

35%
Medical 
Appointments

20%
Grocery/ 
drugstore

23%
Trip takes 
too long

22%
Can’t go where 
needed

ES-11
4.B-25TRANSPLAN Packet Page 332



Accessible Transportation Strategic Plan

Executive Summary

TRANSPORTATION NEEDS AND GAPS
The project team’s review of existing conditions and survey data identified key needs and gaps in 
accessible transportation in Contra Costa County. These include:

New Funding – Grants are sometimes available for planning 
and pilots, but all recommendations will require new 
sustainable funding 

Safety – Many respondents feel unsafe while traveling

Volunteer Driving Programs – Additional volunteers are 
needed, with more reliable funding to increase capacity

Medical Access –  The Regional Medical Center and VA 
Medical Center in Martinez need reliable access throughout 
the county

Quality of Life Visits – Consumers have difficulty making 
quality-of-life essential trips to visit friends and family, the 
senior center, and church

Service Coordination – Accessible services need improved 
coordination because they are siloed between agencies, 
cities, and non-profit organizations

ES-12 4.B-26

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 333



Executive Summary | February 2021

 Executive Summary

RECOMMENDATIONS
The Accessible Transportation Plan identified an urgent need for a coordinated structure to 
address transportation needs and gaps in Contra Costa County accessible transportation. A 
crucial first step would be the creation of an Accessible Transportation Task Force.

Accessible Transportation Task Force 
The Task Force would:

• Oversee Strategic Planning, identifying coordinated strategies
to be implemented by existing agencies/non-profits

• Create a Countywide Coordination Entity responsible for
countywide strategy implementation

• Investigate funding opportunities

Countywide Coordinated Entity (CE)
• The countywide CE Organization could be an existing

non-profit or public agency–or an entirely new entity
• Strategy implementation would be a key function of

the CE, prioritizing projects to improve and expand
countywide accessible transportation

ES-13

4.B-27TRANSPLAN Packet Page 334



Accessible Transportation Strategic Plan

Executive Summary

Strategies and Implementation
A five-year timeline for strategy development and implemetation was developed, with 
recommended strategies divided into tiered groups.

Tier I

• High transportation benefit
• Strong community support
• Leverages existing programs/resources
• Easy to implement (in stages or because

of lower cost)

Tier II

High ranking strategies, sorted by:

• Service impact
• Cost
• Implementation challenges

Plan Countywide 
Coordinated Entity 

ESTABLISH 
Transportation 

Task Force

ESTABLISH  
Countywide Coordinated Entity

IMPLEMENT  
Countywide Coordinated Entity

Implement Short-Term Strategies Implement Long-Term Strategies

Year 1 Year 2 Year 4Year 3 Year 5

ES-14 4.B-28

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 335



Executive Summary | February 2021

 Executive Summary

Implementation Agency
Recommended agencies for each strategy have been identified across three categories.

Implementation Timeframes

Immediate-Term
Within  

1 Year

Long-Term
   2 Years

or on-going 
implementation 

beyond five years

Short-Term
Within  

2 Years

Tiered Strategies will be implemented in phases, pending ATSP approval.

Public Agency 

(e.g. Contra Costa Transportation 
Authority, County Administrator’s 
Office, County Health Services)

Non-Profit 

(e.g. Mobility Matters, 
Choice in Aging)

Transit Agency 

(e.g. County Connection,  
Tri Delta Transit, WestCAT)

ES-15
4.B-29TRANSPLAN Packet Page 336



Accessible Transportation Strategic Plan

Executive Summary

Strategy Description Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Te

rm

Implementation Agency

Public 
Agency

Non-
Profit

Transit 
Agency

Increase Local and Regional Mobility
1 Improve connectivity between paratransit programs/eliminate transfer 

trips

2 Same-day trip programs (including wheelchair-accessible service)

3 Expand existing and add new Volunteer Driver programs

4 Service beyond ADA service areas

5 Early morning and late-night service

6 On-demand subsidies

Improve Coordination Among Providers and Community Stakeholders

7 Shopping trips with package assistance

8 Hospital discharge service

9 Customized guaranteed ride home programs for people with disabilities

10 Means-based car-share including accessible option

11 One-call / one-click; information & referral (I&R)

12 Programs for disabled/senior veterans

13 Real-time transportation information (paratransit vehicle location, BART 
elevators, wheelchair spaces on buses)

14 Travel training (including inter-operator trips)

15 Mobility-as-a-Service (MaaS)

Develop Partnerships for Supportive Infrastructure
16 Administer a uniform countywide ADA paratransit eligibility certification 

program

17 Fare integration

18 Procure joint paratransit scheduling software

19 Sidewalk improvements to enhance safety for older adults and wheelchair 
accessibility in high-priority locations

20 Means-based fare subsidy

21 Wheelchair breakdown service

22 Accessible bikeshare program

Tier I Tier II Short-Term Long Term

Implementation Workplan

ES-16 4.B-30

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 337



Executive Summary | February 2021

 Executive Summary

ES-174.B-31

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 338



Accessible Transportation Strategic Plan

Executive Summary

Identifies/pursues new funding

Develops and administers uniform countywide 
ADA paratransit eligibility certification

Expands mobility management

Implements joint paratransit scheduling software

A Countywide Coordinated Entity Improves  
Accessible Transportation in Contra Costa County 

How
Functions of the Coordinated Entity

ES-18 4.B-32

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 339



Executive Summary | February 2021

 Executive Summary

Oversees seamless rides for inter-jurisdictional 
trips inside and outside the county

Supports Service beyond ADA service areas and 
regular service times

Expands Travel Training

Advocates for Safe Routes for Seniors/ 
Safe Routes for All

Helps establish means-based fare subsidy

Functions of the Coordinated Entity

ES-194.B-33

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 340



Accessible 
Transportation 
Strategic Plan 
Contra Costa County 
Board of Supervisors

Presented by ATS Plan Staff
March 9, 2021

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 341



WHAT IS THE ATSP?

• The Accessible Transportation Strategic (ATS) Plan 
examines transportation challenges of seniors, 
people with disabilities, and veterans in Contra 
Costa County

• Partnership between CCTA and the County --
funded by a Caltrans Sustainable Communities 
Transportation Planning grant

• Recommends a coordination structure and 
strategies to improve accessible transportation 
services

• Scheduled to be complete in early 2021

2

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 342



BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW OF PROJECT

Policy Background

3

2019 Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) Resolution 4321

“Each county must establish 
or enhance mobility 
management programs to 
help provide equitable and 
effective access to 
transportation.” 

2017 Countywide 
Comprehensive 

Transportation Plan 
“Initiate the ATS Plan: 
Ensure services are 
delivered in a 
coordinated system…”

2016 and 2020 Transportation 
Expenditure Plan

“CCTA will develop an 
Accessible Transportation 
Strategic Plan to implement 
a customer-focused, user-
friendly, seamless 
coordinated system…”

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 343



BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW OF PROJECT

Oversight Committees
• Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) –

providing subject matter expertise and 
public policy implications on service 
concepts

• Policy Advisory Committee (PAC) –
providing input on addressing policy 
barriers, communicating with stakeholders 
about the Study, liaising with elected or 
appointed Boards, and reviewing and 
prioritizing recommended strategies

4

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 344



CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES
Past Studies
• Contra Costa County Paratransit Plan – 1990
• CCTA Paratransit Improvement Study – 2004
• Contra Costa Mobility Management Plan – 2013

Barriers to Coordination
• Multiple missions serving different populations
• Multiple regulatory requirements
• Measure J, Federal Transit Administration, State 

Transportation Act, Grants
• CCTA and County do not have policy authority over 

operations, but can provide funding opportunities, policy 
direction, and leadership.

5

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 345



TRANSIT, PARATRANSIT, AND COMMUNITY PROGRAMS

6

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 346



MEDICAL FACILITIES

7

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 347



OUTREACH EFFORTS
• Presentations pre-COVID

o Developmental Disabilities Council of Contra 
Costa County

o Pleasant Hill Commission on Aging
• Surveys – 1000+
• Flyer/survey emailed and on paper with 

meal delivery

8

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 348



OUTREACH EFFORTS (CONTINUED)

• Focus groups – 5 
• Stakeholder interviews – 11 
• Telephone Town Hall Meeting 

– Oct 27, 2020
o Call available in English, Spanish, and 

Mandarin
o 225 people pre-registered
o 23,000 phone numbers dialed, 1,149 

accepted
o 4 simple polls; 17 audience questions 

answered by staff

• Partner websites
• Social media 

o Instagram, Facebook, Nextdoor, Twitter

9

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 349



TRANSPORTATION NEEDS AND GAPS IDENTIFIED

Fixed Route Transit Service

ADA Mandated Paratransit Service

Community Based Transportation Services

10

Categories

Geographic and Temporal Inequities

Issues and 
Needs 

Related to: 

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 350



TRANSPORTATION NEEDS AND GAPS IDENTIFIED

Lack of Affordability

Access to Essential Services

Access to Information

Programmatic Needs and Organizational Structure

11

Categories

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 351



TRANSPORTATION NEEDS AND GAPS IDENTIFIED

Same-day trips and 
wheelchair accessible trips

Expanded service during evenings 
and weekends

Most medical facilities appear to be 
clustered in center of the County

12

Examples

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 352



TRANSPORTATION NEEDS AND GAPS IDENTIFIED

Veterans’ transportation programs have specific 
limitations, availability and limits may not be 
well-known

Limited service options in East County

Affordability related to all transportation services

Historical lack of political support/need a 
champion for these types of recommendations

13

Examples

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 353



RECOMMENDATIONS

Establish a Task Force (TF)
• Modeled on PAC – similar 

representation
o ID strategies that can be delegated to 

existing agencies/ non-profit 
organizations for short term 
implementation

o Establish dedicated countywide 
Coordinated Entity (CE) for 
implementation of countywide 
strategies

o Identify funding

14

Establish a Coordinated Structure

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 354



RECOMMENDATIONS (CONTINUED)

Countywide Coordinated Entity (CE)
• Could be an existing non-profit, public 

agency, or new entity
• Could apply to become CTSA if 

appropriate, or look at other models

15

Establish a Coordinated Structure

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 355



Identify and pursue new funding sources

Administer uniform countywide ADA 
paratransit eligibility certification

Expand mobility management function

Procure joint paratransit scheduling software 

16

RECOMMENDATIONS (CONTINUED)

Coordinated Entity (CE) Mission

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 356



Present unified voice regarding policy and 
funding at local, state, and federal levels 

Oversee one-seat ride for inter-jurisdictional 
trips within/ outside the county

Consider additional opportunities for 
countywide service in the future 

17

RECOMMENDATIONS (CONTINUED)

Coordinated Entity (CE) Mission

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 357



MOBILITY STRATEGIES

Expand current one-seat ride pilot program 
improve connectivity between paratransit 
programs/eliminate transfer trips

Same-day trip programs (including 
wheelchair-accessible service)

Expand volunteer driver programs

Shopping Trips with package assistance

18

Examples

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 358



MOBILITY STRATEGIES

Hospital discharge service

One call/One click (and/or Information 
and Referral Service)

Programs for veterans

Fare integration

Uniform countywide ADA paratransit 
eligibility certification program

19

Examples

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 359



PHASE TWO
Public Engagement
• Give stakeholders an opportunity to 

prioritize strategies for implementation

20

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 360



THANK YOU!

510.506.7588
510.506.7586
rweiner@nelsonnygaard.com
narmenta@nelsonnygaard.com

Richard Weiner
Naomi Armenta

TRANSPLAN Packet Page 361


	Item 3: Meeting Minutes Feb 2021
	Item 4: Lamorinda Action Plan Amendment
	Staff Report
	DRAFT Letter: TRANSPLAN to LPMC
	LPMC Letter to RTPCs
	Supporting Material from LPMC/CCTA/Etc.

	Item 5: Accessible Transportation Strategic Plan
	Staff Report
	Executive Summary




